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City of ert. 

Harrisonville 
P.O. Box 367, 300 East Pearl Street- Harrisonville, Missouri 64701 

April 27, 2017 

Honorable Mayor and Members of the Board of Aldermen: 

The Finance Department is pleased to present the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) of 
the City of Harrisonville, Missouri, for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2016. This report is required 
under RSMo. 105.145 and is submitted for your information and review. 

The responsibility for accuracy, completeness, and fairness of the data presented, including all disclo­
sures, rests with the City. I believe the report as presented is accurate in all material respects and is 
presented in a manner designed to fairly set forth the financial position and results of annual opera­
tions of the City, both on a government-wide and a fund basis. 

The City of Harrisonville Finance Department prepares the year-end trial balances and supporting 
$Chedules and assists in the preparation of the financial statements, which undergo an annual audit 
by an independent certified public accountant. The City's financial statements have been audited by 
the accounting firm of Dana F. Cole & Company, LLP, and that audit resulted in an unmodified opinion 
that the City's financial statements for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2016, are fairly presented 
in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. That opin­
ion, and the procedures and testing that led to it, is found in the "Independent Auditors' Report" at the 
beginning of the Financral Section of the CAFR. 

Following the independent auditors' report and opinion is management's discussion and analysis 
(MD&A) of the financial statements. This analysis, along with the basic financial statements and 
notes, provides an overview of the City's financial position and operating results. The supplemental 
and statistical sections help provide a broader unde-rstanding of Harrisonville and, along with the in­
troductory section, provide context to the report. 

Profile of the City of Harrisonville 

The town of Harrisonville was established in 1837 and was named in honor of Albert G. Harrison, one 
of the first two U.S. Congressional representatives elected from the state of Missouri. Harrisonville 
became incorporated in 1851. S.G. "Squire" Allen was appointed the first mayor of the town in 1857, 
and Col. H. W. Younger, father of the infamous Cole Younger, was elected mayor in 1859. There is a 
rich local history of the Civil War era in Harrisonville, and in the decades following the war, the town 
grew in importance as the county seat of Cass County and as a transportation hub for the region. 

Today, Harrisonville is home to approximately 10,000 residents, with manufacturing and distribution 
facilities representing several majo'r national firms. It still serves as a transportation center, with Inter­
state 49 and several state highways providing access to the Kansas City metropolitan area as well as 
the recreation areas of south-central Missouri. 
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The City ofHa rrisonvi l le ,  M issouri ,  is a fou rth-class city organ ized u nder M issou ri statutes .a nd is gov­
e rned by a Mayor a nd eight-mem ber Boa rd of Aldermen,  two from each of the fou r  wards. The Mayor 
a nd Boa rd a ppoint a City Ad min istrator to serve as the ch ief adm in istrative officer of the City, and to 
oversee the operations of a l l  City depa rtments. Harrisonvil le provides a fu l l  com plement of genera l  
govern menta l  services i ncl ud ing po l ice and fi re protection ,  emergency med i ca l  services, parks a nd 
recreation ,  pub l ic  works serv ices, an  a i rport, and genera l  adm i n istrative services. The City a lso pro­
v ides electrica l d istr ibution ,  water, and  san itary sewer services, a l l  of which are accounted for in the 
fi nanc ia l  statements as business-type activities. 

Factors affecting financial conditions 

Loca l economy - Overa l l  reta i l  sa les have recovered to the levels enjoyed prior to the recession , and 
we see some loca l bus inesses i nvesti ng i n  renewa l .  Wh i le housing rema ins tied to the stable popu la­
tion ,  economic development contin ues to focus on the creation a nd expansion of em ployment oppor­
tu n ities. Outside i nvestors have conti n ued to show interest i n  Ha rrisonvi l le's location and workforce 
when considering potentia l  bus iness sites. Harrisonvi l le's place as a regional  trade center for basic  
goods and services has hel ped shelter the commun ity from more severe econom ic downtu rns. 

Long-term fi na ncia l p la nn i ng - The City of Ha rrisonvi l le  prepa res a five-year Cap ita l I m provement Pla n  
(C I P) for constructing, ma inta in i ng, and replacing the City's phys ica l  i nfrastructu re. These p rojects a re 
reviewed a n n ua l ly a nd u pdated as cond itions, prices, resou rces, and priorities cha nge. These projec­
tions a re i ncluded as a part of the five-yea r fina ncia l projection of each of the City's operati ng funds 
d u ring the Boa rd of Aldermen 's a n n ua l  budget process. By Board pol icy, the City ma inta i ns a reserve 
in each of the operating funds for budgetary and plann ing purposes. 

Cash management and risk ma nagement - The primary concern of the City's cash management pol i cy 
is the safety of princ ipa l .  The City fol lows a conservative investment pol icy which is c losely mon itored 
by staff a nd reviewed a n nua l ly. I nvestment yie ld remains low com pared to h istorical averages, but 
the secu rity of the investment princ ipa l  is the City's overarc h i ng priority. Cash ba lances of the various 
fu nds are consol idated for maxi m u m  earnings flexib i l ity. Fo l lowi ng the close of the fisca l year, the City 
renewed a l l  major insura nce pol ic ies after a review and u pdate of exposures and pr ic ing. With both 
cost a nd risk on the i ncrease, i nsura n ce coverage is an a rea wh ich receives sign ifica nt attention .  

The prepa ration of th is report would not have been possib le without the year-round ded ication a nd 
ha rd work of the staff of the Fina nce Department, with special recogn ition to our  Account ing Special ist, 
-Debra Goss. The City's i ndependent aud it fi rm of Dana F. Cole & Company, LLP, was instrumenta l i n  
the prepa ration of th is report and h igh ly professiona l i n  the i r  dea l i ngs with our  staff. I wou ld a lso l i ke 
to tha n k  Mayor Hasek, the Board of Aldermen , a nd I nteri m City Adm i n istrator M i ke Tho len for the i r  
conti nued interest i n  and support of  the maintenance of the fi nanc ia l  hea lth of our  City. 

Respectfu l ly su bmitted, 

M a rcel la McCoy 
Di rector of Finance 
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DANA F. COLE 
& COMPANYLLP 
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

To the Honorable Mayor and 
Members of the Board of Aldermen 

City of Harrisonville, Missouri 

Report on the Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business­
type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component unit, each major fund, and the aggre­
gate remaining fund information of the City of Harrisonville, Missouri, as of and for the year ended 
December 31, 2016, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise 
the City's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements 
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this 
includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation 
and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due 
to fraud or error. 

Auditors' Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We con­
ducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Stand­

ards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan 
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are 
free of material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclo­
sures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, in­
cluding the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether 
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control rele­
vant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design 
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. 
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasona­
bleness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall 
presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our audit opinions. 
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Opinions 

I n  our  op in ion ,  the fi na ncia l statements referred to above present fa i rly, i n  a l l  materia l respects, the 
respective fi nancia l position of the governmenta l activities, the bus iness-type a ctivities, the aggregate 
d iscretely presented component un it, each major fund ,  and the aggregate rema in ing  fu nd i nformation 
of the City of Ha rrisonvi l le ,  M issouri ,  as of December 31, 2016, and  the respective cha nges in  fi nanc ia l  
position a nd ,  where a ppl i cable, cash flows thereof for the yea r  then ended in  a ccordance with account­
i ng pri nci p les genera l ly accepted in  the Un ited States of America .  

Other Matters 

Required Supplementary Information 

Accou nti ng pri nc ip les genera l ly a ccepted i n  the Un ited States of America req u i re that the manage­
ment's discussion a nd ana lysis on pages 8 - 15, the budgetary com pa rison schedu les on pages 67 -
70, the schedu le  of employer's contributions on page 71,  and the schedu le  of em ployer's share of 
net pension l iab i l ity on page 72 be presented to su pplement the basic  fi na ncia l  statements. Such 
i nformation ,  a lthough not a part of the basic fi nanc ia l statements, is req u i red by the Governmenta l  
Accounti ng Standards Boa rd , who considers i t  to b e  a n  essentia l  part of fi nanc ia l  reporting for p lac ing 
the basic financ ia l  statements i n  an  a ppropriate operationa l ,  economic ,  or  h istorica l context. We 
have a pplied certa in  lim ited proced ures to the req u i red supplementary information in accordance 
with aud iti ng sta ndards genera l ly accepted i n  the Un ited States of America , which consisted of i n q u i r­
ies of ma nagement about the methods of prepari ng the i nformation and compa ring the i nformation 
for consistency with ma nagement's responses to our i nqu i ries ,  the basic fi nanc ia l  statements, a nd 
other knowledge we obta ined d u ring our  aud it of the basic  fi nanc ia l  statements. We do not express 
an op in ion or provide a ny assura nce on the information because the l im ited proced u res do not pro­
vide us with sufficient evidence to express a n  opin ion or provide a ny assurance. 

Other Information 

Our  aud it was cond ucted for the pu rpose of form ing op in ions on the fi nancia l  statements that col lec­
tively com prise the City of Harrisonvi l le ,  M issouri's basic fi nanc ia l  statements. The i ntroductory sec­
tion ,  other su pplementa ry i nformation ,  and statistica l section a re presented for purposes of additional  
a na lysis a nd are not a req u i red pa rt of the basic  fi nanc ia l  statements. 

The other su pplementa ry i nformation on pages 73 - 82 is the responsi b i l ity of management and was 
derived from and re lates d i rectly to the underlyi ng accou nti ng and other records used to prepa re the 
basic fi nancia l statements. Such information has been subjected to the aud iti ng procedu res appl ied 
in the aud it of the basic financia l statements a nd certa i n  add itiona l  procedu res, i nc lud ing com pa ring 
and reconci l i ng such i nformation d i rectly to the underlyi ng a ccou nti ng and other records used to pre­
pa re the basic fi nanc ia l  statements or to the basic fi nanc ia l  statements themselves, and other add i­
tiona l  procedu res i n  accorda nce with aud iti ng sta nda rds genera l ly accepted in  the U n ited States of 
America.  I n  our  op in ion ,  the other supplementa ry i nformation on pages 73 - 82 is fa i rly stated , i n  a l l  
material  respects, i n  re lation to the basic fi nanc ia l  statements a s  a whole.  

The i ntroductory and statistica l sections on pages 1 - 4 a nd 83 - 102 have not been subjected to the 
a ud iti ng proced u res appl ied in the aud it of the basic financ ia l  statements, and accord i ngly, we do not 
express an  op in ion or provide any assurance on them.  
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Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated April 27, 
2017, on our consideration of the City of Harrisonville, Missouri's internal control over financial report­
ing and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant 
agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of 
internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to pro­
vide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral 
part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the City 
of Harrisonville, Missouri's internal control over financial reporting and compliance. 

Overland Park, Kansas 
April 27, 2017, except for Note 19, as 

to which the date is June 21, 2017 
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CITY OF HARR ISONVI LLE, M ISSOU R I  
MANAGEM ENT'S DISCUSSION AN D ANALYSIS 

The City of Harrisonvi l le, M issouri ,  has prepa red fina ncia l statements in  accordance with GASS 34 
guidel i nes s ince 2003. This section of the report is intended to provide a sum mary of the City's finan­
c ia l  cond ition and outlook, a nd should be considered a long with the transm itta l letter a nd fi nanc ia l  
statements i n  a ny eva l uation of the City's financ ia l  cond ition .  

Fiscal Year Highlights 

The City of Harrisonvi l le, M issouri ,  contin ues to be a financ ia l ly  stable com m u n ity as the economy be­
gi ns to tu rn u pwa rd .  Tax reven ues decreased i n  fisca l yea r 2016 com pa red to fisca l year 2015 by 
a bout $290,000. The overa l l  n et position has i ncreased in  both governmenta l a nd business-type a c­
tivities. The City of Ha rrisonvi l le ,  M issou ri 's centra l location i n  the county and its status as a fu l l­
service city he lp  ma inta in  that sta bi l ity and a l low for many forward-looking i nvestme nts: 

These statements inc lude the Towne Center TI F expend itures, which i m pact the n et position of the 
City. The a nchor tenant opened in spring 2007. One add itiona l  padsite has been occu pied, a nd a 
hotel has been opened on the south end.  The two rema in ing  padsites are sti l l  open for develop­
ment. The City budgeted and  contributed general funds to he lp  meet the debt service sched u le i n  
2016, but w i l l  need additional  development to conti nue  to service the debt without i m pacti ng other 
City funds. 

The col lection of sa les tax reven ues exceeded previous levels. Wh i le the City has been recovering 
from the downturn, the revenue from existing sa les taxes showed l ittle overa l l  growth in  recent 
yea rs. This cou ld  be an a rea of concern if conti nued over t ime s ince the sa les tax is the la rgest 
si ngle revenue sou rce to the Genera l  Fu nd,  and forms the basis of debt service payments for the 
Com m u n ity Center. Sa les tax reven ues m i rror nationa l a nd regional  economic trends, wh ich are 
largely outside the City's contro l ,  but are importa nt to both our  commun ity and our revenue strea m .  
These trends are closely mon itored by City staff for the i r  effect on both present a nd projected ex­
pend itu re pla ns. 

The City's bus iness-type activities ( uti l ity funds) showed a sl ight i ncrease in  sa les and usage as a 
resu lt of typ ica l  weather  patterns for the yea r. Uti l ity customer and load growth is a key i nd icator 
of the comm u n ity's financ ia l  hea lth , as the n u m ber of residents is tied d i rectly to ava i lab le  reve­
n ues a nd dema nds for City services. Prior to fisca l yea r 2012, the City revised its admin istrative 
charge sched u le,  which resulted in lower uti l ity rates a n.d reduced transfers to the Genera l  Fund .  
The City forecasts stable uti l ity rates for the next few yea rs. Water rates were increased in  June 
2016 as pa rt of the need to fina nce voter-a pproved water treatment p lant i m provements. 

The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report 

This comprehensive a nnua l  financ ia l  report consists of six parts: 

I ntrod uctory section which i n cl udes the tra nsm itta l letter, 
Management's d iscussion a nd a na lysis (th is pa rt) , 
Basic financ ia l  statem ents a nd accompa nyi ng notes, 
Req u i red supplementa ry i nformation ,  
Other supplementa ry i nformation ,  a nd 
Statistica l i nformation 
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CITY O F  HARR ISONVI LLE, MISSOUR I  
MANAGEM ENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

The Comprehensive An nual  Financia l  Report (Conti nued) 

In prior yea rs,  the pri nc ipa l  focus of loca l govern menta l fi nanc ia l  statements was to summarize fund­
type i nformation on a cu rrent fi nanc ia l  resou rce basis. Th is current accou nti ng model presents in­
formation i n  two ways. The govern ment-wide financia l statements provide both short- and long-term 
information a bout the City's overa l l  financia l status. These are prepa red on  a fu l l  a ccrua l  basis to 
present i nformation in  a format more fa m i l ia r  to corporate accounting users. Fund financ ia l  state­
ments are sti l l  i nc luded to provide usefu l i nformation on ind iv idua l  parts of the government. 

Government-Wide Financia l Statements 

The basic  fi nanc ia l  statements inc lude two government-wide financ ia l  statements: the statement of 
net position and the statement of activities. These statements ca n be fou nd on pages 16 through 
19 . The government-wide fi nanc ia l  statements report i nformation about the City as a whole using 
accounti ng methods s imi lar  to those used by the private sector. 

The City is d ivided i nto the foilowing activities: 

Governmenta l activities - Al l of the City's basic  services a re considered govern menta l activities, 
i nc lud ing pub l ic  safety, publ i c  works,  gen era l admin istration ,  and parks. These a ctivities a re sup­
ported pri mari ly with genera l revenue such as sa les and property taxes, fi nes, and perm it fees. 

Business-type activities - The City's enterprise activities a re i nc luded here.  These operations 
cha rge a fee for services that is i ntended to recover the cost of operations. 

Fu nd Financia l Statements 

Another  major section of the basic fi nanc ia l  statements is the fund financ ia l  statements, found on 
pages 20 th rough 32,  a long with their explanatory notes on pages 33 through 66. The fu nd financ ia l  
statements provide deta i led information a bout each of the City's most sign ifica nt fu nds, ca l led "ma­
jor fu nds." Al l other funds are summarized and presented in a s ingle col u m n  ca l led "nonmajor." 

The City of Ha rrisonvi l le, M issour i ,  currently has two k inds of fu nds: 

Governmenta l funds - Most of the City's basic  services a re inc l uded in govern menta l fu nds. These 
statements are prepa red on a mod ified a ccrua l basis, mea n ing they measure current financ ia l  re­
sou rces and uses. Ca pita l assets and other long-l ived assets, a long with any long-term l iab i l ities, 
a re not presented in the governmenta l fund statements, but add itional  i nformation about them is 
provided at the bottom of the statements, and in the notes. 

Proprieta ry funds - These statements i nc l ude bus iness-type enterprise funds. The statements for 
these fun ds a re presented on the accrua l  basis and inc lude a l l  assets and l ia bi l ities, both current 
and  long-term. This is the same basis used on the government-wide fina ncia l statements. 
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Statement of Net Position 

CITY OF HARR ISONVI LLE, M ISSO U R I  
MANAG EM ENT'S DISCUSSION AN D ANALYSIS 

The fol lowi ng ta ble summa rizes the com bi ned statement of net position as of Decem ber 31, 2016, 
compared with the same information for the fisca l yea r end i ng Decem ber 31, 2015: 

ASSETS AND DEFERRED 

OUTFLOWS OF 

RESOURCES 

Current and other 

assets 

Capital assets 

Deferred outflows 

of resources 

TOTAL ASSETS AND 

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS 

OF RESOURCES 

LIABILITIES AND DEFERRED 

INFLOWS OF 

RESOURCES 

Other liabilities 

Long-term liabilities 

Deferred inflows 

of resources 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND 

DEFERRED INFLOWS 

OF RESOURCES 

NET POSITION 

Net investment in 

capital assets 

Restricted 

Unrestricted (deficit) 

TOTAL NET POSITION 

City of Harrisonvi l le, Missouri's Net Position 

Governmental 

Activities 

2016 2015 

Business-Type 

Activities 

2016 2015 

Total 

2016 2015 

17,717,645 19,018,583 11,855,494 12,348,414 29,573,139 31,366,997 

22,896,321 23,183,383 35,853,483 35,721,340 58,749,804 58,904,723 

2,962,217 1,395,495 742,950 352,649 3, 705,167 1, 7 48,144 

43,576,183 43,597,461 48,451,927 48,422,403 92,028,110 92,019,864 

681,4 77 785,446 

20,659,046 21,798,527 

476,135 54,653 

1,827,866 

8,560,057 

66,835 

1,984,510 2,509,343 2,769,956 

9,465,003 29,219,103 31,263,530 

31,724 542,970 86,377 

21,816,658 22,638,626 10,454,758 11,481,237 32,271,416 34,119,863 

18,094,342 17,620,666 27,020,727 25,724,107 45,115,069 43,344,773 

1,238,641 1,000,182 2,424,296 1,745,814 3,662,937 2,745,996 

2,426,542 2,337,987 8,552,146 9,471,245 10,978,688 11,809,232 

21,759,525 20,958,835 37,997,169 36,941,166 59,756,694 57,900,001 
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CITY OF HARR ISONVI LLE, M ISSO U R I  
MANAGEM ENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

Statement of Net Position (Conti n ued) 

The summary revea ls the overa l l  ba lance in  the City between governmenta l assets a nd bus iness-type 
assets. The govern menta l  activities capita l  assets i nc l ude the cost of additions, whi le the long-term 
obl igations a nd restricted assets i n  the same column revea l the offsetting debt, fi na l  construction 
obl igations, and financ ing reserves, as wel l  as the debt associated with the Towne Center T I F.  

Statement of Activities 

The fo l lowi ng ta ble reflects the revenues and expenses for the City's activities for the fiscal  year end i ng 
December 31, 2016, compared with the same i nformation for the fisca l year end ing Decem ber 31, 
2015: 

City of Harrisonville, Missouri's Statement of Activities 

Governmental Business-Type 

Activities Activities Total 

REVENUES 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 

Program revenues 

Charges for services 4,473,945 4,369,286 16,846,118 16,830,615 21,320,063 21,199,901 

Operating grants 

and contributions 132,527 293,635 132,527 293,635 

Capital grants and 

contributions 352,785 91,811 352,785 91,811 

General revenues 

Taxes 7,461,342 7,751,738 7,461,342 7,751,738 

Investment earnings 56,623 41,110 246,329 239,868 302,952 280,978 

Transfers (200,000) (200,000) 

Other miscellaneous 

revenues 237,769 271,252 60,480 153,871 298,249 425,123 

Total revenues 12,714,991 12,727,021 17,152,927 17,116,165 29,867,918 29,843,186 

EXPENSES 

General Government 1,717,240 1,583,748 1,717,240 1,583,748 

Administration of Justice 2,877,989 2,645,741 2,877,989 2,645,741 

Street 1,157,722 1,001,075 1,157,722 1,001,075 

Economic Development 502,984 431,396 502,984 431,396 

Animal Control 192,369 192,396 192,369 192,396 

Airport 339,387 308,994 339,387 308,994 

Emergency Services 2,497,603 2,310,217 2,497,603 2,310,217 

Park 606,756 550,704 606,756 550,704 
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CITY O F  HARR ISONVI LLE, M ISSOU R I  
MANAG EM ENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

Statement of Activities (Contin ued) 

City of Harrisonville, Missouri's Statement of Activities (Conti nued) 

EXPENSES (Continued) 

Community Center 

Towne Center TIF 

Interest on long-term 

debt 

Electric 

Water/Sewer 

Aquatic Center 

Refuse 

Total expenses 

CHANGE IN NET 

POSITION 

NET POSITION, beginning 

of year 

NET POSITION, 

end of year 

Governmental Business-Type 

Activities Activities Total 

2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 

1,488,614 1,458,666 1,488,614 1,458,666 

7,075 7,654 7,075 7,654 

526,562 559,742 526,562 559,742 

11,249,953 10,969,788 11,249,953 10,969,788 

4,079,377 3,953,599 4,079,377 3,953,599 

262,529 247,561 262,529 247,561 

505,064 494,998 505,064 494,998 

11,914,301 11,050,333 16,096,923 15,665,946 28,011,224 26,716,279 

800,690 1,676,688 1,056,004 1,450,219 1,856,694 3,126,907 

20,958,835 19,282,147 36,941,165 35,490,946 57,900,000 54,773,093 

21,759,525 20,958,835 37,997,169 36,941,165 59,756,694 57,900,000 

Th is su m mary shows that approximately 7 1% of tota l reven ues a re charges for services. The majority 
of the City's tota l revenue comes from the business-type activities of the Electric a nd Com bined Water 
and San ita ry Sewer Uti l ities.  I n  the governmenta l activities area , taxes were the la rgest single source 
of i ncome, led by the sa les tax revenues. 

Tota l progra m expenses for 2016 a re $28,011,224 with the majority, $ 16,096,923, stemming from 
busi ness-type activities. Governmenta l activities expend itu res increased 7 .8% from the previous fis­
ca l year a nd bus iness-type activities expenditures i ncreased 2 .8%. Both due pri mari ly from i ncreased 
expenses for the pension p lan held by LAG ERS. 

Pub l ic  safety expenses, at $5,375 ,592, tota led a pproximately 45% of the govern mental activities, 
wh i le the electric uti l ity expenses com pose the majority of the bus iness-type expenses. 

The tota l net position of the City i ncreased 3 .2% in 2016. 
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Fund Statements 

CITY OF HARR ISONVI LLE, M ISSOUR I  
MANAGEM ENT'S DISCUSS ION AN D ANALYSIS 

The City of Ha rrisonvi l le ,  M issouri ,  fu nd statements can be found on pages 20 th rough 32 of the finan­
c ia l  statements. Governmenta l fu nds ended the year w ith an overa l l  i ncrease in fund ba lance a nd the 
business-type funds showed an overa l l  i ncrease in net posit ion. 

Budget Varia nces 

There is one a rea of sign ificant d ifference between the origi na l  adopted budget and the fi nal  a p­
proved budget for the City1s Genera l  Fund in  fisca l yea r 2016. It is i n  ca pita l projects, which reflect 
the amount of u nfi n ished ca pita l  work from 2015,  which was re-a ppropriated into the 2016 budget, 
as we l l  as severa l n ewly authorized construction projects and equ i pment purchases. A l l  budget 
amendments are reviewed and approved by the Board of Aldermen .  

Cap ita l Assets 
City of Harrisonvi l le, Missou ri's Capita l Assets 

Land 

Buildings and 

improvements 

Machinery and 

equipment 

Equipment and 

transmission 

Streets 

Construction-in­

progress 

Less accumulated 

depreciation 

Total 

Governmental 

Activities 

2016 2015 

890,750 890,750. 

23,838,134 23,815,104 

7 ,048,458 6,814,922 

6,959,923 6,638,115 

813,041 486,025 

39,550,306 38,644,916 

16,653,985 

22,896,321 

15,461,533 

23,183,383 

Major Cap ita l Asset Events, fisca l yea r 2016: 

Business-Type 

Activities 

2016 2015 

1,588,031 1,588,031 

18,112,043 18,112,043 

40,302,354 37,840,823 

2,458,793 

62,461,221 

3,461,641 

61,002,538 

26,607,738 25,281,198 

35,853,483 35, 721,340 

Total 

2016 2015 

2,478,781 2,478,781 

41,950,177 41,927,147 

7,048,458 6,814,922 

40,302,354 37,840,823 

6,959,923 6,638,115 

3,271,834 3,947,666 

102,011,527 99,647,454 

43,261, 723 40, 7 42, 731 

58, 7 49,804 58,904, 723 

There were severa l  improvements a nd equ i pment purchases made i n  2016,  i nc lud i ng ongo ing pro­
jects that are to be completed i n  the near futu re. One major improvement that has been i n  the design 
phase is the improvement to the water treatment plant. Fund i ng for th is improvement was a pproved 
by the voters to issue add itional  bonds uti l iz ing the State Revolving Fu nd financing program th rough 
the M issouri Department of Natura l  Resou rces. The fo l lowing is a short recap of improvements and 
purchases made in 2016. 
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Capita l Assets (Conti nued) 

CITY OF HARR ISONVI LLE, M ISSO U R I  
MANAGEM ENT'S D ISCUSSION AN D ANALYSIS 

I nfrastructu re improvements i nc luded: 
An n ua l  overlay in excess of $2 14,000 and I ndependence Bridge com pletion of $ 17 ,600 
Ai rport improvements in excess of $344,000 uti l iz ing grant funds 
Storm and sidewa l k  improvements in  excess of $90,000 
Electrica l d istri bution improvements tota l i ng nea rly $23,500 
Sign ificant improvements to the water treatment p lant of $575,000 
Major repa i r  to the d igester at the wastewater treatment p lant of $805,600 
M iscel la neous water a nd sewer l i ne improvements in the a mount of $81,400 

Eq u ipment pu rchases and i m provements inc luded : 
Crack sealer mach ine ,  tasers, patrol veh ic le, a nd servers tota l i ng over $227,300 
Backyard d igger for electric in the amount of $ 166,200 a nd fin ish ing mower for parks in the 

amount of $20,300 
Am bulance and related equ ipment tota l i ng over $168,000 

Debt Administration 

As of December 31, 2016, the City of Ha rrisonvi l le ,  M issouri ,  had tota l long-term debt outsta nd ing of 
$28,832 ,296. Deta i ls of the existing debt obl igations of the City a re d iscussed i n  Note 6 to the finan­
c ia l  statements. The City conti nues to have no genera l obl igation debt. 

City of Harrisonville, Missouri's Debt Administration 
( i n  thousands of do l lars) 

Tax I ncrement Revenue Note 
Tax I ncrement Revenue Bonds 
Revenue Bonds 
Certificates of Partic i pation 
Ca pita l Lease 
Promissory Notes 

Tota l 

Economic Outlook 

Govern menta l 
Activities 

2016 2015 

9,000 9,000 
6,585 6,920 

4,650 5,350 
98 144 

127 152 

20 ,460 2 1,566 

Bus iness-Type 
Activities 

2016 2015 

8, 182 9,045 

190 221 
8,372 9 ,266 

Tota l 

2016 2015 

9,000 
6,585 
8, 182 
4, 650 

98 
317 

28,832 

9,000 
6,920 
9,045 
5,350 

144 
373 

30,832 

The City of Ha rrisonvi l le ,  M issour i ,  conti n ues to benefit from a relatively stable economic situation 
and shows some signs of progress. Overa l l  employment has remained steady and sa les tax col lec­
tions have sl ightly i ncreased . Some new reta i l  development is sti l l  u nder way, and the City conti n ues 
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CITY OF HARR ISONVI LLE, M ISSOUR I  
MANAG EM ENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

Economic Outlook (Contin ued) 

to be i n  the minds of potentia l  commercia l  and industria l  customers. The State of M issouri , i n  con­
ju n ction with loca l fund ing pa rtners, completed construction of sign ifica nt improvements to the inter­
change at 1-49 and M0-291, as wel l  as to M0-7 th rough Ha rrisonvi l le .  More improvements a re u nder 
way to North M0-291 i n  pa rtnersh i p  with the M issouri Depa rtment of Transportation a nd other loca l 
pa rtners. Voters i n  November 2014 approved $ 7  mi l l ion i n  revenue bonds to fund  improvements in  
the City's water treatment p lant a nd process wh ich wi l l  provide better, c lea ner water for yea rs to 
come. The bonds a re scheduled to be issued i n  January 2017 and the contractor has been awa rded 
the project. Construction is sched u led to begin in February 20 17 on the i m provements to the water 
treatment pla n .  These publ i c  i nfrastructu re i nvestments should he lp  ma i nta i n  and strengthen our  
commerc ia l  base. The Boa rd of Aldermen and City staff take a vigi lant a pproach to mon itori ng the 
City's fi nancia l hea lth, identifying and acting on trends i n  order to foresta l l  a ny major problems. 

Financia l  Contact 

These fi nanc ia l  statements a re designed to provide a genera l  overview of the City's fi nances a nd to 
demonstrate the City's accou ntab i l ity. Any questions or request for additional  i nformation should be 
d i rected to the Di rector of Fi na nce, 300 E. Pea rl Street, Ha rrisonvi l le ,  M issou ri 64 701. 
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CITY OF HARR ISONVI LLE, M ISSOUR I  
STATEM ENT OF N ET POSITION 

DECEM BER 31,  2016 

Pri mary Government 

Govern menta l Business-Type Com ponent 
Activities Activities Tota l U n it 

ASSETS 
Cash (cla im on cash ) ( 137 ,841) 506,611 368,7 70 
I nvestments 4,984,448 5,667,783 10,652,231 
Accou nts receiva ble, net of a l low-

ance for dou btfu l accounts 657,061 2 , 144,600 2 ,801,661 
G rants receivable 72 ,338 7 2,338 
Taxes receivable 922,106 922 ,106 196,293 
I nventories 113 ,800 717,359 831, 159 
Prepa id expenses 244,962 99 ,197 344, 159 
Restricted cash 1,242, 788 377 ,464 1,620,252 124,860 
Restricted i nvestments 2,046,832 2,046,832 
Due from com ponent u n it 9,380,547 200,000 9,580,547 
N et pension asset 237,436 95,648 333,084 
Ca pita l  assets 

La nd 890,750 1,588,031 2,478,781 
Construction-i n-progress 813,041 2 ,458,793 3,27 1,834 
Other ca p ita l assets, net of 

acc u m u lated depreciation 21,192 ,530 31,806,659 52,999, 189 

TOTAL ASSETS 40,613 ,966 47,708,977 88,322,943 321, 153 

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF 
R ESOU RCES 
Resou rces to be recogn ized i n  

futu re pension expense 2 ,670,467 742 ,950 3,413,417 
U namortized payme nt to escrow 

agent on defeasance of 
long-term debt 291,750 291,750 

Tota l deferred outflows of 
resou rces 2,962 ,217 742,950 3,705 , 167 

TOTAL ASSETS AND DEFER RED 
OUTFLOWS OF R ESOU RCES 43,576, 183 48,45 1,927 92 ,028, 110 321,153 
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CITY OF HARR ISONVI LLE, M ISSOUR I  
STATEM ENT OF N ET POS ITION 

DECE M BER 31, 2016 

Pri mary Government 

Governmenta l Bus iness-Type Com ponent 
Activities Activities Tota l U n it 

LIAS. I  LITI ES 
Accounts paya ble 213,837 790,615 1,004,452 15,820 
Accrued expenses 289, 534 56, 621 346, 155 
U nearned revenue 151,331 91,911 243,242 
Lia bi l ities paya ble from 

restricted assets 26, 775 26,775 
Meter deposits 888, 7 19 888, 7 19 
Due to primary government 9,380,547 
Due to developers 5,326,059 
Noncurrent l iab i l ities 

Due with in one yea r 1,428,046 1,057,344 2,485,390 
Due in  more than  one year 19,23 1,000 7,502 ,713 26,733 ,713 

TOTAL LIAB I LITI ES 21,340,523 10,387,923 3 1,728,446 14, 722,426 

DEFERRED I N FLOWS OF 
R ESOU RCES 
Resources to be recogn ized i n  

future pension expense 476, 135 66,835 542,970 

TOTAL LIABI LITI ES AN D DEFERRED 
I N FLOWS OF R ESOU RCES 2 1,816,658 10,454, 758 32,271,416 14, 722,426 

N ET POSIT ION 
Net i nvestment i n  ca p ita l 

assets 18,094,342 27 ,020, 727 45, 115,069 
Restricted for: 

Ca pita l  i m provements 152,989 152,989 
Debt service 1, 104,403 2 ,271,307 3,375, 7 10 
Othe r  purposes 138,385 138,385 

U n restricted (deficit) 2 ,422,395 8,552, 146 10,974,541 (14,401,273) 

TOTAL N ET POSITION 2 1,759,525 37,997, 169 59,756,694 (14,401,273) 

The notes to the fi nanc ia l  statements are an  i ntegra l pa rt of this statement. 
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CllY OF HARRISONVILLE, MISSOURI 
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016 

Program Revenues Net (Expense) Revenue and 

Operating Changes in Net Position 

Charges Grants Capital Primary Government 

for and Grants and Governmental Business-Type Component 
Expenses Services Contributions Contributions Activities Activities Total Unit 

Functions/programs 
Primary government 

Governmental activities 
General Government 1,722,897 1,964,977 132,527 374,607 374,607 
Administration of Justice 2,877,989 222,035 (2,655,954) (2,655,954) 
Street 1,157,722 (1,157,722) (1,157,722) 
Economic Development 497,326 (497,326) (497,326) 
Animal Control 192,369 (192,369) (192,369) 
Airport 339,387 352,785 13,398 13,398 
Emergency Services 2,497,603 1,351,037 (1,146,566) (1,146,566) 

I->' Park 606,756 83,414 (523,342) (523,342) 
00 

Community Center 1,488,614 852,482 (636,132) (636,132) 
Towne Center Project 7,075 (7,075) (7,075) 
Interest on long-term debt 526,562 (526,562) (526,562) 

Total governmental activities 11,914,300 4,473,945 132,527 352,785 (6,955,043) (6,955,043) 

Business-type activities 
Electric 11,249,953 11,328,726 78,773 78,773 
Water/Sewer 4,079,377 4;864,960 785,583 785,583 
Aquatic Center 262,529 147,697 (114,832) (114,832) 
Refuse 505,064 504,735 (329) (329) 

Total business-type activities 16,096,923 16,846,118 749,195 749,195 

Total primary government 28,011,223 21,320,063 132,527 352,785 (6,955,043) 749,195 (6,205,848) 

Market Place Component Unit 598,677 (598,677) 



p 
(.0 

General revenues 
Taxes 

Property tax 
Local sales tax 
Franchise taxes 
Other taxes 

Investment earnings 
Gain on sale of assets 
Reimbursements 
Other miscellaneous revenues 

Total general revenues 

CHANGE IN NET POSITION 

NET POSITION (DEFICIT), beginning 
of year 

NET POSITION (DEFICIT), end of year 

Expenses 

CITY OF HARRISONVILLE, MISSOURI 
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016 

Charges 

for 
Services 

Program Revenues 

Capital 

Operating 

Grants 

and Grants and 
Contributions Contributions 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part ofthis statement. 

Net (Expense) Revenue and 

Changes in Net Position 

Primary Government 

Governmental Business-Type 
Activities Activities 

967,740 
4,695,188 
1,450,532 

347,882 
56,623 246,329 
23,704 10,859 
97,540 

116,524 49,621 
7,755,733 306,809 

800,690 1,056,004 

20,958,835 36,941,165 

21,759,525 37,997,169 

Total 

967,740 
4,695,188 
1,450,532 

347,882 
302,952 

34,563 
97,540 

166,145 
8,062,542 

1,856,694 

57,900,000 

59,756,694 

Component 
Unit 

442,480 

178,749 
235 

621,464 

22,787 

(14,424,060) 

(14,401,273) 



CITY OF HARRISONVILLE, MISSOURI 

BALANCE SHEET 

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

DECEMBER 31, 2016 

Sales Community Towne Emergency Total 

General Tax Center Center Services Nonmajor Governmental 

Fund Fund Fund TIF Fund Fund Funds Funds 

ASSETS 

ASSETS 

Cash (claim on cash) 237,889 51,235 (4,130) 536 (462,294) 38,923 (137,841) 

Investments 4,984,448 4,984,448 

Accounts receivable 47,337 609,724 657,061 

Grants receivable 72,338 72,338 

Taxes receivable 554,922 95,616 176,850 47,808 46,910 922,106 

Due from component unit 275,000 275,000 

Inventories 70,390 43,410 113,800 

Prepaid insurance 152,598 19,558 63,583 9,223 244,962 

Restricted cash .138,385 726,963 377,440 1,242,788 

!\) TOTAL ASSETS 6,485,970 146,851 62,765 904,349 302,231 472,496 8,374,662 
0 

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES 

LIABILITIES 

Accounts payable 132,374 32,797 1,000 31,717 15,949 213,837 

Accrued expenses 117,640 22,982 43,365 183,987 

Unearned revenue 64,332 58,401 14,046 14,552 151,331 

Liabilities payable from restricted assets 26,775 26,775 

Total liabilities 341,121 114,180 1,000 89,128 30,501 575,930 

FUND BALANCES 

Nonspendable 222,988 19,558 106,993 9,223 358,762 

Restricted 111,610 903,349 377,440 1,392,399 

Assigned 146,851 106,110 55,332 308,293 

Unassigned (deficit) 5,810,251 (70,973) 5,739,278 

Total fund balances 6,144,849 146,851 (51,415) 903,349 213,103 441,995 7,798,732 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES 6,485,970 146,851 62,765 904,349 302,231 472,496 8,374,662 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 



CITY OF HARR ISONVI LLE, M ISSO U R I  
R ECONCI LIAT ION OF TH E BALANCE SHEET OF GOVER N M ENTAL FU N DS 

TO TH E STATEM ENT OF N ET POSITION 
DECEM BER 31, 2016 

Amou nts reported for govern menta l activities i n  the 
statement of net position a re d ifferent beca use: 

Fund ba lance - tota l govern menta l fu nds 

Ca pita l assets used in  governmenta l activities 
are not fina nc ia l  resou rces a nd ,  therefore, 
a re not reported i n  the governmenta l fu nds. 

Govern menta l cap ita l assets 
Less accumu lated depreciation 

Long-term l iab i l ities a re not due  and paya ble in  
the c urrent period a nd, therefore ,  a re not 
reported i n  the fu nds. 

Certificates of pa rticipation 
Tax increment reven ue bonds 
Tax increment note payable 
Promissory notes paya ble 
Accrued i nterest paya ble 
Capita l lease payable 

Governmenta l fu nds report the effect of issua nce 
costs, premi u ms, and  discounts when the debt 
is fi rst issued,  whereas these amounts are 
deferred a nd amortized i n  the government­
wide statements. 

Bond d iscount 
Bond prem ium 
Unamortized payment to escrow agent for 

defeasance on long-term debt 
Bond cost, net of a mo rtization 

Com pensated absences are not due and paya ble 
i n  the current period a nd, therefore, a re not 
reported i n  the fun ds. 
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7, 798, 732 

39,550,306 
(16,653,985) 22,896,32 1 

(4,650,000) 
(6,585,000) 
(9,000,000) 

(126,602) 
(105,548) 

(98,744) (20,565,894) 

104,329 
(42 ,857)  

291,  750 353,222 

(260, 171) 



CITY OF HARR ISONVI LLE, M ISSOUR I  
R ECONCI LIATION OF THE  BALANCE S H EET OF GOVERN M ENTAL FU N DS 

TO TH E STATEM ENT OF N ET POSIT ION 
DECEM B ER 31, 2016 

Assets a re not ava i lab le to pay for current period 
expend itures and ,  therefore, a re deferred i n  
the govern menta l fu nds. 

Due from com ponent u n it for note paya ble 
and accrued i nterest 

The effects of GASB 68 to record the net pension 
asset ( l iab i l ity) a nd re lated deferred outflows and 
i nflows of resou rces are not reflected i n  the fu nd 
fi nanc ia l  statements. 

Net pension asset 
Deferred outflows of resou rces to be recogn ized 

in  futu re pension expense 

237 ,436 

2 ,670,467 

9, 105,547 

Deferred i nflows of resources to be recogn ized 
in future pension expense (476, 135) 2 ,431,768 

N ET POSITION OF GOVE R N M ENTAL ACTIVITI ES 2 1,759,525 

The notes to the fi nanc ia l  statements are an  i ntegra l part of th is statement. 

22 



CITY OF HARRISONVILLE, MISSOURI 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES 

IN FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT) - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016 

Sales Community Towne Emergency Total 

General Tax Center Center Services Non major Governmental 

Fund Fund Fund TIF Fund Fund Funds Funds 

REVENUES 

Taxes 

Property 664,317 144,052 159,371 967,740 

Sales 2,809,688 1,012,932 366,031 506,537 4,695,188 

Franchise 1,450,532 1,450,532 

Other 331,004 16,878 347,882 

Licenses, fees, and permits 189,068 189,068 

Charges for services 1,775,909 852,482 1,351,037 83,414 4,062,842 

Grants 485,312 485,312 
I\) Fines and forfeitures 222,035 222,035 
w 

Interest 54,969 792 25 150 687 56,623 

Proceeds from the sale of assets 21,925 5,143 27,068 

Miscellaneous 73,382 6,253 14,751 22,138 116,524 

Reimbursements 97,540 97,540 

Total revenues 8,175,681 1,013,724 858,760 510,233 1,877,468 282,488 12,718,354 

EXPENDITURES 

Current 

General Government 1,593,951 1,593,951 

Administration of Justice 2,568,837 2,568,837 

Street 837,799 837,799 

Economic Development 455,440 455,440 

Animal Control 178,943 178,943 

Airport 196,537 196,537 

Emergency Services 2,307,984 2,307,984 

Park 474,849 474,849 

Community Center 1,123,877 1,123,877 

Towne Center 7,075 7,075 



CITY OF HARRISONVILLE, MISSOURI 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES 

IN FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT) - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016 

Sales Community Towne Emergency Total 

General Tax Center Center Services Non major Governmental 

Fund Fund Fund TIF Fund Fund Funds Funds 

EXPENDITURES (Continued) 

Debt service 

Principal 45,262 25,464 335,000 700,000 1,105,726 

Interest 7,772 3,221 317,416 138,888 467,297 

Capital outlay 751,157 177,340 22,447 950,944 

Total expenditures 6,635,698 1,152,562 659,491 2,485,324 1,336,184 12,269,259 

REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDI-

TURES BEFORE OTHER FINANCING 
f\) 

SOURCES (USES) 1,539,983 1,013,724 (293,802) (149,258) (607,856) (1,053,696) 449,095 � 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 

Transfers in 137,735 130,500 684,500 1,081,663 2,034,398 

Transfers out (1,058,400) (975,998) (2,034,398) 

Total other financing sources (uses) (1,058,400) (975,998) 137,735 130,500 684,500 1,081,663 

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES 481,583 37,726 (156,067) (18,758) 76,644 27,967 449,095 

FUND BALANCES, January 1, 2016 5,663,266 109,125 104,652 922,107 136,459 414,028 7,349,637 

FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT), 

December 31, 2016 6,144,849 146,851 (51,415) 903,349 213,103 441,995 7,798,732 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 



CITY OF HARR ISONVI LLE, M ISSOUR I  
RECONCI LIATION OF TH E STATEM ENT OF R EVENUES, EXPENDITU R ES, 

AND CHANGES IN FU N D  BALANCES ( DEFIC IT) OF  GOVERN M ENTAL FU N DS 
TO TH E STATEM ENT OF ACTIVITI ES 
YEAR ENDED DECEM BER 31, 2016 

Amou nts reported for governmenta l activit ies in the statement 
of activities are d ifferent beca use: 

Net cha nge in fund  ba lances - tota l governmenta l fu nds 

Governmenta l funds report capita l outlays as expend itures. 
However, i n  the statement of a ctivities, the cost of those 
assets is a l located over their  esti mated usefu l l ives and  
reported as  depreciation expense. Th is is the amount 
by wh ich cap ita l outlay exceeded depreciation in the 
current period . 

Ca pita l outlay 
Depreciation 

Govern menta l funds report the proceeds from the d isposa l  of 
assets as revenues. However, i n  the statement of activities, 
the revenues are reported less the amount of nondepreciated 
cost. Th is is the a mou nt by which the cost exceeded any 
proceeds. 

Cost 
Accumu lated depreciation 

The issua nce of long-term debt (e.g. , bonds, loa ns, leases) 
provides cu rrent fi nanc ia l  resou rces to govern menta l 
fu nds,  whi le  the repayment of the princ ipa l  of long-term 
debt consumes the cu rrent fina nc ia l  resou rces of govern­
menta l funds. Also, governmenta l funds report the effect 
of issuance costs, premiums, d iscou nts, and s imi lar  items 
when debt is fi rst issued,  whereas these a mounts a re 
deferred and a mortized i n  the statement of activities . 
I n  the statement of activities, i nterest is accrued on out­
stand ing bonds, whereas i n  the govern menta l fu nds, a n  
i nterest expend itu re i s  reported when d ue .  The fo l lowi,ng 
is the deta i l  of the net effect of these d ifferences in the 
treatment of long-term debt and re lated items: 

Bond princ ipa l  payments 
Prom issory note princ ipa l  payments 
Certificates of pa rtic ipation princ ipa l  payments 
Ca pita l lease pri nc ipa l  payments 
Amortization of prem iums and  d iscou nts 

25 

449,095 

950,944 
(1,234,642) (283,698) 

(45,554) 
42, 190 (3,364) 

335,000 
25,464 

700,000 
45,262 

(59,265) 1,046,461 



CITY OF HARR ISONVI LLE, M ISSOUR I  
RECONCI LIATION OF TH E STATEM ENT OF R EVEN U ES, EXPEN D ITU R ES, 

AND CHAN G ES IN FU N D  BALANCES (DEFICIT) OF  GOVERNM ENTAL FU N DS 
TO TH E STATEM ENT OF ACTIVITI ES 
YEAR ENDED DECEM BER 31, 2016 

Some expenses in the statement of activities do not req u i re 
the use of cu rrent fi nancia l resou rces and ,  therefore, 
a re not reported as expend itu res in  governmenta l  fu nds. 

Compensated absences 

Govern menta l fu nds report payments req u i r�d for pension 
costs as expenditures. H owever, in the statement of 
activities, these costs are adj usted for the a ctuaria l  ba l­
ances of the net pension asset/l iab i l ity and deferred 
outflows and i nflows of resou rces. This is the a mou nt 
by wh ich the reported pension expense by the pension 
p lan was less than  the amou nts pa id  i nto the pla n .  

Pla n  payments made by the City 437,589 

34,670 

Pension expense reported by pension p lan (880,063) (442,4 7 4)  

CHANGE IN  N ET POSITI ON OF GOVERNM ENTAL ACTIVITI ES 800,690 

The notes to the fina nc ia l  statements are an i ntegra l part of th is statement. 
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ASSETS 
Current Assets 

Cash (cla im on cash)  
I nvestments 
Accounts receiva ble 
Due from other funds 
I nventories 
Prepa id i nsura nce 

Tota l current 
assets 

Noncurrent Assets 
Restricted cash 
Restricted i nvestments 
Due from fiducia ry fund 
Net pension asset 
Capita l assets 

La nd 
Construction�i n-

progress 
Other  ca pita l assets, 

net of accumulated 
depreciation 

Tota l noncurrent 
assets 

TOTAL ASSETS 

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF 
RESOU RCES 
Resources to be recogn ized 

in future pension 
expense 

TOTAL ASSETS AN D DEFERR ED 
OUTFLOWS OF R ESOU RCES 

CITY OF HARR ISONVI LLE, M ISSO U R I  
STATEM ENT O F  N ET POSIT ION 

PROPRI ETARY FU N DS 
DECE M B ER 31, 2016 

Water/ Non major 
Electric  Sewer Enterprise 

Fund Fund Funds 

665,214 (190, 161) 31, 558 
1,566,242 4, 101,541 
1,458,937 617,268 68,395 

102,980 
536,242 181, 117 

22 ,811 73,945 2,441 

4,352,426 4,783,710 102,394 

77,569 146,906 152,989 
624,000 1,422,832 
200,000 

33,278 62,370 

99,7 16 1,488,315 

386, 188 2,072,605 

6,5 16,815 24,690,632 599,2 12 

7,937,566 29,883,660 752 ,201 

12,289,992 34,667,370 854,595 

298,272 444,678 

12,588,264 35, 112,048 854,595 
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El i m i na-
tions Tota l 

506,611 
5,667, 783 
2 , 144, 600 

( 102,980) 
7 17 ,359 

99,197 

( 102 ,980) 9 , 135,550 

377,464 
2 ,046,832 

200,000 
95,648 

1,588,031 

2,458, 793 

31,806,659 

38,5 73,427 

(102,980) 47,708,977 

742,950 

(102,980) 48,451,927 



LIAB I LITI ES 
Cu rrent Lia b i l it ies 

Due to other fu nds 
Accounts payable 
Accrued expenses 
Deferred revenue 
Meter deposits 
Cu rrent portion of long-

term obl igations 

Tota l cu rrent 
l iab i l it ies 

Noncu rrent l iab i l ities 
Noncu rrent portion of 

long-term obl igations 

TOTAL LIABI LITI ES 

DEFERRED I N FLOWS OF 
RESOU RCES 
Resou rces to be recogn ized 

in future pension 
expense 

TOTAL LIAB I LITI ES AN D 
DEFERR ED I N FLOWS 
OF RESOU RCES 

N ET POSITION 
Net i nvestment in  

ca pita l assets 
Restricted for: 

Debt service 
Ca pita l im provements 

U n restricted (defic it) 

TOTAL N ET POSITIO N  

CITY OF HARR ISONVI LLE, M ISSOUR I  
STATEM ENT OF NET POSITION 

PROPR I ETARY FU N DS 
DECEM BER 31, 2016 

Water/ Non major 
Electric Sewer Enterprise 

Fund Fund Fu nds 

102,980 
696,311 92,195 2 , 109 

25,231 31,390 
91,911 

888,7 19 

2 13 ,765 843,579 

1,915,937 967, 164 105,089 

732,636 6,770,077 

2,648,573 7 ,737 ,241 105,089 

26,832 40,003 

2 ,675,405 7 ,777 ,244 105 ,089 

5,706,469 20,7 15,046 599 ,212 

701,569 1,569,738 
152 ,989 

3,504,82 1 5,050,020 (2 ,695) 

9 ,912 ,859 27 ,334,804 749,506 

E l im ina-
tions 

(102,980) 

(102,980) 

(102,980) 

(102,980) 

The notes to the fi nanc ia l  statements a re an i ntegra l pa rt of this statement. 

28 

Tota l 

790,615 
56,621 
91,911 

888,719 

1,057 ,344 

2,885,210 

7 ,502,713 

10,387,923 

66,835 

10,454,758 

27,020,727 

2 ,271,307 
152 ,989 

8,552, 146 

37,997, 169 



CITY OF HARRISONVI LLE, M ISSO U R I  
STATEM ENT OF R EVEN U ES, EXPENSES, A N D  

CHAN G ES I N  FU N D  N ET POS ITION 
PROPRI ETARY FU N DS 

YEAR ENDED DECEM BER 31,  2016 

Electric Water/Sewer 
Fund Fund 

REVE N U ES 
Charges for services 11,328, 726 4,864,960 

EXPENSES 
Prod uction 1,238,541 
Distribution 8,176,252 666,993 
Ad m i n istration 2 ,719,205 961, 176 
Depreciation 305, 175 933, 705 

Tota l expenses 11,200,632 3,800,415 

I NCOM E  ( LOSS) FROM OPERATIONS 128,094 1,064,545 

NONOPERATING I NCOM E  (EXPENSE) 
Gain on sa le of assets 1,886 8,973 
Other i ncome 7,661 4 1,960 
I nterest i ncome 37, 758 208,044 
I nterest expense (49,32 1) (278,962) 

Tota l nonoperati ng income 
(expense) (2 ,016) ( 19,985) 

CHAN G E  IN N ET POSITION 126,078 1,044,560 

TOTAL N ET POSITION ,  begin n i ng 
of yea r 9, 786,781 26,290,244 

TOTAL N ET POSITION ,  end of yea r 9 ,912 ,859 27,334,804 

Non major 
Enterprise 

Funds 

652,432 

679,933 
87,660 

767,593 

(115, 161) 

527 

527 

(114,634) 

864, 140 

749,506 

The notes to the fi na ncia l  statements a re a n  i ntegra l pa rt of th is statement. 
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Tota l 

16,846, 118 

1,238,541 
8,843, 245 
4,360,314 
1,326,540 

15,768,640 

1,07 7,478 

10,859 
49,62 1 

246,329 
(328,283) 

(21,474) 

1,056,004 

36,941, 165 

37,997 ,169 



CITY OF HARR ISONVI LLE, M ISSO U RI 
STATEM ENT OF CASH FLOWS 

PROPRI ETARY FU NDS 
YEAR ENDED DECEM BER 31, 2016 

Electric Water/Sewer 
Fund Fund 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING 
ACTIVITI ES 
Cash received from customers 11,259,249 4,822 ,901 
Cash payments to suppl iers (10,204,800) (2 ,220,445) 
Cash payments to em ployees (615,700) (830,274) 

Net cash provided by (used i n )  
operati ng activities 438, 749 1, 772 ,182 

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL 
Fl NANCI NG ACT I VITI  ES 
Due to/from other funds (28,025) 

Net cash provided by (used i n )  
noncap ita l fi nanc ing activities (28,025) 

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND 
RELATED FI NANC ING ACTIVITI ES 
Acqu isition and construction of 

ca pita l  assets (197,588) (1,259,898) 
Other  i ncome 7,661 41,960 
Proceeds from the sa le of assets 1,886 8,973 
Payments of long-term debt (200,000) (693,976) 
I nterest pa id on bonds (48,086) (290,516) 

Net cash used in  capita l  and 
related fina ncing activities (436, 127) (2 ,193,457) 

CASH FLOWS FROM I NVESTING 
ACTIVITIES 
Net i nvestment activity 619,682 38, 7 11 
I nterest on i nvestments 37, 758 208,044 

Net cash provided by i nvesti ng 
activities 657 ,440 246,755 

N ET I NCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH 632,037 (174,520) 
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Non major 
Enterprise 

Fu nds Tota l 

649,419 16, 731,569 
(606,601) (13,031,846) 

(73,061) (1 ,519,035) 

(30,243) 2 , 180,688 

28,025 

28,025 

(1, 197)  (1,458,683) 
49,621 
10,859 

(893,976) 
(338,602) 

(1, 197) (2 ,630, 781) 

151,7 17 810,110 
527 246,329 

152 ,244 1,056,439 

148,829 606,346 



CITY OF HARR ISONVI LLE, M ISSOUR I  
STATEM ENT OF CASH FLOWS 

PROPRI ETARY FU N DS 
YEAR EN DED DECEM B ER 31, 2016 

E lectric Water/Sewer 
Fund Fund 

CASH,  Ja nuary 1, 2016 110,746 131,265 

CASH (CLAI M ON CASH) ,  
December 31 ,  2016 742, 783 (43,255) 

ALLOCATION OF CASH 
U n restricted 665,214 (190, 161) 
Restricted 77 ,569 146,906 

742 ,783 (43,255) 

Reconci l iation of I ncome (Loss) From 
Operations to Net Cash Provided by 
(Used in )  O perati ng Activities 

I n come ( loss) from operations 128,094 1,064,545 

Adjustments to reconci le i ncome 
( loss) to net cash provided by 
(used i n )  operati ng activities: 
Depreciation 305,175 933, 705 
( I ncrease) Decrease in assets: 

Accou nts receiva ble (116,2 76) (42 ,059) 
I nventories (18,575) 6,267 
Prepaid expenses 541 (35,259) 
Net pension asset a nd re lated 

deferred outflows and inflows 
of resou rces 57 ,824 84,632 

I ncrease (Decrease) i n  l iab i l ities: 
Accou nts paya ble 38, 721 (245,018) 
Accrued expenses (535) 3,004 
Com pensated a bsences (3,019) 2 ,365 
Unea rned revenue (10,307) 
Meter deposits paya ble 57 ,106 

Tota l adjustments 310,655 707,637 

Net cash provided by  (used i n )  
operati ng activities 438, 749 1,772 ,182 

Non major 
Enterprise 

Funds 

35, 718 

184,547 

31,558 
152,989 
184,547 

( 115, 161) 

87 ,660 

(3,013)  

(114) 

385 

84,918 

(30, 243) 

The notes to the fi nanc ia l  statements a re a n  integra l part of th is statement. 
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Tota l 

277, 729 

884,075 

506,611 
377 ,464 
884,075 

1,077 ,478 

1,326,540 

( 161,348) 
(12 ,308) 
(34,832) 

142,456 

(205,912) 
2 ,469 

(654) 
(10,307) 
57 ,106 

1, 103,210 

2, 180,688 



ASSETS 

CITY OF HARR ISONVI LLE, M ISSOUR I  
STATEM ENT OF N ET POSITION 

FI DUCIARY FU N DS 
DECEM BER 31, 2016 

Hospita l 
I nterchange 

TDD 

Cash (cla i m  on cash)  and cash equ iva lents 3,268 
Taxes receivable 

TOTAL ASSETS (DEFICIT) 3 ,268 

LIAB I LITI ES 
Deposits held for Hospita l  I ntercha nge TDD 3,268 
Due to City of Ha rrisonvi l le 
Accounts payable 

TOTAL LIAB I L IT IES 3,268 

N ET POS ITIO N  (DEFICIT) 

The notes to the fi nanc ia l  statements are an i ntegra l pa rt of th is statement. 
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H ighways 
7 1/291 

TDD Tota l 

(172,074) ( 168,806) 
93, 768 93, 768 

(78,306) (75,038) 

3 ,268 
200,000 200,000 

2 7 ,682 27 ,682 

227 ,682 230,950 

(305,988) (305,988) 



CITY OF HARR ISONVI LLE, M ISSOUR I  
NOTES TO FI NANCIAL STATEM ENTS 

NOTE 1. SUM MARY OF S IG N I F ICANT ACCOUNTI NG POL IC IES 

The fi nancia l statements of the City of Harrisonvi l le, M issour i ,  have been prepared in  con­
form ity with accou nti ng pr inc i p les genera l ly accepted in  the U n ited States of Ame rica 
(GAAP) as app l ied to govern ment u n its. The Governmenta l Accounting Sta ndards Boa rd is 
the accepted standa rd-setting body for establ ish ing governmenta l  accou nting a n d  financ ia l  
reporti ng pri nci p les. The more sign ifica nt of the City's accou nti ng pol ic ies are d escribed 
below. 

A. REPORTING ENTITY 

The City of Ha rrisonvi l le, M issouri ,  is a fou rth-cJass city i n  wh ich citizens elect the Mayor 
at la rge and eight cou nc i l  members by wa rds. The accom panyi ng financia l  statements 
present the City's pr i mary government a nd any component u n its over which the City ex­
ercises sign ificant i nfl uence. S ign ificant i nfluence or accou ntabi l ity is based prima ri ly on 
operational  or fina nc ia l re lationsh i ps with the City (as d isti nct from legal relationsh ips).  
In determ i n ing the fi nanc ia l  reporting entity, the City com pl ies with the provis ions of 
Govern menta l Accounting Standa rds Board Statement No.  14, The Financial Reporting 

Entity, a nd i nc ludes a l l  component u n its of which the City a ppointed a voti ng majority of 
the un its' boa rd and the City is either a ble to i m pose its wi l l  on  the u n it or a fi nanc ia l  
benefit or burden exists. 

The City has developed criteria to determ i ne whether outside agencies with a ctivities 
wh ich benefit the citizens of the City, i nc lud ing joi nt agreements, shou ld be i nc luded 
with in  its fi nanc ia l  reporti ng entity. The criteria i nclude,  but a re not l i m ited to, whether 
the City exercises oversight responsi bi l ity, which i nc ludes financia l i nterdependency, 
selection of govern i ng a uthority, designation of management, ab i l ity to sign ificantly i n­
fl uence operations,  a nd accountab i l ity for fisca l matters, scope of pub l ic  service, and 
specia l fi nancing re lationsh i ps. Com ponent u n its are reported in  the City's fi nancia l  
statements as fo l lows: 

D iscretely Presented Component U n it 

A d iscretely presented component un it is a separate lega l entity that meets the 
com ponent u n it criteria .  Th is criteria inc ludes the a bi l ity to im pose its wi l l  on or sig­
n ifica ntly i nfluence the orga nization or if a fi nanc ia l  benefit or burden re lationsh ip  
exists. 

The Ma rket Place T IF  D istrict Fund accounts for the revenues and  expenses associ­
ated with the Ma rket Place Redevelopment Project. 
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CITY OF HAR R ISONVI LLE, M ISSOU R I  
NOTES TO FI NANCIAL STATEM ENTS 

NOTE 1. SUM MARY OF S IGN I F ICANT ACCO U NTI NG POLICI ES (Contin u ed)  

A .  REPORT I NG ENTITY (Contin ued) 

B lended Component Un its 

I n  add ition to the criteria noted a bove, a b lended com ponent u n it's govern ing body 
is the same or su bsta ntia l ly the sa me as the City's Board of Alderm�n ,  or the com­
ponent u n it provides services enti rely to the City. The com ponent u·n it's fu nds are 
b lended i nto those of the City by appropriate fund type to constitute the pri mary 
government presentation.  

The Towne Center T IF  Fund accou nts for proceeds of the TI F notes issued to pay for 
the Towne Center Redevelopment Project a long with the tax proceeds a nd uses 
generated by the District. The City has not adopted an a n n ua l  budget for th is fu nd .  

B .  GOVER N M ENT-WIDE AND FU N D  FI NANCIAL STATEM ENTS 

The government-wide financ ia l  statements ( i .e ., the statement of net position a nd the 
statement of activities) report i nformation on al l of the activities of the City except the 
fid uc iary funds. Governmenta l activities, wh ich norma l ly are su pported by taxes and 
i ntergovernmenta l revenues, a re reported separately from business-type activities, 
which re ly to a sign ificant extent on fees and cha rges for support. 

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to wh ich the d i rect expenses of 
a given fu nction are offset by progra m revenues.  D i rect expenses a re those that are 
c lea rly identifiable with a specific fu nction.  Program reven ues i ncl ude ( 1) cha rges to 
customers or appl ica nts who pu rchase, use, or d i rectly benefit from the goods, ser­
vices, or priv i leges provided by a given function and (2) gra nts a nd contri butions that 
a re restricted to meeting the operational  or cap ita l requ i rements of a particu lar fu nc­
tion .  Taxes and other items not properly i ncluded a mong progra m reven ues a re re­
ported i nstead as genera l  reven ues.  

Separate financ ia l  statements are provided for govern menta l and proprietary fu nds. 
M ajor i nd ivid ua l  funds are reported as sepa rate columns in  the fu nd fi nancia l  state­
ments. A fund is considered major if it is the primary operati ng fund  of the City or 
meets the fo l lowing criteria : 

a . Tota l assets, l iab i l ities, reven ues, or expend itures/expenses of that ind ividua l  
governmenta l or proprietary fund are at  least 10 percent of the correspond­
i ng tota l for a l l  funds of that category or type, and 

b .  Tota l assets, l iabi l ities, revenues, or expend itures/expenses of the ind ividua l  
governmenta l or enterprise fund are at least 5 percent of the correspond ing 
tota l for al l  governmenta l and enterprise funds com bined.  
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CITY OF HARR ISONVI LLE, M ISSOUR I  
NOTES TO FI NANCIAL STATEM ENTS 

NOTE 1. SUM MARY OF S IG N I FI CANT ACCOU NTI NG POLICI ES (Conti n ued) 

B.  GOVERNM ENT-WIDE AN D FU ND FI NANCIAL STATEM ENTS (Contin ued) 

The government reports the fo l lowing major governmenta l fu nds: 

Genera l  Fund - Th is fu nd  is the govern ment's primary operati ng fu nd.  It accounts 
for a l l  fi na ncia l resou rces of the genera l  government, except those requ i red to be 
accounted for i n  another fu nd .  

Sa les Tax Fund -The Sa les Tax Fund is used to accum u late revenues from a spe­
c ia l  sa les tax for ca pita l improvements. 

Com mun ity Center Fund - This fund  is responsible  for the operations of the City's 
Comm un ity Center. The fund is fi nanced by cha rges for services. 

Towne Center TI F Fu nd - Th is fu nd accou nts for the proceeds of the T IF  notes is­
sued to pay for the Towne Center Redevelopment Project a long with the tax pro­
ceeds a nd uses gen erated by the District. The City has not adopted an a n n ua l  
budget for th is fund.  

Emergency Services Fu nd - Th is fu nd is responsib le for the operations of the City's 
e mergency services. The fu nd  is fi nanced by taxes and  emergency serv ice reve­
n ues. 

The government reports the fo l lowing major proprieta ry funds: 

Electric Fund - The E lectric Fund accou nts for the bi l l i ng a nd col lection of cha rges 
for electric  service for most city residents. Revenues are used to pay for both op­
erations a nd ca pita l outlay to mainta i n  th is service. 

Water and Sewer Fund - The Water and Sewer Fu nd accounts for the bi l l i ng and col­
lection of charges for water and san ita ry sewer services to the residents of the City 
a nd a l im ited nu mber of customers outside of city l i m its. Al l activities necessary to 
provide such services a re accou nted for i n  th is fu nd .  

Add itiona l ly, the government reports the fo l lowi ng nonmajor funds:  

Governmenta l Funds 

Pa rk Fund - The Park Fund is pri mari ly used for the ma intenance of the City's parks. 
The fund is fina nced by property a nd l i cense fees. 

Debt Service Fund - The Debt Service Fund is used to account for the accumu lation 
of fi nanc ia l  resou rces for, and the payment of, the pri nc ipa l  and interest for the 2012 
Certificates of Pa rtic i pation which were issued for the use i n  the adva nce refund ing 
of the 2003 Certificates of Pa rtici pation.  
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CITY O F  HARR ISONVI LLE, M ISSOU RI 
NOTES TO F I NANCIAL STATEM ENTS 

NOTE 1. SUM MARY OF SIG N I FICANT ACCOU NTI NG POLICI ES (Conti nued) 

B.  GOVER N M ENT-WIDE AND FU N D  F I NANCIAL STATEM ENTS (Conti n ued) 

Proprieta ry Fu nds 

Aq uatic Center Fund - The Aq uatic Center Fund is used to accou nt for the operations 
of the Aq uatic Center. 

Refuse Fund - The Refuse Fund is used to accou nt for the provis ion of refuse col­
lection to the residents of the City. Al l  activities necessary to provide such services 
a re accou nted for i n  this fun d .  

Fid uciary Funds 

Th is fun d  accounts for the City's fiducia ry respons ib i l ity to track recei pts a nd d is­
bursements associated with the H ighway 7 1/291 Partners in Progress TDD and 
the Hospita l I nterchange TDD. 

C. M EASUREM ENT FOCUS, BASIS OF ACCOUNTI NG,  AN D BAS IS OF PRESENTATION 

The govern ment-wide financia l statements a re reported using the economic resou rces 
ma nagement focus and the accrua l  basis of accounti ng. Revenues a re recorded when 
ea rned and expenses a re recorded when a l iab i l ity is i ncu rred , rega rd less of the ti m ing 
of the related cash flows. Grants and s im i lar  items are recogn ized as reven ue as soon 
as a l l  e l igib i l ity req u i rements i mposed by the provider have been met. 

Governmenta l fu nd fi nancia l  statements a re reported usi ng cu rrent fi na ncial  resou rces 
measurement focus a nd the mod ified accrual basis of accou nting. Revenues a re rec­
ogn ized as soon as they are both measura ble and ava i la ble .  Revenues a re considered 
to be ava i la ble  when they a re col lectible with the current period or soon enough there­
after to pay l i ab i l ities of the cu rrent period . For th is pu rpose, the City considers reve­
nues to be ava i lable if they are co l lected with i n  60 days of the end of the cu rrent period . 
Expend itu res genera l ly a re recorded when a l ia bi l ity is incurred ,  as u nder accrual ac­
cou nti ng. However, debt service expend itu res, as wel l  as expenditures related to com­
pensated a bsences a nd c la i ms a nd j udgments, a re recorded on ly when payment is due.  

Property tax, sa les taxes, fra nch ise taxes, l icenses, and i nterest associated with the 
current period a re a l l  considered to be susceptib le to accrual  and so have been recog­
n ized as revenues of the cu rrent period. Al l other revenue items a re considered to be 
measurable and ava i lab le on ly when cash is received by the City. 

Proprietary funds d istinguish operating revenues a nd expenses from nonoperating 
items. Operating revenues and expenses genera l ly resu lt from provid ing services 
and producing a nd del iveri ng goods in conn ection with the fu nd's pri nci pa l  ongoing 
operations. 
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NOTE 1. SUM MARY OF SIG N I F ICANT ACCO U NTING POLICI ES (Continued)  

C. M EASU REM ENT FOCUS, BAS IS OF ACCO U NTING,  AN D BASIS OF PRESENTATION 
(Conti nued) 

When both restricted and u n restricted resources are ava i lab le for use, it is the City's 
pol i cy to use restricted resou rces fi rst, a nd then un restricted resou rces as they a re 
needed.  

As a genera l  ru le ,  the effect of i nterfu nd activity has been e l im inated from the govern­
ment-wide financia l statements. Exceptions to this genera l ru le a re payments i n  l ieu  of 
taxes and other cha rges between the government's water and  sewer function and  vari­
ous other functions of the government. E l im ination of these charges wou ld d istort the 
d i rect costs and program revenues reported for the various functions concerned.  

D. BUDGETS 

Budgets for the City a re prepared and adopted on the cash basis of accounting for a l l  
govern menta l and proprietary fu nds. The City Adm in istrator may make transfers of 
a ppropriations with i n  a depa rtment. Transfers of a ppropriations between funds req u i re 
the a pprova l of the govern ing counc i l .  The Boa rd of Aldermen approved a mend ments 
to the budget d u ring the year. The actua l  resu lts of operations are presented i n  com­
parison to the budgets on the combined statement of revenues, expend itures, and  
changes i n  fund balances - budget a nd actua l  - a l l  governmental fund types. Al l gov­
ernmenta l fu nds have a lega l ly adopted annua l  budget. Appropriations lapse at yea r­
end but may be reappropriated i n  the fol lowing yea r. 

E. CASH AN D I NVESTM ENTS 

For the pu rpose of the statement of cash flows, the City considers a l l  h igh ly l i qu id  in­
vestments ( includ ing restricted assets except for those held by trustees) with a maturity 
of th ree months or less when pu rchased to be cash eq u iva lents, a long with demand 
deposits and certificates of deposit. As of December 3 1, 2016, the City had no cash 
equ iva lents. 

The City's i nvestment pol icies are structu red to conform to M issouri Statute 30.270. 
The City is authorized to invest in U .S.  Treasu ry obl igatio ns, U .S. government agency 
securities and instru ments of government-sponsored corporations, certificates of de­
posit at commercia l  banks and S & L associations, and repurchase agreements. I n­
vestments are reported at fa i r  va l ue. 

F.  R ESTR ICTED CASH AND I NVESTM ENTS 

Certa i n  cash and investment accounts ·a re restricted for construction projects, debt 
service, and com pl ia nce with bond covenants. Assets a re a lso restricted in the pro­
prieta ry fu nds for refu nd ing customer meter deposits. 
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NOTE 1. S U M MARY OF SIG N I FI CANT ACCOU NTI NG POLICI ES (Contin ued) 

G .  I NTERFU N D  TRANSACTIONS 

During the cou rse of normal operations, the C ity has transactions between funds, i n­
c lud ing expend itures and  transfers of resources, to provide services a nd construct 
assets. Lega l ly authorized tra nsfers a re treated as operating transfers and a re i n­
c luded i n  the resu lts of operations for both governmenta l and pro prietary fu nds. 

H. PREPAI DS AN D I NVENTO R I ES 

Prepa id  balances a re for payments made by the City i n  the cu rrent yea r to provid e  ser­
vices occurri ng in the subseq uent fisca l yea r, a nd the reserve for prepa id items has 
been recogn ized to sign ify that a portion of fu nd ba lance is not ava i la ble for other  sub­
seq uent expend itu res. 

I nventories, consisting of mater ia ls and su ppl i es, a re va l ued at lower of cost or ma rket. 
Cost is determined using fi rst-i n ,  fi rst-out (F IFO) basis. 

I. CAPITAL ASSETS 

Prior  to GASB Statement No.  34, ca pita l assets for governmental  fu nds were recorded 
in the Genera l  Fixed Asset Account Group and were not depreciated .  The new model 
req u i res that al l  ca p ita l assets, whether owned by govern mental  activities or bus iness­
type activities,  be recorded and depreciated i n  the govern ment-wide fi nancia l  state­
ments. 

Cap ita l assets, includ ing infrastructure,  a re defined as assets with a n  i n it ial cost of 
$5,000 or more and a n  estimated usefu l l ife of more tha n  one yea r. Cap ita l assets 
are stated at cost or at esti mated fa ir  va lue  at ti me of donation.  

Major expend itu res for property and those wh ich substa ntia l ly increase usefu l l ives are 
cap ita l ized . Ma intenance, repa i rs, and m i nor renewa ls a re expensed when incu rred . 
When ca pita l assets are reti red or otherwise d isposed of, the i r  costs and re lated accu­
m u lated depreciation a re removed from the accou nts and resu lti ng ga ins or losses are 
i ncl uded i n  i ncome. 

Genera l  i nfrastructu re assets acq u i red prior to Jan ua ry 1, 2003, a re not reported in  the 
basic fi nancia l statements. Genera l  i nfrastructu re assets i ncl ude a l l  roads, br idges, 
and other infrastructu re assets acqu i red subsequent to Ja nua ry 1, 2003. 

Depreciation of bu i ld i ngs, eq u i pment, a nd veh icles is com puted using the stra ight-l ine 
method over the fol lowing esti mated usefu l l ives: 

Bu i ld ings and processing fac i l it ies 
Mach inery a nd equ i pment 
Street i nfrastructure 
Tra nsm ission l i nes and ma ins 
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CITY OF HARR ISONVI LLE, M ISSO U R I  
NOTES T O  FI NANCIAL STATEM ENTS 

NOTE 1. SUM MARY OF SIG N I F ICANT ACCOUNTI NG POLIC I ES (Contin ued) 

J .  COM PENSATED ABSENCES 

Com pensated a bsences a re accrued when i ncu rred in  the government-wide and pro­
prietary fu nd fi nancia l statements a nd a re i nc luded as a part of long-term l ia bi l ities . A 
l iab i l ity for these amounts is reported in  governmenta l funds on ly if they have matu red ,  
for example,  as a resu lt of employee resignations a nd reti rements. The amount of ac­
crued vacation benefits i ncl uded in the government-wide financia l  statements, re lated 
to governmenta l activities , for the yea r ended December 31, 2016, is $ 260, 171.  
Business-type activity funds reported accrued vacation benefits for the year ended 
December 3 1, 2016, of $ 113,486. 

K. LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS AND BOND DISCOU NTS/PREM I U MS 

I n  the govern ment-wide and proprietary fund financia l  statements, outsta nd ing debt 
is reported as l iab i l ities. Bond d iscounts or prem i u ms a re ca pita l ized a nd a mortized 
over the terms of the respective bonds usi ng a method that approximates the effec­
tive i nterest method. 

The govern menta l fu nd fi nancia l statements recogn ize the proceeds of debt and 
prem iums as other fi nancing sou rces of the cu rrent period. 

L. N ET POSITION 

Government-Wide Statements 

Net position is d isplayed in  th ree components: 

N et i nvestment in ca pita l assets consists of cap ita l assets i nc lud i ng restricted cap­
ita l assets, n et of accumu lated depreciation and  reduced by the outstand ing bal­
ances of a ny bonds, mortgages, notes, or other  borrowings that a re attributable to 
the acqu isition ,  construction,  or im provem ent of those assets. 

Restricted net position consists of net position with constra ints placed on the use 
e ither by externa l grou ps,  such as cred itors, grantors, contri butors, or laws and 
regu lations of other governments, or th rough constitt.Jtional  provision or e nabl i ng 
legislation .  

U n restricted net position does not meet the defin ition of restricted . 

Fund Statements 

The govern menta l fu nd fi na ncia l  statements present fund  ba lances based o n  classi­
fications that comprise a h ierarchy that is based pr i mari ly on the extent to wh ich the 
City is bound to honor constra i nts on the specific purposes for wh ich amounts in the 
respective governmenta l fu nds can be spent. 

39 



CITY OF HARR ISONVI LLE, M ISSO U R I  
NOTES T O  F I NANCIAL STATEM ENTS 

NOTE 1. SU M MARY O F  SIG N I F ICANT ACCOU NTI NG POLIC IES (Contin ued) 

L. NET POSITION (Contin ued) 

Fund Statements (Continued) 

The classifications used i n  the governmenta l fu nd fi na ncia l statements are as fo l lows: 

Nonspendable 

Th is classification i ncludes amounts that can not be spent because they e ither (a) 
a re not in spendable form or ( b) a re lega l ly or contractua l ly requ i red to be ma in­
ta ined i ntact. 

Restricted 

Th is classification  i ncl udes amounts for wh ich constrai nts have been placed on 
the use of the resou rces either  by externa l groups such as cred itors (such as 
th rough a debt covena nt), grantors, contri butors, or laws a nd regu lations of other 
governments, or by law th rough constitutional  provisions or enab l ing legislation.  

Comm itted 

This classification i ncludes amounts that can be used on ly for specific purposes 
pursuant to constra ints imposed by formal action of the Board of Aldermen .  
These a mou nts can not b e  used for a ny other pu rpose un less the Counci l removes 
or changes the specified use by taking the same type of action (ord inance or reso­
l ution)  that was employed when the fu nds were i n itia l ly com m itted . This classifi­
cation a lso i nc ludes contractua l  obl igations to the extent that existi ng resources 
have been specifica l ly com m itted for use in satisfying those contractual req u i re­
ments. The City cu rrently has no amou nts classified in th is category. 

Assigned 

This classification i ncludes amounts that a re constra ined by the City's intent to be 
used for a specific purpose but a re neither restricted nor comm itted . This i ntent 
can be expressed by the Boa rd of Aldermen or through the Boa rd delegating th is 
respons ib i l ity to the City Ad m i n istrator through the budgetary process. 

U nassigned 

Th is c lassification i ncludes the residua l  fund ba lance for the Genera l  Fund a nd 
a ny deficit ba lance i n  a ny other  fund.  

The City wou ld  typica l ly use restricted fund  ba la nces fi rst, fo l lowed by comm itted re­
sou rces, a nd then assigned resou rces, as a ppropriate opportu n ities a rise, but reserves 
the right to selectively spend unassigned resources fi rst to defer the use of these other 
classified fu nds.  
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NOTE 1. S U M MARY OF S IG N I FICANT ACCO U NTI NG POLICI ES (Contin ued) 

M .  USE O F  ESTI MATES 

The preparation of fi nancia l  statements in conform ity with accounti ng princi p les gen­
era l ly accepted in the U n ites States of America req u i res management to make esti­
mates and assu m ptions that affect the reported a mou nts of assets a nd l ia bi l ities and 
d isclosure of conti ngent assets a nd l iab i l it ies at  the date of the financ ia l  statements 
and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period . Ac­
tua l resu lts cou ld  d iffer from those esti mates. The more sign ifica nt estimates i n  the 
financ ia l  statements are a l lowance for bad debts, depreciation ,  a nd accrued l ia bi l ities. 

N .  DEFER R ED OUTFLOWS A N D  I N FLOWS OF R ESOURCES 

The City reports i ncreases and decreases i n  net assets that re late to future periods 
as deferred outflows and inflows of resou rces in a separate section of its govern ment­
wide and proprietary fu nds statements of net position .  The City has severa l ca lcula­
tions re lated to its pension p lan that qua l ify for reporti ng in these categories in addi­
tion to the amounts i nc luded in  the current year's fi na ncia l statements that a re the 
resu lt of prior yea r  refunded debt for the origi na l  issues' d iscou nts and/or p rem iums 
which a re bei ng a mortized over the rema i n ing l ife of the origi na l  debt as a part of i n­
terest expense . 

0 .  R EVENUES 

B i l l i ngs for uti l ity services are rendered on a month ly basis. U nb i l led revenues from 
the last b i l l i ng date to the end of the period are accrued in  the period of usage a nd 
i ncluded in accounts receiva ble.  

Amounts reported as progra m revenues inc lude (1) cha rges to customers or  app l ica nts 
for goods, services, o r  privi leges provided, (2)  operating grants and contr ibutions, and 
(3)  capita l gra nts and contri butions, inc lud ing special  assessments. I nterna l ly dedicated 
resou rces a re reported as genera l  revenues rather than  as program revenues.  Li kewise, 
genera l  revenues inc lude a l l  taxes. 

P. I NTERNAL AN D I NTERFU N D  BALANCES AND ACTIVITI ES 

I n  the process of aggregating the financia l  i nformation for the govern ment-wide 
statement of net position a nd statement of activit ies, some a mounts reported as in­
terfu nd activity and  ba la nces in  the fund fi nancia l statements have been e l im inated 
or reclassified . 
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NOTE 1 .  SU M MARY OF SIG N I F ICANT ACCO U NTI NG POLIC I ES (Contin ued) 

P. I NTERNAL AN D I NTER FU ND BALANCES AND ACTIVIT IES (Conti n ued) 

Fu nd  Financial  Statements 

l nterfund activity, if any, with in and ·among the governmenta l a nd proprieta ry fund  
categories is reported as  fo l lows in  the fu nd financia l  statements: 

1 .  l nterfu nd loa ns - Amounts provided with a req u i rement for repayment a re re­
ported as i nte rfu nd receiva bles a nd payables. 

2 .  l nterfund services - Sa les o r  purchases of goods a n d  services between funds 
a re reported as revenues and expend itu res/expenses. 

3. l nterfu nd re imbursements - Repayments from fu nds responsib le for certa in  
expend itu res/expense to the fu nds that i n itia l ly pa id for them a re not reported 
as re i m bu rsements but as adj ustments to expend itures/expenses in the re­
spective fu nds. 

4. l nterfund transfers - Flow of assets from one fu nd  to a nother where repayment 
is not expected are reported as tra nsfers i n  and out. 

Government-Wide Financia l Statements 

l nterfund activity a nd ba lances, if a ny, a re e l im inated or reclassified i n  the govern­
ment-wide fina ncia l statements as fo l lows: 

1 .  l nterfund ba lances - Amounts reported i n  the fu nd financia l statements as 
i nterfu nd receiva bles and payables are e l im i nated in  the governmenta l a nd 
business-type activities colu m ns of the statement of n et position ,  except for 
the net res idua l  amou nts due between govern menta l a nd bus iness-type activi­
ties, which a re reported as I nternal Ba lances. 

2 .  I nterna l activities - Amounts reported a s  interfund  tra nsfers i n  the fund finan­
cia l  statements a re el i m inated in  the government-wide statement of activities 
except for the net amount of transfers between governmenta l a nd business­
type activities. The effects of i nterfu nd  services between funds, if any, are not 
e l im inated i n  the statement of activities. 

NOTE 2 .  CASH A N D  I NVESTMENTS 

Cas h  

Custod ia l  cred it risk for deposits i s  the risk that i n  the event of ba n k  fa i l u re ,  the City's de­
posits m ay not be retu rned or the City w i l l  not be a ble  to recover co l latera l secu rities i n  
the possession of a n  outside pa rty. The City's ban k  deposits are req u i red by state law to 
be secu red by the deposit of certa i n  secu rities specified at RSMo 30.270 with the City or 
trustee i nstitution .  The va l ue of the securities must amou nt to the tota l of the City's cash 
not i nsu red by the Federa l  Deposit I nsurance Corporation .  

As of December 31,  2016, a l l  of the City's deposits with fi nancia l  i nstitutions were fu l ly 
insured or col latera l i zed . 
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N OTE 2 .  CASH AND I NVESTM ENTS (Contin ued) 

I nvestments 

The City's i nvestments at December 31, 2016, a re summarized below: 

I nvestment 

I nvestments held by trustee (Bond Reserves) 
Money market fu nds 

Certificates of deposit 
Federa l  Fa rm Cred it Ba n k  (AAA) 
Fede ra l  Home Loan Ba n k  (AAA) 
Federa l  Home Loa n  Mortgage Corporation (AAA) 
Fredd ie Mac 
Federa l  National  Mortgage Association (AAA) 

Matu rities 
Less tha n six months 
Six months to one year  
Over one yea r 

I nterest Rate Risk 

Un restricted 

8,346,645 
614,317 
5 18, 703 
620,919 
299,568 
252,079 

Restricted 

496,942 
871,000 
500,000 

178,890 

10,652 ,231 2 ,046,832 

1,828,724 
1,073,477 
7 ,750,030 

10,652,231 

496,942 
675,890 
874,000 

2,046,832 

As a mea ns of l im iting its exposure to fa ir  va l ue losses aris i ng from ris ing i nterest rates, 
the City's investment pol icy l im its the City's i nvestment portfo l io to maturities of less tha n 
two yea rs without prior  a pprova l of the Boa rd of Aldermen.  

Cred it R isk 

The City's genera l  i nvestment pol icy is to app ly the prudent-person ru le :  I nvestments are 
made as a prudent person wou ld be expected to act, with d iscretion and i nte l l ige nce, to 
seek reasona ble i ncome, preserve ca pita l ,  and ,  i n  genera l ,  avoid speculative i nvestments. 

Concentration of Cred it R isk 

The City wi l l  d iversify use of i nvestment i nstruments to avoid incu rr ing un reasona ble risks i n­
herent i n  overi nvesti ng in  specific instru ments, i nd ividua l  fi nancia l i nstitutions, or matu rities. 
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NOTE 2 .  CASH AN D I NVESTMENTS (Contin ued) 

Concentration of Cred it R isk (Conti nued) 

I nvestments wi l l  be l im ited to the instruments l isted below, u n less a pproved by the Board 
of Aldermen.  

I nvestment I nstrument 

U .S. Treasu ry Obl igations 
U .S. Govern ment Agency Secu rities 

I nstru ments of Government-Sponsored Corporations 
Certificates of Deposit 

Commercia l Ban ks 
Savings and Loan Associations 

NOTE 3. G RANTS/ACCOU NTS RECEIVABLE AN D TAXES R ECEIVABLE 

Governmenta l Activities 

Genera l  
Emergency Services 
Com m u n ity Center 
Pa rk 
Towne Center TI F 
Sa les tax 

Tota l governmenta l 
activities 

Busi ness-Type Activities 

Electric 
Water/Sewer 
Refuse 

Tota I business-type 
activities 

Gra nts/ 
Accounts 

72,338 
3,419,724 

94,410 

3,586,472 

1,750,47 1 
774,526 

92,791 

2,617,788 
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Taxes 

554,922 
47 ,808 

46,910 
176,850 

95,616 

922 , 106 

Al lowance 
for 

Doubtfu l 
Accou nts 

(2 ,810,000) 
(47,073) 

(2 ,857,073) 

Maximum 
Percent 

of Portfo l io 

100% 

100% 

50% 
50% 

Receiva bles, 
Net 

627 ,260 
657 ,532 

47 ,337 
46,910 

176,850 
95,616 

1,651,505 

(291,534) 1,458,937 
(157 ,258) 617,268 

(24,396) 68,395 

(473, 188) 2, 144,600 



NOTE 4. PROPERTY TAXES 

CITY OF HARR ISONVI LLE, M ISSO U R I  
N OTES T O  F I NANCIAL STATEM ENTS 

The assessed va luation of the tangi ble property for the pu rpose of loca l taxation as of 
May 31,  2016, was as fo l lows: 

Rea l estate 
Personal  property 

96,807,843 
23.807.868 

120,615.711 

The tax levy per $ 100 of assessed va luation of ta ngib le property for the ca lendar yea r 
2016 was as fo l lows: 

Genera l  operati ng 
Park 

0.5672 
0 .1283 
0.6955 

Property taxes may attach as an enforcea ble l ien on property as of January 1. Taxes a re 
levied no later tha n  Novem ber 1 a nd a re due and payable at that time. Al l u npa id taxes 
levied by November 1 become del i nquent January 1 of the fo l lowi ng year. 

NOTE 5. CAPITAL ASSETS 

Ca pita l asset activity for the yea r ended Decem ber 31, 2016, was as fo l lows: 

Balance Additions Retirements Balance 
January 1, and and December 31, 

2016 Transfers Transfers 2016 

Governmental Activities 

Capital assets, not being depreciated 
Land 890,750 890,750 

Construction-in-progress 486,025 344,614 (17,598) 813,041 

Total capital assets, not 
being depreciated 1,376,775 344,614 (17,598) 1,703,791 

Capital assets, being depreciated 
Buildings and improvements 23,815,104 23,030 23,838,134 

Streets 6,638,115 321,808 6,959,923 

Machinery and equipment 6,814,922 279,090 (45,554) 7,048,458 

Total capital assets, being 
depreciated 37,268,141 623,928 (45,554) 37,846,515 
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CAPITAL ASSETS (Conti nued) 

Governmental Activities (Continued) 

Less accumulated depreciation for: 
Bu i ldings and improvements 
Streets 
Mach inery and equ ipment 

Total accumulated depreciation 

Total capital assets being 
depreciated, net 

Governmental activities ca pita l  
assets, net 

Business-Type Activities - Electric Fund 

Capita l  assets, not being depreciated 
Land 
Co nstru ctio n-i n-p regress 

Total capita l assets, not 
being depreciated 

Capital assets, being depreciated 
Bu ildings and improvements 
Eq u ipment and transmission l ines 

Total ca p ita l assets, being 
depreciated 

Less accumulated depreciation for: 
Bui ldings and improvements 
Eq u ipment and transmission lines 

Total accumulated depreciation 

Total capita l assets being 
depreciated, net 

Business-type activities - Electric Fund 
cap ital assets, net 

Balance Additions 
January 1, and 

2016 Transfers 

(7,997,798) (677,955) 

(1,927,088) (241,729) 

(5,536,64 7) (314,958) 

(15,461,533) (1,234,642) 

21,806,608 (610,714) 

23,183,383 (266,100) 

99,716 

993,174 11,896 

1,092,890 11,896 

4,436,930 

9,046,206 804,573 

13,483,136 804,573 

(2,240,407) (91,387) 
(5,225,313) (213,788) 

(7,465, 720) (305,175) 

6,017,416 499,398 

7,110,306 511,294 
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Retirements Balance 
and December 31, 

Transfers 2016 

(8,675,753) 

(2,168,817) 
42,190 (5,809,415) 

42,190 (16,653,985) 

(3,364) 21,192,530 

(20,962) 22,896,321 

99,716 
(618,882) 386,188 

(618,882) 485,904 

4,436,930 

9,850,779 

14,287,709 

(2,331,794) 

(5,439,101) 

(7,770,895) 

6,516,814 

(618,882) 7,002,718 



NOTE 5.  

CITY O F  HARR ISONVI LLE, M ISSO U R I  
NOTES T O  F I NANCIAL STATEM ENTS 

CAPITAL ASSETS (Contin ued) 

Business-TyQe Activities - Water/_ 
Sewer Fund 

Capital assets, not being depreciated 
Land 
Construction-in-progress 

Total capital assets, not 
being depreciated 

Capital assets, being depreciated 
Buildings and improvements 
Equipment and transmission l ines 

Total capital assets, 
being depreciated 

Less accumulated depreciation for: 
Buildings and improvements 
Equipment and transmission l ines 

Total accumulated depreciation 

Total capital assets being 
depreciated, net 

Business-type activities - Water/Sewer 
Fund capital assets, net 

Business-TyQe Activities - Aquatic Fund 

Capital assets, being depreciated 
Buildings and improvements 
Equipment 

Total capital assets, being 
depreciated 

Less accumulated depreciation for: 
Buildings and improvements 
Equipment 

Total accumulated depreciation 

Business-type activities - Aquatic Center 
capital assets, net 

Balance Additions 
January 1, and 

2016 Transfers 

1,488,315 

2,468,467 292,576 

3,956,782 292,576 

11,667,319 

28,734,068 1,655,767 

40,401,387 1,655,767 

(8,034,328) (267,110) 

(8,398,482) (666,595) 

(16,432,810) (933,705) 

23,968,577 722,062 

27,925,359 1,014,638 

2,007,794 

60,549 1,197 

2,068,343 1,197 

(1,354,197) (83,981) 
(28,471) (3,679) 

(1,382,668) (87,660) 

685,675 (86,463) 
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Retirements Balance 
and December 31, 

Transfers 2016 

1,488,315 

(688,440) 2,072,603 

(688,440) 3,560,918 

11,667,319 

30,389,835 

42,057,154 

(8,301,438) 

(9,065,077) 

(17,366,515) 

24,690,639 

(688,440) 28,251,557 

2,007,794 

61,746 

2,069,540 

(1,438,178) 

(32,150) 

(1,4 70,328) 

599,212 



CITY O F  HARR ISONVI LLE, M ISSO U R I  
NOTES T O  FI NANCIAL STATEM ENTS 

NOTE 5.  CAPITAL ASSETS (Contin ued) 

NOTE 6. 

The fo l lowi ng ta ble summa rizes the depreciation by fu nction for the year ended Decem­
ber 31, 2016: 

Governmenta l Business-Type 
Activities Activities 

Genera l  Govern ment 85, 7 17 
Ad m i n istration of Justice 108,892 
Street 290,342 
Economic Development 14, 170 
Animal  Contro l 3,936 
Ai rport 136,928 
Emergency Services 152,400 
Park 107 ,928 
Com m u n ity Center 334,329 
Electric 305, 175 
Water a nd Sewer 933, 705 
Aquatic Center 87,660 

1,234,642 1,326,540 

LONG-TERM DEBT 

Governmenta l Activities 

Cha nges in  the debt for the yea r  ended December 31, 2016, consisted of the fo l lowing: 

Ba la nce Ba lance Due in  

J a n u a ry 1, Add i- Retire- Decem ber  31, O n e  

2016 tions ments 2016 Yea r 

Capita l lease obl igations 144,006 (45,262) 98,744 47,949 
Tax I ncrement Reve n u e  

Bonds 6,920,000 (335,000) 6,585,000 340,000 
Tax I ncrement Reve n u e  

N ote 9,000,000 9,000,000 
Prom issory Notes 152,066 • (25,464) 126,602 26,171 
Refi n a nced Certificates 

of Participation (COP) 5,350,000 (700,000) 4,650,000 720,000 
Compensated a bsences 294,841 260,171 (294,841) 260,171 294,841 
COP prem ium · 51,427 (8,570) 42,857 8,57'0 
Less: n ote d iscou nt (113,814) 9,485 (104,329) (9,485) 

Tota l govern menta l  

debt 21,798,526 260,171 (1,399,652) 20,659,045 1,428,046 
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NOTE 6 .  LONG-TERM D EBT (Conti n ued) 

Governmenta l Activities (Contin ued) 

Compensated Absences 

Com pensated a bsences are paya ble u pon an em ployee's sepa ration from employ­
ment, which cou ld occur  at a ny ti me, and the a bsences are,  therefore, considered 
paya ble with i n  one yea r and are l i qu idated by the govern mental fund responsib le for 
generati ng the l iab i l ity. The l iab i l ity is a l located to each fu nd as fo l lows: 

Genera l  
Pa rk 
Com m u n ity Center 
EMS 

Capita l Lease Obl igations 

175,313 
25 ,768 
20,339 
38,751 

260, 17 1 

The City has entered i nto a ca pita l lease agreement for the purchase of a i rport hangars. 
The lease agreement qua l ifies as a ca pita l lease for fi nanc ia l  reporti ng pu rposes and ,  
therefore, has been recorded at  the present va l ue of the future min imum lease pay­
ments as of the date of its i nception .  The cu m u lative a mount of assets acq u i red u nder 
the capita l lease descri bed a bove amounted to $ 596, 729 as of December 31,  2016. 

Future m in imum lease payments under cap ita l leases, together  with the present va l ue 
of net m i n i m u m  lease payments, consist of the fo l lowi ng: 

Yea r End i ng 
December 31, 

2017 
2018 

Tota l m i n i m u m  lease payments 
Less amount representi ng interest 

Present va l ue of future m in imum lease payments 

Tax I ncrement Revenue Bonds 

53,034 
53,034 

106,068 
7 ,324 

98, 744 

On J u ne 1, 2007, the City issued $8,630,000 in  Tax I ncrement Revenue Bonds for the 
purpose of provid i ng fu nds to refinance the 2005 Tax I ncrement Financing Tem pora ry 
Notes, pay accrued interest on the Tem pora ry Notes, fu nd a deposit to the debt service 
reserve for the bonds, and  pay costs related to the issuance of the bonds. The City a n­
ticipates that it wi l l  pledge the incrementa l payments i n  l ieu of taxes and ,  subject to 
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CITY O F  HARRISONVI LLE, M ISSOUR I  
NOTES TO FI NANCIAL STATEM ENTS 

NOTE 6. LONG-TERM DEBT (Contin ued) 

Governmenta l  Activities (Conti n ued) 

Tax I ncrement Revenue Bonds (Conti n ued) 

annua l  a ppropriation ,  Econom ic Activity Taxes generated by the private development 
with i n  the Towne Center TI F D istrict. The Bonds do not constitute a genera l  obl igatio n  
of the City of Harrisonvi l le ,  M issour i .  I nterest i s  paid sem iannua l ly o n  May 1 a n d  No­
vem ber 1. Princ ipa l  is d ue each yea r on November 1 through the matu rity date of N o­
vem ber 1, 2028. The i nterest rate on th is issue ranges from 4.25% to 5 .0%. 

Aggregate a n n ua l  pri nc ipa l  and i nterest payments appl icable to the TIF Bonds a re:  

Yea rs End ing 
December 31, 

2017 
2018 
2019 
2020 
2021 

2022-2026 
2027-2028 

Tax I ncrement Revenue Notes 

Pri nc ipa l  

340,000 
365,000 
390,000 
425,000 
450,000 

2 ,685,000 
· 1,930,000 

I nterest 

301,063 
286, 188 
269,763 
252,213 
252,213 
944,965 
266,170 

6,585,000 2 ,572,575 

On Decem ber 18,  2009, the City issued $9,000,000 i n  Tax I ncrement Revenue Notes 
for the pu rpose of provid i ng funds to pay for certa i n  re imbursable costs associated 
with the Cooperation ,  F inanci ng, and Pledge Agreement (CFP Agreement) dated De­
cember 18, 2009, between the City; Ha rrisonvi l le M P, LLC; The Ha rrisonvi l l e  Market 
Place Tra nsportation Development District A (TDD A); a nd The Harrisonv i l le Ma rket 
Place Tra nsportation Development District B (TDD B) .  

The City has p ledged the i ncrementa l payments i n  l ieu of taxes and Economic Activity 
Taxes generated by the private development with in  the M arket Place TI F District. Ad­
d itiona l  reven ues generated by the TDD A a nd TDD B d istricts a re a lso p ledged to the 
repayment of the Note. The Note does not constitute a genera l  obl igation of the City. 

From the date of th is Note, the a pp l icable i nterest rate on the u n pa id  pri nc ipa l  ba lance 
of th is Note was 6% per annum.  Dur ing 2011, the i nterest rate on th is Note was ad­
justed to 4. 75% and as of Apri l 1,  2014, it aga in  changed to 6.5% with payments due 
annua l ly. The restructu red Note does not ca l l  for regu lar  pri nc ipa l  payments, and no 
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NOTES T O  FI NANCIAL STATEM ENTS 

NOTE 6.  LONG-TERM D EBT (Contin ued) 

Governmenta l  Activities (Conti n ued) 

Tax I ncrement Revenue Notes (Conti nued) 

ba l loon payment is d isclosed on the Note. The City is requ i red to submit co l lections of 
revenues for the d istrict to a sepa rate account, wh ich is used to pay the req u i red a n­
n ua l  payment. 

An nua l  i nterest payments a pp l icable to the fu l l  ba lance of the T IF  notes are $585,000. 
The pri nc ipa l  due for the year ended Decembe r  31, 2016, or thereafter is $ 9,000,000. 

Certificates of Partic ipation 

On May 1, 2012 , Refund ing Certificates of Pa rtici pation were issued to advance re­
fu nd the 2003 issued Certificates of Partici pation d isclosed above in the amou nt of 
$ 7,830,000 at rates rangi ng from 2.000% to 2 .750%. These Refund ing Certificates 
of Pa rtici pation matu re on December 1, 2022, with semia n nua l  i nterest payments. 

Aggregate a nnual  pri nc ipal a nd i nterest payments a re as fo l lows: 

Yea r Ending 
December 31, 

2017 
2018 
2019 
2020 
202 1 
2022 

Promissory Note Paya ble  

Pri nc ipa l  

720,000 
745,000 
760,000 
785,000 
810,000 
830,000 

4,650,000 

I nterest 

117,263 
95,662 
7 9,831 
62,731 
44,088 
22 ,825 

422 ,400 

I n  2011, the City entered i nto a promissory note paya ble with the M issouri Department 
of Natu ra l  Resou rces for the purpose of constructi ng and i nsta l l i ng energy savings 
equ i pment. I n  December 2011, the City received $ 17 1,931 to assist with u pcom i ng 
costs for these expenses in  the Commun ity Center. The note bears i nterest at 2% and 
req u i res sem iannua l  payments of  pri ncipal and interest u nti l  maturity on Apr i l  1,  2023. 

On February 20, 2015, the City entered into a promissory note paya ble with Com m un ity 
Ba n k  of Raymore for the pu rchase of items for the ·com m u n ity center. The note bea rs 
i nterest at 4% a nd req u i res month ly payments princ ipa l  and  interest u nti l matu rity on 
February 20, 2018. 
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NOTE 6. LONG-TERM DEBT (Contin ued) 

Governmenta l Activities (Contin ued) 

Promissory Note Paya ble (Conti nued) 

Aggregate a n n ua l  pri nc ipa l  and i nterest payments are as fo l lows: 

Yea rs End ing 
December 31, 

2017 
2018 
2019 
2020 
202 1 

2022-2026 

Business-TyQe Activities 

Pri nc ipa l  I nterest 

26 ,171 2 ,514 
19,501 1,891 
17 ,399 1,358 
17, 749 1,005 

9 ,008 645 
36,7 74 277 

126,602 7 ,690 

Changes in the debt for the yea r ended December 31, 2016, consisted of the fo l lowing: 

Ba lance Bala nce Due in 
January 1, Add i- Retire- December 31, One 

2016 tions ments 2016 Yea r  
2002 Waterworks and 

Sewerage Revenue 
Bonds 1,995,000 (225,000) 1,770,000 235,000 

2003 Waterworks a nd 
Sewerage Revenue 
Bonds 1,845,000 (165,000) 1,680,000 175,000 

2005 Waterworks and 
Sewerage Revenue 
Bonds 950,000 (85,000) 865,000 85,000 

2007 Electric System 
Refu nd ing Revenue 
Bonds 1,115,000 (200,000) 915,000 215,000 

2010 Waterworks a nd 
Sewerage Revenue 
Bonds 3,140,400 (188,700) 2,951,700 192,500 

Prom issory Note 220,526 (30,276) 190,250 31,039 
Com pensated a bsences 114,140 113,486 (114,140) 113,486 113,486 

9,380,066 113,486 (1,008,116) 8,485,436 1,047,025 
Add: Bond prem ium 91,110 (11,554) 79,556 11,554 
Less: Bond d iscou nt (6,173) 1,235 (4,938) ( 1,235) 

Total business-type 
activities 9,465,003 113,486 (1,018,435) 8,560,054 1,057,344 
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NOTE 6. LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued) 

Bus iness-Type Activities (Contin ued) 

Compensated Absences 

Com pensated absences are payable u pon an employee's separation from employ­
ment, which cou ld occur at a ny ti me, a nd the absences are,  therefore, considered 
paya ble with i n  one yea r and are l iqu idated by the governmenta l fund responsib le for 
generati ng the l iab i l ity. The l iab i l ity is a l located to each fund  as fol lows: 

Electric 
Water/Sewer 

Revenue Bonds 

36,338 
7 7 , 148 

113 ,486 

On October 23, 2002 , the City issued $4,370,000 in Combi ned Waterworks a nd Sewer­
age System Revenue Bonds (State Revolvi ng Fund Progra m) .  Of the bonds, $3,660,000 
was issued for the pu rpose of extend i ng and improvi ng the City's com bined waterworks 
and sewerage system and  $ 7 10,000 was issued to refu nd a prior issue of bonds of the 
City. 

The bonds are to be pa id  by the net revenues of the system and are secured by a fi rst 
l ien on the revenues. I nterest is pa id semiannua l ly on January 1 a nd J u ly 1. Pri nc ipa l  
i s  d u e  each year  on J u ly 1 th rough the matu rity date of J u ly 1 ,  2023. The interest rate 
on th is issue ranges from 2.05% to 5 .0%. 

On  Apri l 1, 2003, the City issued $3,295,000 in  Combi ned Waterworks and Sewerage 
System Revenue Bonds (State Revolving Fund) for the purpose of fi na ncing certa in  im­
provements to the City's sewer system.  The bonds are to be pa id by the net revenues 
of the system and are secured by a fi rst l ien on the revenues. I nterest is pa id sem ian­
nua l ly on January 1 a nd Ju ly 1. Pri nc ipa l  is due each year  on January 1 through the 
matu rity date of January 1, 2024. The i nterest rate on th is issue ranges from 2 .0% to 
5.25%. 

On May 19, 2005, the City issued $1 ,710,000 in Com bi ned Waterworks and Sewerage 
System Revenue Bonds (State Revolving Fund) for the pu rpose of fi nancing certa i n  im­
provements to the City's sewer system .  The bonds are to be pa id  by the net reven ues of 
the system and a re secu red by a fi rst l ien  on the reven u es. I nterest is pa id semiannua l ly 
on January 1 a nd J u ly 1. Pri nc ipal  is due each yea r on J u ly 1 through the maturity date 
of Ju ly 1, 2025. The interest rate on this issue ranges from 3.0% to 5 .0%. 
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NOTE 6. LONG-TERM DEBT (Contin ued) 

Business-Type Activities (Conti n ued) 

Revenue Bonds (Conti n ued) 

On Septem ber 1, 2007, the City issued $2 ,730,000 i n  Electric System Refu n d ing 
Revenue Bonds for the pu rpose of provid i ng funds to refund outstand ing Series 1999 
Electric System Revenue Bonds. The bonds a re to be paid by the net revenues of the 
system a nd are secured by a fi rst l ien on the reven ues. I nterest is pa id sem i a n n ua l ly 
on May 1 and Novembe r  1. Principa l  is due each year on Novem ber 1 th rough the 
matu rity date of Novem ber 1, 2020. The i nterest rate on th is issue ra nges from 4.0% 
to 4.5%. 

In March 2010, the City issued the Com bined Waterworks and Sewerage System Reve­
n ue Bonds that ca n be d rawn on for a maxim u m  princ ipa l  a mou nt of $4,300,000. Semi­
annua l  i nterest payments are due each January 1 and J u ly 1, com mencing J u ly 1, 2010. 
I nterest is determ i ned by 30% of the Revenue Bond I ndex as publ ished in  The Bond Buy­
er. Pri nc ipa l  payments are d ue each Jan ua ry 1 and J u ly 1, com mencing J u ly 1, 2011, 
a nd matu ri ng on Ju ly 1, 2030. As of December 31, 2016, the City has drawn down 
$3,288,541 on this bond .  

Aggregate annua l  princ i pa l  a
'
nd i nterest payments appl icable to the revenue bonds 

a re: 

Yea rs End i ng 
December 31, Pri nc ipa l  I nterest 

2017 902, 500 298,430 
2018 936,300 259,904 
2019 955,200 221, 065 
2020 1,009,400 178,277  
2021 778,500 135, 705 

2022-2026 2, 756, 700 2 51,852 
2027-2030 843, 100 25,376 

8, 181,700 1,370,609 

As of Decem ber 31, 2016, the s ink ing fu nds a nd the reserve fu nds were adeq uately 
funded a nd the City was in compl ia nce with its rate covenants for a l l  bonds. 

Prom issory Note Payable  

I n  2011, the City entered into a promissory note paya ble  with the M issouri Depa rtment of 
Natu ra l Resou rces for the pu rpose of constructing and i nsta l l i ng energy savings equ ip­
ment. I n  December 2011, the City received $380,000 to assist with u pcomi ng costs for 
these expenses in  the Water/Sewer fac i l ities. The note bears i nterest at 2% and req u i res 
sem ian nua l  payments of pri nc ipa l  a nd i nterest unti l matu rity on Apri l  1, 2023. 
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NOTE 7. 

Business-Type Activities (Conti n ued) 

Prom issory Note Paya ble  (Conti nued) 

Aggregate ann ua l  pri nci pa l  and i nterest payments appl icable to the promissory note are: 

Years End i ng 
December 31, Pri nc ipa l  I nterest 

2017 3 1,039 4,563 
2018 31,820 3 ,782 
2019 32 ,620 2,982 
2020 33,440 2 , 162 
2021 17,034 1,321 

2022-2026 44, 297 458 
190, 250 15,268 

I NTERFU ND TRANSACTIONS 

Tra nsfers duri ng the yea r e nded December 31, 2016, were as fo l lows: 

Tra nsfers Out: 

Sales 
Genera l  Tax Electric Tota l 

Tra nsfers i n :  
Com m u n ity Center 137 , 735 137, 735 
Town Center TI F 130,500 130, 500 
Emergency Services 684,500 684,500 
Fid ucia ry fu nd 200,000 200,000 
Nonmajor governmenta l 

fu nds 243,400 838,263 1,081,663 
Tota l 1,058,400 975,998 200,000 2,234,398 

Transfers are used to move revenues from the fund that statute or budget req u i res to 
co l lect them to the fu nd that statute or budget requ i res to expend them and to use unre­
stricted revenues col lected i n  the Genera l  Fund to finance va rious progra ms accounted 
for in other fu nds in accordance with budgetary authorizations. 
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Due from : 
Fid uc iary fu nd  
Nonmajor proprieta ry fu nds 

Tota l 

Due to: 

E lectric 

200,000 
102,980 
302,980 

The ba lance of amounts due to the Electric Fund a re the result of a n  adva nce to the fid u­
cia ry fund  in  excess of the amount considered as a tra nsfer. 

NOTE 9. PENS ION PLAN 

Pla n Description 

The City of Ha rrisonvi l le ,  M issour i ,  contr ibutes to the M issou ri Loca l Govern ment Employ­
ees Reti rement System (LAG ERS). LAG ERS is a n  agent m u lti-employer, statewide  pub l ic  
employee reti rement p lan for u n its of loca l government which · is  lega l ly separate a nd fis­
ca l ly independent of the state of M issouri .  LAG ERS was estab l ished i n  1967 a n d  is ad­
m i n istered in accordance with RSMo. 70.600-70.755 . LAG ERS serves a pproxi mately 
668 loca l pa rticipating employers. These pa rtici pating employers inc lude 299 c ities, 60 
cou nties, and 323 other pub l ic  entities during the plan yea r ended June 30, 2016. 

Respons ib i l ity for the operation and admin istration of the p lan is vested in the LAG ERS 
Boa rd of Trustees consisting of seven persons. Th ree trustees a re elected by the em­
ployees who partic ipate i n  the system,  three trustees are e lected by the members of the 
govern i ng bod ies of those pol itica l subd ivis ions wh ich participate i n  the system a nd one 
trustee is a ppointed by the governor. The regu lar  term of office for members of the 
LAG ERS Boa rd of Trustees is fou r  years. Mem bers of the LAG ERS Board of Trustees 
serve without com pensation with respect to the i r  d uties, but a re re imbu rsed by LAG ERS 
for the i r  actua l  a nd necessary expenses incu rred in the performance of the i r  d uties. 

For the City's yea r end ing December 31, 2016, the net pension asset is based on  an actu­
ar ia l  va l uation  performed as of Februa ry 29, 2016, and  a measu rement date of J u ne 30, 
2016. 

Benefits Provided 

LAG ERS provides reti rement, death, and d isab i l ity benefits to em ployees of partici pati ng 
pol itica l subd ivisions. Al l benefits vests after 5 years of service. Employees who reti re on 
or after age 60 (55 for po l ice and fi re) with 5 or more years of service a re entitled to an 
a l lowance for l ife based upon the benefit progra m the n  i n  effect for the i r  pol itica l subd ivi­
sion . Employees may reti re with an early ret irement benefit with a m in imum of 5 years of 
cred ited service a nd after atta i n i ng age 55 (50 for po l ice and fi re) and receive a red uced 
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NOTE 9.  PENSION PLAN (Conti n ued) 

Benefits Provided (Continued)  

a l lowance.  The LAG ERS Board of Trustees esta bl ishes the benefit p la ns a nd provisions 
that are ava i la ble for adoption.  The pol itica l su bd ivis ion's govern i ng body adopts a l l  bene­
fits of the plan .  Benefit terms provide for a n nual  post reti rement adj ustments to each 
member's reti rement a l lowance subseq uent to the member's reti rement date. The a n n ua l  
adjustment is based on the increase i n  the Consumer Price I ndex and is  l i m ited to  4% per 
yea r. 

Contri butions 

Each partici pati ng un it of government is obl igated by state law to make a l l  req u i red con­
tributions to the p lan .  The req u i red contributions a re actua ria l ly dete rm ined using the 
ind ivid ua l  entry-age actuar ia l  cost method . There a re no long-term contracts for contri bu­
tions to the pla n.  All actuaria l  l iabi l it ies are amortized over a period of 30 years or less. 

Ad min istrative costs of LAG ERS a re financed th rough i nvestment ea rn i ngs of the system.  
Em p loyee contributions are determi ned at  the election of the  govern i ng body•of the  loca l 
government. Shou ld the governing body elect to participate i n  the contributory p lan ,  a l l  
employees m ust contri bute four  percent of gross sa lary. The govern i ng body m a y  e lect to 
pa rticipate i n  the non-contributory p lan which wou ld resu lt i n  no employee contr ibutions. 

Actuaria l  Assumptions 

The pension l iab i l ity for the J u ne 30, 2016, measu rement date was determi ned us i ng the 
fo l lowi ng actuaria l  assumptions a pp l ied to the measurement: 

Actuaria l Cost Method 

Amortization Method 

Rema in ing Amortization Period 

Asset Va luation Method 

I nflation 

Sala ry I ncreases 

I nvestment Rate of Retu rn 

Reti rement Age 

Entry Age Normal a nd Mod ified Term ina l  Fu nd ing 

Level Percentage of Payrol l ,  C losed 

M u lti p le bases from 13 to 21 yea rs 

5-Year smoothed market; 20% corridor 

3.25% wage i nflation ;  2 .5% price i nflation 

3.25% to 6.55% (7 .15% for fi re) i nc lud i ng wage 
inflation 

7 .25%, net of i nvestment expenses 

Experience-based table of rates that a re specific 
to the type of e l igib i l ity cond ition 
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Actuar ia l  Assumptions (Conti nued) 

Morta l ity 

Other  i nformation 

Discou nt Rate 

The h�a lth reti ree morta l ity tables, for post­
reti rement morta l ity, were the RP-2014 Hea lthy 
Ann u ita nt morta l ity ta ble for males a n d  fema les.  
The d isabled reti ree morta l ity ta bles, for post­
reti rement morta l ity, were the R P-2014 d isa bled 
morta l ity table for males and  fema les. The pre­
reti rement morta l ity ta bles used were the R P-
2014 employees morta l ity ta ble for m a les a nd 
females.  

Both the post-reti rement and pre-reti re ment ta­
bles were adj usted for morta l ity improvement 
back to the observation period base year of 
2006. The base yea r for males was then estab­
l ished to be 2017. Morta l ity rates for a pa rticu la r  
ca lendar yea r are determi ned by  a pply ing the 
M P-2015 morta l ity improvement sca le to the 
above described tables. 

New assum ptions adopted based on the 5-year 
experience study for the period March 1, 2010 
th rough February 28, 2015. 

Projected benefit payments are requ i red to be d iscou nted to their  actuar ia l  present va lues 
usi ng a single d iscount rate that reflects (1) a long-term expected rate of retu rn on pen­
sion p lan i nvestments and (2) tax-exem pt m u n ic ipa l  bond rate based on a n  i ndex of 20-
yea r genera l obl igation bonds with an average AA credit rati ng as of the measurement 
date (to the extent that the pla n 's projected fiduciary net position is not suffic ient to pay 
benefits). The mun ic ipa l  bond rate is 3 .80% (based on the weekly rate closest to but not 
later  than  the measurement date of the 20-Yea r Bond Buyer I ndex as pub l ished by the 
Federa l Reserve) .  The resu lti ng single d iscount rate is 7 .25% for the Genera l ,  Pol ice, and 
F i re Divisions. 

This rate considers the abi l ity of the pla n to meet benefit obl igations in the futu re. To 
make th is determ ination,  em ployer contri butions, employee contri butions, benefit pay­
ments, expenses, and investment returns a re projected i nto the future.  The P lan Net Po­
sition (assets) in futu re years can then be determ ined a nd com pared to its obl igation to 
make benefit payments in those yea rs. As long as assets are projected to be on hand i n  
a futu re yea r, the assu med va l uation d iscount rate i s  used. I n  yea rs where assets a re 
not projected to be suffic ient to meet benefit payments, the use of a "risk-free" rate is re­
q u i red, as d escri bed in  the preced ing paragra ph . 
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Discou nt Rate (Conti nued) 

LAG ERS has provided ta bles to the City that provide background for the d evelopment of 
the si ngle d iscou nt rate. These ta bles are described as fo l lows: 

The Projection of Contri butions ta ble shows the d evelopment of expected contributions 
in  future years.  Normal Cost contr ibutions for future h i res are not i nc luded (nor are 
the i r  l iab i l ities) .  

The Projection of P lan F iduciary Net Position ta ble shows the development of expected 
asset levels in future yea rs. 

The Present Va lues of Projected Benefit Payments table shows the development of the 
Si ngle Discou nt Rate (SDR) .  It brea ks down the benefit payments into present va lues 
for funded and u nfu nded portions a nd shows the equ iva lent tota l at the SOR.  

Pension L iabi l ity Sensitivity 

The fo l lowi ng ta ble presents the net pension asset ( l iab i l ity) for the City's proportionate 
share of the net pension asset ( l iab i l ity) as of J une 30, 2016, ca lculated using the d iscount 
rate of 7 .25%, as wel l  as what the pension p lan 's net pension l iab i l ity wou ld be if it were 
ca lculated using a d iscou nt rate that is 1 percentage point lower or 1 percentage point 
h igher than the cu rrent rate: 

Genera l  Divis ion 
Pol ice Division 
F i re Division 

Tota l 

Pension Pla n Fiduc iary Net Position 

1.00% 
Decrease 
(6.25%) 

(663,353 ) 
(306,930 ) 
197.894 

(772 389 ) 

Cu rrent 
Rate 

(7 .25%) 

1,615,389 
356,957 
504.448 

2 476 794 

1.00% 
I ncrease 
(8.25%) 

3 ,527,099 
909,087 
749.965 

5.186.151 

Add itiona l fi nanc ia l  and actuaria l  i nformation su pporti ng the preparation of the schedu le  
of changes i n  fiduc iary net position is i ncl uded i n  the System's Com preh ensive An nua l  Fi­
na ncia l  Report for the year ended June 30, 2015. The Comprehensive Annua l  Fi nanc ia l  
Report can be obta ined at www.molagers.org or from M issouri Loca l Area Govern ment 
Employee Reti rement Sys_tem ( LAGERS), PO Box 1665, Jefferson City, M O  65102.  
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NOTE 10. DEFERR ED COM PENSATIO N  PLAN 

The City offers its employees a deferred compensation p lan created in accorda nce with 
I nterna l  Reven ue Code Section 457 .  The pla n ,  ava i lab le to a l l  City employees, perm its 
them to defer a portion of the i r  sa lary unti l futu re yea rs. Pa rtic ipation i n  the p lan  is op­
tional .  The deferred com pensation is not ava i lab le to employees u nti l term i nation,  re­
ti rement, death , or unforeseea ble emergency. Al l amou nts of com pensation d eferred 
under the p la n ,  a l l  property and rights purchased with those a mounts, and  a l l  i ncome at­
tri buta ble to those amounts, property, or rights are solely the property of the pa rtic ipants. 
I nvestments a re managed by the pla n 's trustee under severa l investment optio ns. The 
choice of the i nvestment o ptions is made by the partic ipa nts. 

NOTE 11. MAJOR SU PPLI ERS 

.Duri ng the yea r ended December 31, 2016, the City re l ied upon one vendor for the gen­
eration and tra nsm ission of a l l  e lectric ity purchased for resa le tota l i ng $8, 176,252.  

N OTE 12. R ISK MANAG EM ENT 

In its norma l  cou rse of bus iness, the City is exposed to va rious risks of loss related to torts; 
theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets; errors a nd omissions; worke rs' compensa­
tion ;  and natura l d isasters for which the City ca rries com merc ia l  insura nce. There have 
been no sign ifica nt reductions in i nsu rance coverage from the pr ior yea r and n o  sign ifica nt 
losses i n  the past three yea rs. 

N OTE 13 . SELF-I NSURANCE 

The City is a member of the M PR (M idwest Pub l ic  Risk),  a not-for-profit corporation con­
sisti ng of governmenta l entities i ncorporated in 1984 to acqu i re i nsura nce for its mem­
bers.  M PR operates as a purchasing pool and is not a jo int venture activity of the City. 
The City has no control over budgeti ng, fi nancing, ma nagement selection ,  or the govern­
ing body. M PR provides both conventional  and self-i nsu ra nce coverage for its members 
i nc lud ing medica l ,  denta l ,  property, casua lty, genera l  l iab i l ity, and workers' com pensa­
tion .  The City participates in the workers' com pensation i nsura nce coverages. 

M PR manages the cash and i nvestment pool ,  funded by i nsura nce premiums, on beha lf 
of its mem bers.  M PR's i nvestment pool consists of i nterest-bearing deposits, U .S. Treas­
u ry, and U .S .  governmenta l agency obl igations. 

In the event that a deficit occurs with respect to a ny fisca l yea r of M PR for which the City 
was a partic ipa nt at a ny ti me d u ri ng such yea r, and in the event that M PR determ i nes that 
an assessment is requ i red i n  order to provide add itional  fu nds for the obl igations of M PR 
for such year, a nd further, i n  the event that the City was covered by the types of benefits 
req u ir ing the assessment d u ri ng the time period i n  which the assessment arose,  the City 
is obl igated to pay its pro rata share of any such assessment, i rrespective of whether or 
not the City is a member of MPR at the ti me of such assessment. 

M PR's fi nanc ia l statements are presented in its Comprehensive Annua l  F inanc ia l  Report. 
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NOTE 14. PROM ISSORY NOTE RECEIVABLE 

On March 18, 2011, the City received a prom issory note from Ha rrisonvi l l e  Hous i ng As­
sociates, LP.  Cla rkton ,  M issour i ,  i n  the amount of $750,490 with zero percent i nterest. 
The note ca l ls for repayment of princ ipa l  annua l ly in a n  a mount eq ua l to 50% of cash 
flow a l lowed by the M issou ri Housing Development Com mission a nd the U n ited States 
Depa rtment of Agricu ltu re, R ura l Housing Service (Rura l  Development) "the agency." 
Such payment is due th i rty days after the date that the aud it of the Ha rrisonvi l le Housing 
Associates, L P. ,  is a pproved by the agency. In a ny event, al l  rema i n i ng indebted ness is 
due a nd payable on March 18, 2062 .  The note is secu red by a Deed of Trust. 

Si nce the tim i ng of the repayment ca nnot be read i ly determ i ned , the ba lance of the note 
receivable is offset with a contra-asset accou nt of the same amount. The fi rst repayment 
of $4, 14 7 was received in 2016 and the rema in ing ba lance on the note at Decem ber 3 1, 
2016, was $ 7  46,343. 

Fund ing for the loan was made ava i lable with a CDBG gra nt which is ava i la ble for re-use 
from col lections of pri nc i pa l  for other el igib le CDBG activity. 

NOTE 15. TAX ABATEM ENTS 

The City has two programs th rough wh ich tax a batements a re provided: 

Harrisonvi l le Towne Center Tax I ncrement Financ ing Pla n <TIF) 

On Decem ber 22,  2005, the City of Harrisonvi l le, M issouri ,  and D.J .  Ch ristie, I nc . ,  the 
developer, im plemented the Redevelopment Agreement ( Plan) .  The Plan is a uthorized 
by M issou ri Revised Statutes and the City's Economic Development Act and  p rovides for 
the construction of one redevelopment project in Harrisonvi l le, M issour i ,  wh ich a ntici­
pates the construction of a pproxi mately 157 ,900 gross square feet of improvements to 
be used for the operation of bus inesses conducting reta i l  sales, i n  the portion  of the Re­
development Area , together with the insta l lation ,  repa i r, construction ,  reconstruction ,  
a nd re location of certa in  streets a nd uti l ities. The Plan re l ies on the a batement of fifty 
percent (50%) of the tota l additional  revenue from taxes that are im posed by the City or 
other Taxi ng D istricts, which are generated by the economic activities with in the Rede­
velopment Area, wh i le tax i ncrement fi nancing remains i n  effect, exc lud ing l icenses, 
fees, or specia l assessments, other than  payments in l ieu  of taxes, u nti l  the des ignation 
is termi nated (Econom ic Activity Taxes). In add ition ,  the Plan re l ies on revenues from 
rea l  property in the Redevelopment Area , which reven ues a re to be used to reti re TI F ob­
l igations and pay other  reimbursa ble project costs, wh ich Taxing Districts wou ld  have 
received had the City not adopted tax i ncrement a l location financ ing, a nd which wou ld 
resu lt from levies made after the time of the adoption of the tax i ncrement a l location fi­
nancing d u ring the ti me the current equa l ized va lue of rea l property i n  the Redevelop­
ment Area exceeds the Tota l I n itia l  Equal ized Va lue of rea l property i n  such a rea unti l 
the designation is term inated ,  which sha l l  not be late r  tha n  23 yea rs after the project to 
be development is a pproved by a n  Ord inance of the Boa rd of Aldermen (Payment i n  Lieu 
of Taxes).  
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Ha rrisonvi l l e  Towne Center Tax I ncrement Fi nanc ing Plan fflF) (Contin ued) 

On June 1, 2007, the City issued $8,630,000 i n  Tax I ncrement Revenue Bonds for the 
purpose of provid i ng fu nds to refinance the 2005 Tax I ncrement fi nanc ing Tem porary 
Notes, pay accrued i nterest on the Tem porary Notes, fu nd a deposit to the debt service 
reserve for bonds, a nd pay costs related to the issuance of the bonds. The City a ntic i­
pates that it w i l l  p ledge the i ncrementa l payments in  l ieu of taxes and ,  subject to a n nua l  
a ppropriation,  Economic  Activity Taxes generated by the private development with i n  the 
Towne Center TI F District. The bonds do not constitute a genera l  obl igation  of the City of 
Ha rrisonvi l le ,  M issouri .  I nterest is pa id semiannua l ly on May 1 a nd Novem ber 1. Prin­
c ipa l  is d ue each year on November 1 th rough the matu rity date of Novem ber 1, 2028. 
The interest rate on th is issue ra nges from 4.25% to 5.00%. 

Aggregate annua l  pri nc ipa l  and i nterest payments appl icable to the T I F Bonds are fu r­
ther d isclosed i n  Note 6. 

Harrisonvi l l e  Ma rket Place Tax I ncrement Financ ing Pla n  fflF) 

On Apri l 16, 2007,  the City of Ha rrisonvi l le ,  M issouri ,  a nd S immons I nvestme nts, I nc . ,  
the developer, i m plemented the Redevelopment Agreement (Plan ) .  The P lan is  a uthor­
ized by M issouri Revised Statutes a nd the City's Economic Development Act and pro­
vides for the construction of one redevelopment project i n  Ha rrisonvi l le ,  M issou ri ,  which 
a ntic ipates the construction of a pproxi mately 243,895 gross square feet of i mprove­
ments, the majority of wh ich ,  to be used for the operation of bus inesses cond ucting re­
ta i l  sa les, i n  the portion of the Redevelopment Area designated as " Redevelopment 
Project Area" ,  together with the insta l lation ,  repa i r, construction ,  reconstruction,  a nd re­
location of certa i n  streets and uti l ities. The Plan re l ies on the a batement of fifty percent 
(50%) of the tota l additiona l revenue from taxes that are i mposed by the City or other 
Taxing Districts, wh ich a re generated by the economic activities with i n  the Redevelop­
ment Area , wh i le  tax i ncrement financ ing rema ins i n  effect, exc lud ing l i censes, fees, or 
specia l  assessments, other tha n  payments in  l ieu of taxes, unti l the designation is ter­
m i nated (Econom ic Activity Taxes).  I n  addition ,  the P lan re l ies on revenues from rea l  
property i n  the Redevelopment Area , wh ich revenues a re to b e  used to reti re TI F obl iga­
tions and pay other rei m bursable project costs, which Taxi ng Districts wou ld  have re­
ce ived had the City not adopted tax i ncrement a l location fi nanc ing, a nd wh ich wou ld  
result from levies made after the ti me of the  adoption of the tax increment a l location fi­
nanc ing d u ri ng the t ime the current equal ized va lue of rea l property in the Redevelop­
ment Area exceeds the Tota l I n itia l Equa l ized Va lue of rea l property i n  such a rea u nti l 
the designation is term i nated ,  wh ich sha l l  not be later tha n  23 years after the project to 
be development is a pproved by an  Ord inance of the Boa rd of Aldermen (Payment i n  Lieu 
of Taxes) .  
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NOTE 15. TAX ABATEM ENTS (Continued) 

Harrisonvi l le Ma rket P lace Tax I ncrement F inanc ing Pla n (TIF) (Conti n ued) 

By Ord inance No.  3073, adopted by the Board of Aldermen on Februa ry 2,  2009, the 
City a pproved the amendment to the Redevelopment Pla n  and a uthorized the City to 
enter i nto the Fi rst Amended and  Restated Redevelopment Agreement with Harrison­
vi l le  M P, LLC, for the im plementation of the Redevelopment Project. 

On Decem ber 18, 2009, the City issued $9,000,000 i n  Tax I ncre ment Revenue Notes 
for the purpose of provid ing fu nds to pay for certa i n  rei m bu rsa ble costs associated 
with the Cooperation , Fina ncing, and Pledge Agreement (CFP Agreement) dated De­
cem ber 18, 2009, between the City; Harrisonvi l le M P, LLC; The Harrisonvi l l e  Ma rket 
Place Tra nsportation Development D istrict A (TDD A) ; a nd the Harrisonvi l le Ma rket 
Place Tra nsportation Development D istrict B (TDD B).  

The City has pledged the i ncre menta l payments in  l ieu  of taxes and Economic Activity 
Taxes generated by the private development with in  the M a rket Place TI F District. Ad­
d itional  reven ues generated by the TDD A a nd TDD B d istricts a re a lso pledged to the 
repayment of the Note. The Note does not constitute a genera l  obl igation of the City. 

From the date of the Note, the a ppl icable i nterest rate on the u n pa id pri nc ipa l  ba la nce 
of th is Note was 6% per a n n u m .  Du r ing 2011, the i nterest rate on th is Note was ad­
justed to 4. 75% and as of Apri l 1, 2014, it aga i n  changed to 6.5% with payments due 
annua l ly. The restructured Note does not ca l l  for regu lar  princ ipa l  payments,  and no 
ba l loon payment is d isclosed on the Note. The City is requ i red to submit col lections of 
reven ues for the d istrict to a separate account, which is used to pay the requ i red a n­
n ua l  payment. 

Aggregate annua l  pri nc ipa l  a nd i nterest payments a pp l ica ble to the T IF  Bonds are fur­
ther d isc losed i n  Note 6. 

For the ended Decem ber 3 1, 2016, the City a bated taxes as fol lows: 

Tax Abatement Program 

Towne Center TI F 
Economic activity taxes 
Payment in l ieu of taxes 

Market Place TI F 
Economic activity taxes 
Payment in l ieu  of taxes 
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366,031 
144,052 

442,480 
178, 749 
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NOTE 16. COM PLIANCE WITH M ISSOU R I  STATUTES 

M issou ri House B i l l  No. 103 a mend i ng RSMo Section 3 .02.341.2 became effective on 
August 28, 2013.  The amendments to the statute now req u i re m u n ic ipa l ities to report 
an  accou nting of the percent of 11annua l  genera l  operati ng reven ue11 from fines a nd costs 
for traffic vio lations as fo l lows: 

Fi nes a nd costs for traffic vio lations 
An nua l  genera l  operati ng revenue 
Fi nes and costs for traffic violations as a 

percentage of a n n ua l  genera l operati ng 
revenue 

NOTE 17.  COM M ITMENTS 

126,550 
7 ,690,370 

1.6% 

On March 15,  2015, the City entered into an  agreement with The H ighways 7 1/291 
Pa rtners i n  Progress Transportation Development District (a  fiduc iary fu nd) ,  to  coord inate 
efforts for the design , construction ,  and operation of D istrict projects. The agreement 
establ ished a fu nd i ng plan in which the City w i l l  provide fund ing to the District in the 
a mount of $ 1,500,000 th rough the a ntici pated yea r of 2017.  

On October 3,  2016, the City a pproved a contract for improvements to the water treat­
ment p lant for a pproximately $8,200,000. A majority of the fu nd ing for these i m prove­
ments w i l l  come from federa l  grants a nd loa ns. 

NOTE 18. LITIGAT ION AN D CONTI NGENCIES 

As of Apri l 27 ,  2017, the City had u nsettled c la ims which a re at va rious stages, and  at 
th is time, outcomes ca nnot be pred icted . The City is v igorously defend ing each u nsettled 
cla i m .  

I n  add ition ,  t h e  M issou ri State Aud itor's office i s  conducti ng certa in  procedu res related to 
the City regard i ng i nterna l contro ls a nd com pl iance with a ppl ica ble laws and  regu lations 
of the City. As of Apri l 27 ,  2017, a fi na l  report has not been made ava i lab le from e ither 
agency. There is no c lea r estimate for the costs involved to the City as a resu lt of the pro­
cedu res conducted .  

NOTE 19. LONG-TERM CONTRACTS 

On March 2 1, 2005, the City of Harrisonvi l le ,  M issour i  (the 11City11) entered i nto the 
Amended a nd Restated M issou ri Publ ic  Energy Pool #1 Agreement (the 11MoPEP Agree­
ment" ) a mong the M issou ri Jo int M un ic ipa l  Electric Uti l ity Comm ission ( 11MJM EUC11) a nd 
va rious c ities with i n  the State of M issou ri who have a lso s igned the MoPEP Agreement. 
Each of the cities who have signed the MoPEP Agreement are col lective ly referred to as 
" MoPEP Mem bers" .  
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NOTE 19. LONG-TERM CONTRACTS (Continued) 

Under the MoPEP Agreement, each MoPEP Mem ber, i nc lud i ng the City, has agreed to 
purchase from MJ M EUC a l l  of the MoPEP Member's req u i rements for electric ca pacity, 
energy, tra nsmission,  and other necessary e lectric  services from MJ M EUC. MoPEP 
Mem bers may a lso ded icate a ny member-owned electric capacity to MJ M EUC for the 
benefit of MoPEP. 

MJ M EUC is requ i red u nder the _MoPEP Agreement to provide electric capacity·, energy, 
tra nsm ission,  and other necessary electric services n eeded by MoPEP Mem bers to fu lfi l l  
the ir  fu l l  req u i rements to service the MoPEP Members' reta i l  customers.  To  meet the 
power and energy req u i rements of the City and the other MoPEP Mem bers,  MJ M EUC pres­
ently obta i ns power a nd energy th rough :  ( i )  power purchased u nder long-term fi rm e nergy 
contracts, u n it-conti ngent energy contracts, a nd i nterruptib le contracts; ( i i )  MJ M EUC-owned 
generation;  ( i i i )  MoPEP Mem ber capacity; and ( iv) spot ma rket purchases. Neither  the City 
nor a ny other MoPEP Member has an ownersh i p  i nterest i n  any of MJM EU C's assets. 

Each MoPEP Member ( i nc lud ing the City) is l iable  u nder  the MoPEP Agreement for its pro­
portionate sha re of a l l  costs associated with MJ M EUC's performance u nder  the MoPEP 
Agreement. 

MoPEP operations are governed by a comm ittee ( "Pool Com mittee") consisting of one 
representative from each MoPEP Member and is currently com prised of 3 - 5 members 
as of December 3 1, 2016. · 

The Pool Com m ittee is charged with setting rates for a l l  services provided by MJ M EUC to 
MoPEP Mem bers. These rates include recovery of a l l  of MJ M EUC's costs (the "D i rect 
Costs") incurred i n  con nection with acq u i ri ng, provid ing, a rra nging, or fi nanc ing the provi­
sion of fu l l  req u i rements service to MoPEP Members. Such rates are based u pon an an­
nua l  budget a nd i nc lude,  but a re not l im ited to, a l l  payments MJ M EUC is req u i red to make 
u nder contracts and/or fi nancia l comm itments and  obl i"gations entered i nto by MJ M EUC 
necessary to provide fu l l  req u i rements service, without rega rd to whether  a ny particu lar  
resou rce is ava i lab le to or used by any particu lar  MoPEP Member. D i rect Costs a lso i n­
c lude amounts requ i red to fu nd ca pita l and/or operating reserves a nd debt service cover­
ages MJ M EUC is req u i red to ma inta i n  pursuant to contract to serve MoPEP Mem bers as 
esta bl ished from t ime to ti me by the Pool Committee. 

The MoPEP Agreement req u i res that rates charged to each MoPEP Member be esta bl ished 
at least annua l ly a nd adj usted to recogn ize varia nces between budgeted a nd actua l costs 
at least every six months. Cha rges based on such rates a re assessed a nd b i l led month ly. 
The City's payment obl igations u nder the MoPEP Agreement are l im ited to the ob l igation to 
make payments from reven ues of the City's electric  uti l ity system a nd ava i lable e lectric uti l­
ity system revenues.  Al l payments made by the City pursua nt to the MoPEP Agreement are 
considered operation a nd ma intena nce expenses of the electric uti l ity system .  MoPEP 
Mem bers are req u i red u nder the MoPEP Agreeme nt to at a l l  ti mes estab l ish ,  ma inta i n  a nd 
col lect rates, fees, and cha rges for electric service suffic ient to meet the MoPEP Mem ber's 
obl igations under the MoPEP Agreement. 
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CITY O F  HARR ISONVI LLE, M ISSOUR I  
NOTES TO F I NANCIAL STATEM ENTS 

NOTE 19. LONG-TERM CONTRACTS (Contin ued) 

I n  the event a MoPEP Member ca ncels the MoPEP Agreement, the mem ber rema i ns re­
sponsi ble for its a l located share of MJ M EUC's Di rect Costs associated with a l l  resou rce ob­
l igations entered i nto by MJ M EUC for MoPEP prior to the notice of cancel lation .  MJM EUC 
wou ld uti l i ze or sel l  the MoPEP Mem ber's a l located share of output in  exchange for provid­
i ng the MoPEP Member a credit or offset equal  to the fa i r  market va lue of the output up to 
the amount of the MoPEP Mem ber's payment obl igation u nder the MoPEP Agreement. As 
a resu lt, the MoPEP Member wou l d  have a financia l ob l igation after cance l lation i n  the 
event that the fa i r  ma rket va l ue of the output is less tha n  the MoPEP Mem ber's a l located 
sha re of MJM EUC's Di rect Costs with respect to the resource obl igations at the t ime of 
ca ncel lation . S ince the amount of the cancel l i ng MoPEP Member's obl igation wou ld  de­
pend on MJ M EUC's Di rect Costs after ca ncel lation and the fa i r  market va l ue of the output 
at such ti mes in the futu re, the amount of the obl igation is not reasonably determ inable .  
Cu rrently, the City has no plans or i ntentions to cancel the MoPEP Agreement. 

MJ M EUC's a ud ited fi nancia l  statements are ava i la ble on its website at www. mpua .org 

NOTE 20. SUBSEQ U ENT EVENTS 

I n  preparing the financ ia l  statements, the City has eva luated events and transactions for 
potentia l  recogn ition or d isclosure th rough Apri l 27 ,  2017, the date the financ ia l  state­
ments were ava i la ble  to be issued . 
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CITY O F  HARR ISONVI LLE, M ISSOUR I  
R EQU I R ED SU PPLEMENTARY I N FORMATION 

BUDG ETARY COM PARISON SCH EDULE 
G EN ERAL FU N D  

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 3 1 ,  2016 

Genera l  Fu nd 

Varia nce 
Budget Positive 

Origi na l  Fi na l  Actua l  ( Negative) 
REVENUES 

Taxes 4,967,509 5,035,634 5,455,213 419 ,579 
Licenses, fees, and perm its 115,200 115,200 189,068 73,868 
Cha rges for services 1, 7 19, 170 1,699, 170 1, 7 75 ,909 76, 739 
Grants 234, 760 160,000 491, 142 331, 142 
F ines and forfeitures 290,000 290,000 222,035 (67,965) 
I nterest 30,000 30,000 54,969 24,969 
Proceeds from the sa le  of assets 15, 100 15, 100 2 1,925 6,825 
Rei mbursements 74, 760 97 ,540 22 ,780 
M iscel la neous 114,050 12 1,650 73,382 (48,268) 

TOTAL REVEN U ES 7 ,485 ,789 7 ,541,514 8,381, 183 839, 669 

EXPEN D ITU RES 
Genera l  Govern ment 

Mayor and Boa rd 258,670 313,998 19 1,751 122 , 247 
F ina nce 1,041,964 1, 145 ,702 958,801 186,901 
Ad m i n istration 551, 167 592 ,705 494,47 1 98,234 
Property management 157,055 161,065 118,488 42,577 

Tota l Genera l  Govern ment 2,008,856 2 ,213 ,470 1, 763,511 449,959 

Ad m i n istration . of J ustice 
Ad m i n istration  and d ispatch 527,305 586,330 52 1,085 65,245 
Patro l 2 ,392,352 2 ,454,801 1,921,230 533,571 

Tota l Ad m i n istration of  J ustice 2 ,919,657 3 ,041,13 1  2 ,442,315 598,816 

Street 880,82 1 893,368 832 ,933 60,435 
Econom ic Development 513,996 604, 769 455,866 148,903 
Ai rport 252,726 254, 190 246,812 7 ,378 
Ca pita l outlay 425, 167 1, 113,966 950,944 163,022 

TOTAL EXPEN D ITU R ES 7,001,223 8, 120,894 6,692,381 1 ,428,5.13 
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CITY O F  HARRISONVI LLE, M I SSOU R I  
R EQU I R ED SU PPLEM ENTARY I N FOR MATION 

BUDG ETARY COM PARISON SCH EDU LE 
G EN ERAL FU N D  

YEAR EN DED DECEMBER 3 1 ,  2016 

Genera l  Fund 

Budget 
Origina l  F ina l  Actua l  

Variance 
Positive 

( Negative) 
EXCESS (DEF IC I ENCY) OF R EVEN U ES 

OVER ( U N DER) EXPEN D ITU R ES 484,566 (579,380) 1,688,802 2 ,268, 182 

OTH ER F I NANCI NG SOU RCES ( USES) 
Transfers out 

N ET CHAN G E  I N  FU N D  BALANCES 

FU N D  BALANCE, begi n n ing of yea r -
budget basis 

FU N D  BALANCE, end of year - budget basis 

Accrual  adjustments 

FU N D  BALANCE, end of year  - fu nd basis 

(1, 12 7,900) (1 ,127,900) (1,058,400) 69,500 

(643,334) (1 ,707,280) 630,402 2,337,682 

5 ,005,319 

5 ,635 ,721 

509 , 127 

6, 144,848 
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REVENUES 

Taxes 

Cha rges for services 

Interest 

Miscellaneous 

TOTAL REVENUES 

EXPENDITURES 

Com munity Center 

Emergency Services 

Capital outlay 

en TOTAL EXPENDITURES 
lO 

EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER 

(UNDER) EXPENDITURES 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 

(USES) 

Transfers in 

Transfers out 

Total other financing 

sources (uses) 

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES 

FUND BALANCE (DEFICIT), 

beginning of year - budget 

basis 

FUND BALANCE (DEFICIT), 

end of year - budget basis 

Accrual adjustments 

FUND BALANCE (DEFICIT), 

end of year - fund basis 

CITY OF HARRISONVILLE, MISSOURI 

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

Sales Tax Fund 

Budget 

Original Final 

975,000 975,000 

1,000 1,000 

976,000 976,000 

--- ---

976,000 976,000 

(976,000) (976,000) 

(976,000) (976,000) 

Actual 

1,007,862 

792 

1,008,654 

1,008,654 

(975,998) 

(975,998) 

32,656 

18,579 

51,235 

95,616 

146,851 

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE 

MAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS 

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016 

Comm u n ity Center Fund 

Variance 

Positive Budget 

(Negative) Original Final Actua l 

32,862 

969,640 938,490 886,805 

(208) 1,500 1,500 25 
11,715 11,715 6,253 

32,654 982,855 951,705 893,083 

1,183,019 1,152,419 1,136,217 

1,183,019 1,152,419 1,136,217 
---

32,654 (200,164) (200,714) (243,134) 

137,735 137,735 137,735 

2 

2 137,735 137,735 137,735 

32,656 (62,429) (62,979) (105,399) 

101,269 

(4,130) 

(47,285) 

(51,415) 

Emergency Services Fund 

Variance Variance 

Positive Budget Positive 

(Negative) Original Final Actual (Negative) 

473,500 473,500 518,021 44,521 

(51,685) 1,372,380 1,372,380 1,383,370 10,990 

(1,475) 
(5,462) 48,450 48,450 19,894 (28,556) 

(58,622) 1,894,330 1,894,330 1,921,285 26,955 

16,202 

2,365,496 2,395,001 2,304,756 90,245 
212,025 185,365 177,340 8,025 

16,202 2,577,521 2,580,366 2,482,096 98,270 
--- ---

(42,420) (683,191) (686,036) (560,811) 125,225 

684,500 684,500 684,500 

684,500 684,500 684,500 

(42,420) 1,309 (1,536) 123,689 125,225 

(585,983) 

(462,294) 

675,397 

213,103 



CITY OF HARR ISONVI LLE, M ISSOUR I  
NOTES TO BUDGETARY COM PARISON SCH EDU LES 

FOR TH E YEAR EN DED DECEM BER 31, 2016 

NOTE 1. B U DGETARY I N FORMATION 

An a n n ua l  budget prepa red under the cash basis of accou nti ng is adopted i n  December 
prior to the begi nn ing of each fisca l yea r for al l reven ues a nd expend itu res of the Genera l  
Fund  of the City. The  primary basis of budgeta ry contro l is at  the department leve l .  De­
pa rtments may not lega l ly exceed their  tota l a ppropriation without the Boa rd of Ald ermen 
a pprova l .  A review of the cu rrent year's budget is made by the departments in Decem ber 
of each year and interdepa rtmenta l transfers a re made with Boa rd of Aldermen a pprova l .  
Any remain i ng u nencum bered a ppropriations la pse a t  fisca l year-end un less rea ppropri­
ated by the Board of Aldermen .  Any increase in appropriations d u ring the fiscal year 
m ust be approved by the Boa rd of Aldermen.  
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Fisca l Yea r 
End i ng 

6/30/07 
6/30/08 
6/30/09 
6/30/10 
6/30/11 
6/30/12 
6/30/13 
6/30/14 
6/30/15 
6/30/16 

CITY OF HARR ISONVI LLE, M ISSO U R I  
SCH EDULE OF EM PLOYER'S CONTR I B UTIONS 
FOR TH E YEAR EN DED DECEM BER 3 1, 2016 

Actua ria l ly Contri bution 
Determ ined Contribution Defic iency Covered 
Contri bution in Relation (Excess) Em ployee 

(a) (b) (a-b) Payrol l  (d) 

459 ,484 441,384 18, 100 4,581,311 
458,455 452,094 6,361 4,700 ,856 
519,204 517,246 1,958 5,032,095 
727 ,308 595,284 132,024 5 , 186,404 
757,093 673,908 83, 185 5,373,244 
775 ,215 691,373 83,842 5,236,634 

738,479 72 1,852 16,627 5,327 , 580 
737 ,736 737,736 5 ,581,355 
622 ,293 622,293 5 ,469,323 
572,275 560,285 11,990 5,416, 108 

*Option to provide RSI for ten years at transition or to provide RSI prospective ly. 

7 1  

Contributions 
as a 

Percentage 
of Covered 
E m ployee 

Payro l l  (b/d) 

9 .63% 
9.62% 

10.28% 
1 1.48% 
12.54% 
13.20% 

13.55% 
13.22% 
1 1.38% 
10.34% 



-..J 
I\) 

Fisca l Year 
End ing 

June 30, 2015 
June 30, 2016 

Employer's 
Proportion 

(Percentage) 
of the Net 

Pension 
Liab i l ity 
(Asset) 

(0.402004)% 
(0.402398)% 

CITY OF HARR ISONVI LLE, M ISSOURI 
SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER'S SHARE OF NET PENSION LIABI LITY 

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016 

State's 
Proportionate 

Employer's Share (Amount) Tota l 
Proportionate of the Net Proportionate Employer's 

Share (Amou nt) Pension Liabi l ity Share of Net Covered 
of the Net (Asset) Pension Em ployee 

Pension Liab i l ity Associated with Liabi l ity (a+b) Payro l l  
(Asset) (a)  Employer (b) (1) (2) 

(2 ,476,794) (2,476,794) 5,469,323 
(333,084) (333,084) 5,416,108 

Employer's 
Proportionate 

Share of the Net 
Pension Liabi l ity 

(Asset) as � Plan  Fiducia ry 
Percentage of Its Net Position as 

Covered a Percentage of 
Employee Payrol l  the Tota l 

(1/2) Pension (Asset) 

(0.4529) % (471.83)% 
(0.0615) % (7,613.83)% 

* Schedu le is to be provided prospectively beginn ing with the employer's fisca l year ended June 30, 2016, the Measu rement Date. 
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ASSETS 
Cash 
Taxes receivab le 
Prepa id insurance 
Restricted cash 

TOTAL ASSETS 

CITY OF HARR ISONVI LLE, M ISSO U R I  
NON MAJOR GOVERNM ENTAL FU N DS 

COM B I N I NG BALANCE SH EET 
DECEM BER 31, 2016 

Park 
Fund 

ASSETS 

38,923 
46,910 

9 ,223 
56,442 

15 1,498 

LIAB I LITI ES 
AN D FU N D  BALANCES 

LIAB I LITI ES 
U nea rned revenue 14,552 
Accou nts payable 15 ,949 

Tota l l iab i l ities 30,501 

FU N D  BALANCES 
Nonspendable 9 ,223 
Restricted 56,442 
Assigned 55,332 

Tota l fu nd ba lances 120,997 

TOTAL LIAB I LITI ES AN D 
FU N D  BALANCES 151,498 
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Tota l 
Debt Non major 

Service Governmenta l 
Fund Fu nds 

38,923 
46,910 

9,223 
320,998 377,440 

320,998 472,496 

14,552 
15,949 
30,501 

9 ,223 
320,998 377 ,440 

55,332 
320,998 441,995 

320,998 472 ,496 



CITY O F  HARRISONVI LLE, M ISSO U R I  
NON MAJOR GOVER N M ENTAL FU N DS 

COM B I N I NG STATEM ENT O F  REVENU ES, EXPEN DITU R ES, AN D 
CHANGES I N  FU N D  BALANCES 

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016 

Debt 
Pa rk Service 
Fun d  Fund 

R EVE N U ES 

Taxes 
Property 159,371 
Other 16,878 

Cha rges for services 83,414 
I nterest 93 594 
M isce l laneous 17,501 4,637 

Tota l reven ues 277 ,257 5 ,231 

EXPEND ITU R ES 
Pa rk 474,849 
Ca pita l  outlay 22,447 
Debt service 

Princ ipa l  700,000 
I nterest 138,888 

Tota l expend itures 497 ,296 838,888 

R EVEN U ES U N DER EXPEN D ITU R ES 
BEFO R E  OTH ER FI NANCI NG 
SOU RCES (220,039) (833,657) 

OTH ER F I NANCI NG SOU RCES 
Transfers in  243,400 838,263 

N ET CHANG E I N  FU ND BALANCES 23,361 4,606 

FU N D  BALANCES, January 1, 2016 97 ,636 316,392 

F U N D  BALANCES, December 31, 2016 120,997 320,998 
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Tota l 
Non major 

Governmenta l 
Fu nds 

159,371 
16,878 
83,414 

687 
2 2 , 138 

282,488 

474,849 
22 ,447 

700,000 
138,888 

1,336,184 

(1,053,696) 

1,081,663 

2 7 ,967 

414,028 

441,995 



ASSETS 
Cu rrent Assets 

Cash 
Accounts receiva ble 
Prepa id insu rance 

CITY OF HARR ISONVI LLE, M ISSO U R I  
NONMAJOR ENTERPRISE FU N DS 

COM BI N I NG STATEM ENT O F  N ET POSITION 
DECEM BER 3 1, 2016 

Aq uatic 
Center 
Fu nd 

2 ,441 
Total cu rrent assets 2 ,441 

Noncu rrent Assets 
Restricted cash 152,989 
Ca p ita l assets, net of accu mu lated 

depreciation 599,212 
Tota l noncu rrent assets 752,201 

TOTAL ASSETS 754,642 

LIAB I LITI ES 
Cu rrent Liab i l ities 

Due to other fu nds 102 ,980 
Accou nts paya ble 2 , 109 

TOTAL LIABI LITI ES 105 ,089 

N ET POSITION 
Net i nvestment i n  ca pita l  assets 599,212 
Restricted for: 

Ca p ita l im provements 152,989 
Un restricted (deficit) ( 102,648) 

TOTAL N ET POSITION 649,553 
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Refuse 
Fund Total 

31, 558 31,558 
68,395 68,395 

2 ,441 
99,953 102 ,394 

152,989 

599,212 
752,201 

99,953 854,595 

102 ,980 
2 , 109 

105,089 

599,212 

152,989 
99,953 (2 ,695) 

99,953 749,506 



CITY O F  HARR ISONVI LLE, M ISSO U R I  
NON MAJOR ENTERPRISE FU N DS 

COM B I N I NG STATEM ENT OF R EVE N U ES, EXPENSES, AN D 
CHANG ES I N  N ET POS ITION 

YEAR ENDED DECEM BER 31, 2016 

Aq uatic 
Center Refuse 
Fu nd Fund 

R EVEN U ES 
Charges for services 147 ,697 504,735 

EXPENSES 
Ad m i n istration 174,869 505,064 
Depreciation 87 ,660 

Tota l expenses 262,529 505,064 

LOSS FROM OPERATIONS (114,832) (329) 

NONOPERATING R EVEN U ES 
I nterest i ncome 458 69 

CHANGE IN N ET POSITION (114,374) (260) 

TOTAL N ET POS ITION ,  begi n n i ng of yea r 763,927 100,2 13 

TOTAL N ET POSITION ,  end of year 649,553 99,953 
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Tota l 

652,432 

6 79,933 
87,660 

767,593 

( 115, 161) 

527 

( 1 14,634) 

864, 140 

749,506 



CITY OF HARR ISONVI LLE, M ISSO U R I  
NON MAJOR ENTERPR ISE FU N DS 

COM B I N I NG STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
YEAR EN DED DECEM BER 31, 2016 

Aq uatic 
Center 
Fund 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATI NG ACTIVITI ES 
Cash received from customers 147,697 
Cash payments to su ppl iers (101,537) 
Cash payments to employees (73 ,061) 

Net cash used in  operati ng activities (26,901) 

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL 
FI NANCING ACTIVITI ES 
Due from other funds 28,025 

Net cash provided by noncap ita l 
fi nanc ing activities 28,025 

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AN D RELATED 
F I NANCI NG ACTIVIT IES 
Acq u isition of ca pita l  assets (1 ,197)  

Net cash used i n  capita l and re lated 
fi nanc ing activities (1 ,197)  

CASH FLOWS FROM I NVESTING ACTIVITI ES 
I nterest on  i nvestments 458 
Net i nvestment activity 151, 7 17 

Net cash provided by i nvesti ng activities 152 , 175 

N ET I NCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH 152 , 102 

CASH,  January 1, 2016 887 

CASH , December 3 1, 2016 152,989 
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Refuse 
Fund Tota l 

501,722 649,419 
(505,064) (606,601) 

(73,061) 

(3,342) (30,243) 

28,025 

28,025 

(1 ,197) 

(1 ,197) 

69 527 
151, 717 

69 152,244 

(3,273) 148,829 

34,831 35, 7 18 

3 1,558 184,547 



CITY O F  HARRISONVI LLE, M ISSO U R I  
NONMAJOR ENTERPRISE FU N DS 

COM B I N I NG STATEM ENT O F  CASH FLOWS 
YEAR ENDED D ECEMBER 31, 2016 

ALLOCATION O F  CASH 
Un restricted 
Restricted 

Reconc i l iation of Loss From Operations 
to Net Cash Used in Operati ng 
Activities 

Loss from operations 

Adj ustments to reconci le loss from 
operations to net cash used i n  
operati ng activities: 
Depreciation and  amortization 
( I ncrease) Decrease in :  

Accounts receivable 
Prepa id expenses 

I ncrease (Decrease) i n :  
Accou nts paya ble 

Tota l adj ustments 

Net cash used i n  operating activities 

Aquatic 
Center 
Fund 

152 ,989 
152 ,989 

( 114,832) 

87,660 

(114) 

385 
87,93 1  

(26,901) 
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Refuse 
Fund Tota l 

3 1,558 3 1,558 
152,989 

3 1, 558 184,547 

(329) ( 1 15 ,161) 

87,660 

(3,013)  (3,013) 
(114) 

385 
(3,013)  84,918 

(3,342) (30,243) 



R EVEN U ES 
Taxes 
Cha rges for services 
I nterest 
M iscel la neous 

Tota l revenues 

EXPEN D ITU RES 
Pa rk 
Ca pita l outlay 

Tota l expend itu res 

CITY OF HARR ISONVI LLE, M ISSO U R I  
N O N  MAJOR SPECIAL REVEN U E  FU N DS 
BUDG ETARY COM PARISON SCH EDULE 

YEAR ENDED DECE M B ER 31, 2016 

Pa rk Fund 

Budget 
Origina l  

172 ,400 
69,950 

200 
16,515 

259,065 

479, 123 
73 ,400 

552,523 

F ina l  

172,400 
72 ,775 

200 
13,750 

259 , 125 

480, 140 
72 ,840 

552,980 

Actua l  

229,867 
81,946 

93 
17,501 

329,407 

472,676 
22 ,447 

495, 123 

Va ria nce 
Positive 

( Negative) 

57,467 
9 , 171 

( 107) 
3 ,751 

70,282 

7 ,464 
50,393 
5 7,857 

EXCESS ( DEFIC I ENCY) OF REVENUES 
OVER ( U N DER) EXPEN DITU RES (293,458) (293,855) ( 165 ,716) 128, 139 

OTH ER F I NANCI NG SOU RCES 
Transfers i n  

N ET CHANG E I N  FU N D  BALANCES 

FU N D  BALANCE, begi n n ing of yea r -
budget basis 

FU N D  BALANCE, end of year ­
budget basis 

Accrual  adjustments 

FU N D  BALANCE, end of yea r - fund  basis 
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243,400 243,400 243,400 

(50,058) (50,455) 77 ,684 128, 139 

17,681 

95,365 

25,632 

120,997 



R EVENUES 
I nterest 
M isce l laneous 

Tota l revenues 

EXPE N D ITU RES 
Debt Service 

Pri nc ipa l  
I nterest 

Tota l expend itu res 

CITY O F  HAR RISONVI LLE, M ISSO U R I  
DEBT SERVICE FU N D  

BUDG ETARY COM PARISON SCH EDULE 
YEAR ENDED DECEM BER 31, 2016 

Budget 
Origina l  F ina l  

3 ,000 3,000 

3,000 3,000 

700,000 700,000 
141,015 141,0 15 
841,015 841,0 15 

EXCESS ( DEFIC I ENCY) O F  R EVEN U ES 

Va riance 
Positive 

Actua l  (Negative) 

594 (2,406) 
4,637 4,637 
5,231 2,231 

700,000 
138,888 2 ,127 
838,888 2 , 127 

OVER ( U N DER) EXPEN DITU RES (838,015) (838,015) (833,657) 104 

OTH ER F I NANCI NG SOU RCES 
Tra nsfers i n  838,265 838,265 838,263 (2) 

N ET CHANGE IN FU N D  BALANCES 250 250 4,606 102 

FU N D  BALANCE, begi n n i ng of year  3 16,392 

FU N D  BALANCE, end of yea r - fu nd basis 320,998 
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CllY OF HARR ISONVI LLE, M ISSOURI 

ALL PROPRI ETARY FUN DS 

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE 

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016 

Electric Fund Water/Sewer Fund Aquatic Center Fund 

Actual Actual Actual  

Over Over Over 

Budget (Under) Budget (Under) Budget (Under) 

Original Final Actual Budget Original Final Actual Budget Original Final Actual Budget 

REVENUES 

Cha rges for services 12,658,080 12,658,080 11,259,249 (1,398,831) 4,914,450 4,889,450 4,822,901 (66,549) 134,670 147,705 147,697 (8) 

EXPENSES 

Production 1,629,386 1,697,331 1,524,109 173,222 

Distribution 9,200,000 9,200,000 8,147,705 1,052,295 642,105 762,577 620,996 141,581 

Ad ministration 2,695,900 2,699,080 2,672,795 26,285 927,034 944,034 905,614 38,420 158,860 176,285 174,598 1,687 
Capital outlay 753,200 921,216 197,588 723,628 8,090,000 10,013,276 1,259,898 8,753,378 1,300 1,197 (1, 197) 

Total expenses 12,649,100 12,820,296 11,018,088 1,802,208 11,288,525 13,417,218 4,310,617 9,106,601 160,160 176,285 �795 490 

INCOM E  (LOSS) FROM 

OPERATIONS 8,980 (162,216) 241,161 403,377 (6,37 4,075) (8,527,768) 512,284 9,040,052 (25,490) (28,580) (28,098) 482 

00 OTH ER I NCOM E  (EXPENSE) 
I-" 

Transfers out 

I nterest income 44,000 44,000 37,758 (6,242) 60,000 60,000 208,044 148,044 1,100 1,100 457 (643) 

Other income 73,200 73,200 9,550 (63,650) 8,637,880 8,637,880 50,933 (8,586,947) 

Payments of long-term 

debt (200,000) (200,000) (200,000) (695,000) (695,000) (693,976) 1,024 

I nterest expense (49,227) (49,227) (48,086) 1,141 (520,000) (520,000) (290,516) 229,484 

Total other income 

(expense) (132,027) (132,027) (200,778) (68,751) 7,482,880 7,482,880 (725,515) (8,208,395) 1,100 1,100 457 (643) 

REVENUES OVER (UNDER) 

EXPENSES (123,047) (294,243) 40,383 334,626 1,108,805 (1,044,888) (213,231) 831,657 (24,390) (27,480) (27,641) (161) 

N ET POSITION, January 1, 

2016, budget basis 3,195,622 5,694,349 77,650 

NET POSITION, December 31, 

2016, budget basis 3,236,005 5,481,118 50,009 

Accrual adjustments 6,676,854 21,853,686 �544 

NET POSITION, December 31, 

2016, fund basis 9,912,859 27,334,804 649,553 



CITY OF HARR ISONVILLE, M ISSOURI 

ALL PROPRIETARY FUNDS 

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE 

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016 

Refuse Fu nd Total 

Actual Actual  

Over Over 

Budget ( Under) Budget (Under) 

Original Final Actual Budget Original Final Actua l  Budget 

REVENUES 

Charges for services 507,960 503,630 501,722 (1,908) 18,215,160 18,198,865 16,731,569 (1,467 ,296) 

EXPENSES 

Production 1,629,386 1,697,331 1,524,109 173,222 

Distribution 9,842,105 9,962,577 8,768,701 1,193,876 

Administration 501,925 503,730 505,064 (1,334) 4,283,719 4,323,129 4,258,071 65,058 

Capital outlay 8,844,500 10,934,492 1,458,683 9,475,809 

Total expenses 501,925 503,730 505,064 (1,334) 24,599,710 26,917,529 16,009,564 10,907,965 

I NCOM E  (LOSS) FROM 

OPERATIONS 6,035 (100) (3,342) (3,242) (6,384,550) (8,718,664) 722,005 9,440,669 

00 OTHER I NCOME (EXPENSE) 
I\) 

Tra nsfers in 

Interest income 100 100 69 (31) 105,200 105,200 246,328 141,128 

Other income 8,711,080 8,711,080 60,483 (8,650,597) 

Payments of long-term 

debt (895,000) (895,000) (893,976) 1,024 

Interest expense (569,227) (569,227) (338,602) 230,625 

Total other income 

(expense) 100 100 69 (31) 7,352,053 7,352,053 (925,767) (8,277 ,820) 

REVENUES OVER (UN DER) 

EXPENSES 6,135 (3,273) (3,273) 967,503 (1,366,611) (203,762) 1,162,849 

NET POSITION, January 1, 

2016, budget basis 34,831 9,002,452 

NET POSITION,  December 31, 

2016, budget basis 31,558 8,798,690 

Accrual adjustments 68,395 29,198,479 

NET POSITION, December 31, 

2016, fund basis 99,953 37,997,169 



STATISTICAL SECTION 
(Unaud ited)  

Th is pa rt of the City of Harrisonvi l le 's com prehensive a n nua l  fi na ncia l report presents deta i led i nfor­
mation as a context for understa nd ing what the i nformation in the financ ia l  statements, n ote d isclo­
su res, a nd req u i red supplementary i nformation says a bout the City's overa l l  fi na ncia l hea lth . 

Contents 

Fi nanc ia l  Trends 
These sched u les conta in trend  information to he lp  the reader  
u ndersta nd how the City's financ ia l  performa nce and wel l­
being have cha nged over time.  

Revenue Ca pacity 
These schedu les conta i n  i nformation to he lp  the reader assess the 
City's two most s ign ifica nt loca l reven ue sou rces: sa les tax and 
property tax. 

Debt Ca pacity 
These sched u les present i nformation to he lp  the reader assess the 
affordabi l ity of the City's cu rrent levels of outstand ing debt a nd 
the City's a bi l ity to issue add itional  debt i n  the future. 

Demogra ph ic and Economic I nformation 
These schedu les offer demogra ph ic and economic i nd ica.tors to 
he lp  the reader u ndersta nd the envi ronment with in  which the 
City's financ ia l  activities take place. 

Operati ng I nformation 
These schedu les conta in  service and i nfrastructu re data to he lp  the 
reader u ndersta nd how the i nformation in the City's fi nancia l 
report re lates to the services the City provides and the activities 
it performs. 

Page 

83 - 88 

89 - 94 

95 - 97 

98 - 100 

101 - 102 

Sou rces: Un less otherwise noted , the i nformation in these sched u les is derived from the com pre­
hensive a nnua l  fi na ncia l  reports for the re leva nt year. The City i m plemented GASB State­
ment No. 54 i n  2011; schedu les that i nc lude govern menta l fund ba lance classifications for 
yea rs prior to 2011 are presented in  pre-GASB 54 format. 

I nformation presented in this section is req u i red by GASB 44 to i nc lude current yea r p lus n i ne years 
of previous data . I n  some cases, the City has not presented n ine  yea rs of previous data as it is not 
read i ly ava i lab le or has not been tracked by the City i n  the past. 
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CllY OF HARRISONVILLE, MISSOURI 

NET POSITION BY COMPONENT 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

Fiscal Year 

2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 

Governmental activities 

Net investment in 

capital assets 10,352,096 10,653,678 11,264,304 12,728,792 13,911,126 14,660,071 16,629,597 17,372,336 17,620,666 18,094,342 

Restricted 2,914,819 2,959,767 2,180,313 2,184,248 2,662,683 1,186,071 1,007,888 1,062,950 1,000,182 1,242,788 

Unrestricted (deficit} 1,268,017 1,823,309 1,557,045 859,829 (818,266) 344,053 (1,427,705) (1,829,279) 2,337,987 2,422,395 

Total governmental 

activities net position 14,534,932 15,436,754 15,001,662 15,772,869 15,755,543 16,190,195 16,209,780 16,606,007 16,606,007 21,759,525 

Business-type activities 

Net investment in 

capital assets 15,296,549 15,656,284 17,241,269 21,441,550 22,603,002 22,757,615 24,103,550 25,037,013 25,377,303 27,020,727 

Restricted 1,947,727 2,131,131 2,044,493 2,054,861 2,557,484 2,194,593 2,170,113 1,957,857 1,745,814 2,424,296 

Unrestricted 4,757,742 5,467,973 5,513,489 4,316,580 5,600,624 7,506,505 7,455,912 7,691,175 9,818,049 �552,146 

Total business-type 
00 

activities net position 22,002,018 23,255,388 24,799,251 27,812,991 30,761,110 32,458,713 33,729,575 34,686,045 36,941,166 37,997,169 w 

Primary government 

Net investment in 

capital assets 25,648,645 26,309,962 28,505,573 34,170,342 36,514,128 37,417,686 40,733,147 42,409,349 42,409,349 45,115,069 

Restricted 4,862,546 5,090,898 4,224,806 4,239,109 5,220,167 3,380,664 3,178,001 3,020,807 3,020,807 3,667,084 

Unrestricted 6,025,759 7,291,282 7,070,534 5,176,409 4,782,358 7,850,558 6,028,207 5,861,896 �861,896 10,974,541 

Total primary govern-

ment net position 36,536,950 38,692,142 39,800,913 43,585,860 46,516,653 48,648,908 49,939,355 51,292,052 51,292,052 59,756,694 



CITY OF HARRISONVILLE, M ISSOURI  

CHANGES I N  NET POSITION 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

Fiscal Year 

2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 

EXPENSES 

Governmental activities 

General Government 1,710,746 1,774,334 1,794,612 1,787,553 1,974,816 1,795,064 1,905,925 2,002,426 1,583,748 1,722,897 

Administration of Justice 2,461,933 2,816,808 2,592,948 2,643,954 2,663,787 2,688,722 2,662,905 2,902,002 2,645,741 2,877,989 
Fire and Emergency 575,410 588,701 367,525 

Street 1,104,687 1,157,618 1,258,830 1,398,582 1,217,982 871,419 997,572 1,134,034 1,001,075 1,157,722 

Economic Development 177,994 201,947 155,637 179,210 191,704 225,041 293,097 312,060 431,396 497,326 

Animal Control 151,092 156,545 143,313 143,878 162,758 167,154 176,656 179,525 192,396 192,369 

Ai rport 325,579 391,387 347,264 331,203 321,968 319,622 359,292 300,459 308,994 339,387 

Ambulance 950,069 945,798 2,017,191 2,237,316 2,489,922 2,472,147 2,273,547 2,346,331 2,310,217 2,497,603 

Park 452,080 466,886 470,549 530,106 529,697 590,728 578,777 611,935 550,704 606,756 

Com munity Center 1,289,607 1,277,944 1,413,738 1,367,488 1,450,404 1,506,078 1,650,035 1,617,794 1,458,666 1,488,614 

Towne Center Project 1,074,469 5,678 15,923 18,726 10,187 12,766 13,046 8,126 7,654 1 ;015 

CDBG pass-through expenses 753,740 6,500 

I nterest on long-term debt 1,169,186 919,217 902,258 873,168 860,401 772,777 615,807 581,180 559,742 526,562 

Total governmental activities expenses 11,442,852 10,702,863 11,479,788 11,511,184 12,627,366 11,428,018 11,526,659 11,995,872 11,050,333 11,914,300 

00 
Business-type activities 

.j:>. Electric 11,320,839 11,171,665 10,820,766 11,029,794 10,637,961 11,247,956 11,427,822 11,861,775 10,969,788 11,249,953 

Water and Sewer 3,908,279 4,245,705 4,031,290 4,214,590 3,652,972 3,703,248 3,693,731 4,102,397 3,953,599 4,079,377 

Aquatic Center 204,045 233,572 252,734 229,978 289,610 276,719 260,514 255,901 247,561 262,529 

Refuse 388,345 367,444 416,592 452,778 466,719 473,660 468,685 483,766 494,997 505,064 

Total busi ness-type activities expenses 15,821,508 16,018,386 15,521,382 15,927,140 15,047,262 15,701,583 15,850,752 16,703,839 15,665,945 16,096,923 

Tota l primary government expenses 27,264,360 26,721,249 27,001,170 27,438,324 27,674,628 27,129,601 27,377,411 28,699,711 26,716,278 28,011,223 

PROGRAM REVENUES 

Governmental activities 

Charges for services 

General Government 1,922,835 2,269,442 1,943,791 2,024,687 1,985,007 1,936,801 1,915,453 1,874,146 1,859,509 1,964,977 

Administration of Justice 253,109 248,580 235,958 226,217 239,292 251,138 293,448 282,196 227,768 222,035 

Ambulance 874,553 981,217 1,104,773 1,362,127 1,423,372 1,399,295 1,280,799 1,210,496 1,332,256 1,351,037 

Park 28,503 25,313 23,276 22,609 24,015 28,807 60,448 60,478 68,955 83,414 
Commu nity Center 807,219 750,617 784,011 870,262 850,019 926,252 953,512 949,769 880,798 852,482 

Operating grants a nd contributions 632,643 184,774 36,610 218,541 939,601 144,163 187,359 258,367 293,635 132,527 
Capital grants a nd contributions 320,525 508,546 352,785 

Tota l governmental activities 

program revenues 4,518,862 4,459,943 4,128,419 5,044,968 5,969,852 4,686,456 4,691,019 4,635,452 4,662,921 4,959,257 

Busi ness-type activities 

Charges for services 

Electric 12,185,598 11,712,338 11,355,377 11,529,975 11,200,157 11,688,342 12,020,203 12,272,400 11,451,836 11,328,726 
Water and Sewer 4,503,439 4,651,353 4,866,050 4,588,165 4,458,249 4,581,605 4,313,059 4,351,387 4,747,235 4,864,960 



CITY OF HARRISONVILLE, M ISSOURI 

CHANGES I N  NET POSITION 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

Fiscal Year 

2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 

PROGRAM REVENUES (Continued) 

Business-type activities (Continued) 

Cha rges for services (Continued) 

Aquatic Center 135,088 133,344 125,189 125,450 166,394 137,666 109,665 111,505 131,291 147,697 
Refuse 398,383 399,814 424,579 451,427 469,763 462,386 465,954 490,664 500,253 504,735 

Operating grants and contributions 10,000 
Capital grants a nd contributions 2,017,313 982,687 280,500 91,811 

Total business-type activities program 

revenues 16,897,162 16,754,585 16,667,908 18,252,596 17,888,791 17,150,499 16,908,881 17,235,956 16,922,426 16,846,118 

Total primary government program 

revenues 21,357,105 20,883,004 2 1,712,876 24,222,448 22,575,247 21,836,955 21,599,900 21,871,408 21,585,347 21,805,375 

NET (E.XPENSE) REVENUE 

Governmental activities (6,242,920) (6,242,920) (7 ,351,369) (6,657,514) (6,7 41,562) (6,741,562) (6,835,640) (7,360,420) (6,387,412) (6,955,043) 

Business-type activities 878,776 878,463 1,249,813 3,205,334 2,187,208 1,448,916 1,058,129 532,117 1,256,481 749,195 

Total primary government net expense (5,364,144) (5,364,457) (6,101,556) (3,452,180) (4,554,354) (5,292,646) (5,777,511) (6,828,303) (5,130,931) (6,205,848) 

CXl 
GENERAL REVENUES AND OTHER (J1 

CHANGES IN NET POSITION 

Governmental activities 

Taxes 

Property taxes 867,421 906,279 864,193 896,169 816,771 915,825 965,993 957,930 971,143 967,740 

Sales taxes 3,523,837 3,605,629 3,388,455 3,978,397 4,186,070 4,239,538 4,231,748 4,532,729 4,530,932 4,695,188 

Franchise taxes 1,485,734 1,969,979 1,657,903 1,762,577 1,622,045 1,572,099 1,590,453 1,601,918 1,904,019 1,450,532 

Other taxes 161,988 152,724 215,065 2 11,217 152,046 157,339 352,997 338,935 345,644 347,882 

Un restricted investment earnings 649,256 313,661 118,459 37,719 33,593 29,815 36,838 40,726 41,110 56,623 

Miscellaneous 260,722 196,470 458,050 351,344 320,148 294,193 169,275 307,504 271,252 237,768 

Transfers (490,485) (32,595) (33,265) (23,095) 

Total governmental activities 6,948,958 7,144,742 6,702,125 7,237,423 6,640,188 7,176,214 7,314,039 7,756,647 8,064,100 7,755,733 

Business-type activities 

Unrestricted investment earni ngs 456,808 374,907 294,050 228,550 227,646 216,092 149,424 246,333 239,868 246,329 

Miscellaneous 130,771 154,925 153,871 60,480 

Transfers 490,485 32,595 33,265 23,095 (200,000) 

Total business-type activities 456,808 374,907 294,050 228,550 7 18,131 248,687 313,460 424,353 193,739 306,809 

Total primary government 7,405,766 7,519,649 6,996,175 7,465,973 7,358,319 7,424,901 7,627,499 8,181,000 8,257,839 8,062,542 

CHANGE IN NET POSITION 

Governmental activities 706,038 901,822 (649,244) 579,909 (101,374) 434,652 478,399 396,227 1,676,688 800,690 
Business-type activities 1,335,584 1,253,370 1,543,863 3,433,884 2,905,339 1,697,603 1,371,589 956,470 1,450,220 1,056,004 

Total primary government 2,041,622 2,155,192 894,619 4,013,793 2,803,965 2,132,255 1,849,988 1,352,697 3,126,908 1,856,694 



CITY OF HARRISONVILLE, MISSOURI 

FUND BALANCES, GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 
GENERAL FUND 

Nonspendable 137,711 148,835 170,485 184,885 211,284 222,988 
Restricted 113,630 114,065 114,159 114,855 115,021 111,610 
Unassigned 5,930,458 6,304,295 5,384,287 4,784,005 5,336,961 5,810,251 
Reserved 120,742 134,148 122,118 101,466 
Unreserved 7,585,851 8,203,393 8,179,575 7,202,484 

Total General Fund 7,706,593 8,337,541 8,301,693 7,303,950 6,181,799 6,567,195 5,668,931 5,083,745 5,663,266 6,144,849 

ALL OTHER GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

Nonspendable .� 112,270 101,248 114,063 113,131 129,281 135,774 
Restricted 2,549,053 1,073,822 851,553 944,488 1,313,363 1,280,789 
Assigned 1,064,581 907,262 7 72,069 659,243 243,727 308,293 
Unassigned (deficit) (183,323) (318,367) (470,882) (410,099) (70,973) 
Reserved 1,150,442 1,020,234 1,081,070 1,107,459 
Unreserved, reported in: 

Special revenue funds 3,380,010 3,532,205 2,350,584 2,523,616 
00 

Total all other governmental (J) 

funds 4,530,452 4,552,439 3,431,654 3,631,075 3,542,581 1,763,965 1,266,803 1,306,763 1,686,371 1,653,883 



CITY OF HARRISONVILLE, MISSOURI 

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES, GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS - MODIFIED ACCRUAL 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 
REVENUES 

Taxes 

Property 848,607 911,262 874,222 923,255 891,842 915,825 965,993 957,930 971,143 967,740 
Sales 3,523,837 3,605,629 3,388,455 3,978,397 4,186,070 4,239,538 4,231,748 4,532,729 4,530,932 4,695,188 
Franchise 1,485,734 1,969,979 1,657,903 1,762,577 1,622,045 1,572,099 1,590,453 1,601,918 1,904,019 1,450,532 
Other 156,076 152,724 215,065 211,217 152,046 157 ,339 352,997 338,935 345,644 347,882 

Licenses, fees, and permits 225,187 411,668 140,049 193,055 162,417 161,692 129,094 124,911 148,648 189,068 
Fines and forfeitures 253,109 248,580 235,958 226,217 239,292 251,138 293,448 282,196 227,768 222,035 
Charges for services 3,407,923 3,614,921 3,7 15,802 4,086,630 4,119,996 4,129,463 4,081,118 3,969,978 3,992,870 4,062,842 
Grants 632,643 184,774 36,610 539,066 1,362,928 229,382 187 ,359 258,367 293,635 485,312 
Investment earnings 649,256 313,661 118,459 37,719 33,593 29,815 36,838 40,726 41,110 56,623 
Miscellaneous 260,722 196,470 458,050 351,583 336,855 294,193 169,275 307,504 271,252 241,132 

Total revenues 11,443,094 11,609,668 10,840,573 12,309,716 13,107,084 11,980,484 12,038,323 12,415,194 12,727,021 12,718,354 

EXPENDITURES 

General Government 1,615,486 1,675,957 1,705,939 1,686,829 1,875,373 1,667,057 1,787,238 1,857,424 1,578,196 1,593,951 
00 Administration of Justice 2,374,198 2,720,316 2,481,177 2,529,476 2,554,360 2,581,042 2,57 1,510 2,824,957 2,545,685 2,568,837 
....... 

Fire and Emergency 494,272 514,913 305,195 
Street 860,268 888,273 986,420 1,139,023 962,085 635,787 770,736 900,050 759,010 837 ,799 
Economic Development 161,770 186,738 140,428 164,220 176,936 210,273 275,794 296, 174 431,365 455,440 
Animal Control 145,331 149,789 136,557 137, 122 156,002 160,398 171,273 177,458 194,045 178,943 
Airport 222,207 275,850 232,654 219,903 180,079 171,867 2 10,681 162,129 177,497 196,537 
Ambulance 865,527 859,740 1,914,395 2,087,034 2,324,734 2,389,722 2,163,113 2,229,575 2,224,086 2 ,307,984 
Park 378,458 396,746 395,146 462,220 462,593 488,375 463,459 505,454 463,685 474,849 
Community Center 994,485 979,138 1,112,725 1,066,878 1,151,513 1,197,703 1,322,084 1,284,251 1,122,009 1,123,877 
Towne Center Project 1,248,099 5,678 15,923 18,726 10,187 12,766 13,046 8,126 7,654 7,075 
CDBG pass-through 

expenses 753,740 6,500 
Capital outlay 1,254,285 849,141 1,142,304 1,938,203 1,837,010 1,020,483 2,152,920 1,163,730 733,847 950,944 
Debt service 

Principal 7,410,000 575,000 780,000 825,000 733,926 815,940 942,088 1,006,082 1,030,336 1,105,726 
Interest and fiscal fees 1,165,574 879,454 862,495 833,404 820,637 699,696 556,542 521,915 500,477 467,297 

Total expenditures 19,189,960 10,956,733 12,211,358 13,108,038 13,999,175 12,057,609 13,400,484 12,937,325 11,767,892 12,269,259 

EXCESS OF REVENUES 

OVER (UNDER) 

EXPENDITURES (7,  7 46,866) 652,935 (1,370,785) (798,322) (892,091) (77 ,125} (1,362,161} (522,131} 959,129 449,095 



CITY OF HARRISONVILLE, MISSOURI 

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES, GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS - MODIFIED ACCRUAL 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 

(USES) 

Proceeds of long-term debt 8,435,895 171,931 
Payments to escrow agent (1,283,500) 
Transfers in 1,307,535 1,343,412 1,425,335 3,779,288 2,680,436 2,578,093 2,228,146 3,018,833 2 ,851,276 2,034,398 
Transfers out jl,307 ,535) (1,343,412) (1,425,335) (3,779,288) (3,170,921) (2,610,688) (2,261,411) (3,041,928) (2,851,276) (2,034,398) 

Total other financing 

sources (uses) 8,435,895 (318,554) (1,316,095) (33,265) (23,095) 

NET CHANGES IN FUND 

BALANCES 9,088,830 Jl.370,785) (798,322) (892,091) (395,679) (1,393,220) (1,395,426) (545,226) 959,129 449,095 

DEBT SERVICE AS A 

PERCENTAGE OF 

NONCAPITAL 

EXPENDITURES 14.4% 14.8% 14.8% 12.8% 13.7% 13.7% 13.3% 13.0% 13.9% 13.9% 
00 
00 



Fisca l Yea r 
Ended 

Decem ber 3 1, 

2007 
2008 
2009 
2010 
2011 
2012 
2013 
2014 
2015 
2016 

CITY O F  HARR ISONVI LLE, M ISSOUR I  
ASSESSED VALU E OF TAXABLE PROPERTY 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

Tota l Taxa ble 
Real  Persona l  Assessed 

Property Property Va lue 

9 1,927,554 23,243,342 115 , 170,896 
93,646, 146 21,440, 7 7 1  115 ,086,9 17 
93,250,444 25, 538, 774 118, 789 ,218 
94,022,248 25, 241,452 119,263, 700 
94,424,728 23,546,390 117,971, 118 
95,845,535 22,09 1,806 117 ,937 ,341 
94,552,735 22,682,321 117,235,056 
94,992 ,339 25,948,277 120,940,616 
96,409,365 25,097, 110 12 1,506,4 75 
96,807,843 23,807,868 120,615 ,711 

Sou rce: Cass Cou nty Assessor's Office 

Tota l D i rect 
Tax Rate 

0.77 
0.78 
0.66 
0.66 
0.67 
0.68 
0.69 
0.69 
0.69 
0.69 

Note: A statewide real  property reassessment program was i m plemented January 1, 1985, to 
create a more equ itable shari ng of the property tax burden by owners of rea l property. 

Assessed va l ue was determ ined by a pp lying one of three percentages to the market va lue.  
Those percentages a re 32 for commerc ia l ,  19 for residentia l ,  and  12 for agricu ltu re. 

Tax rates are per $ 100 of assessed va l ue. 
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c.o 
0 

Fisca l Year 
Ended Genera l  

December 31, Fund 

2007 0.5278 
2008 0.5358 
2009 0.5422 
2010 0.5422 
2011 0.5501 
2012 0;5585 
2013 0.5658 
2014 0.5672 
2015 0.5672 
2016 0.5672 

Sou rce: Cass County Col lector 

CITY OF HARR ISONVI LLE, M ISSOUR I  
D IRECT AN D OVER LAPPING PROPERTY TAX RATES 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

C ity D i rect Rates Overlapping Rates 

Total 
Ambulance Pa rk Tota l Overla pping 

Fund Fund D i rect State Other Rates 

0. 1195 0.1195 0.7668 0.03 6.04 6.07 
0 .12 13 0 .12 13 0.7784 0.03 6 . 19 6.22 

0 .1227 0.6649 0.03 6 .19 6.22 
0.1227 0.6649 0.03 6.20 6.23 
0. 1245 0.6746 0.03 6.20 6.23 
0.1264 0.6849 0.03 6 .18 6.2 1 
0. 1280 0.6938 0.03 6.18 6.2 1 
0. 1283 0.6955 0.03 6 .18 6.21 
0. 1283 0.6955 0.03 6 .18 6.2 1 
0. 1283 0.6955 0.03 6.18 6.21 

Note: The City's d i rect property tax rate may be i ncreased on ly by a majority vote of the City's residents. 

Tota l 
D irect a nd 

Overlapp ing 

6.84 
7 .00 
6.88 
6.89 
6.90 
6.90 
6.91 
6.91 
6.9 1 
6.91 



Taxpayer 

Church & Dwight 
Wa l-Mart 
H FM D Properties, LLC 
Harrisonvi l l e  M P  I I ,  LLC 
Sutherlands Lumber Co. 
M i l l-Wa lk  Ma l l  
Harrisonvi l le  Crossi ngs Properties 

c..o 
R LP Development Company 

._,. Steven Flanery 
Max Properties 
Eaglepicher Pharmaceutica l 
AHG, I nc. 
U n iversa l Forest Products 
Crown Properties, LC 

TOTALS 

Data provided by the Cass County Col lector 

CITY OF HARR ISONVI LLE, M ISSOUR I  
PR INC IPAL PROPERTY TAXPAYERS 

CURRENT YEAR AN D TEN YEARS AGO 

2016 

Percentages 
Taxable of Tota l 

Assessed Assessed 
Va lue Ran k  Va l uation 

7 ,172,120 1 5 .95 
3 ,167,500 2 2 .63 
2 ,420, 110 3 2.01 
2 ,219 ,230 4 1.84 
1,461, 150 5 1.2 1 
1,43 1,000 6 1. 19 

930,630 7 0.77 
656,470 8 0.54 
648,300 9 0.54 
647,300 10 0.54 

20,753,810 17.70 

2007 

Percentages 
Taxa ble of Tota l 

Assessed Assessed 
Va l ue Ran k  Va luation 

4,824,870 1 4.19 
3 ,097,868 2 2 .69 

820,820 7 0.7 1 
1,447 ,670 3 1.26 

986,850 5 0.86 

564,940 10 0.49 

1,070,640 4 0.93 
880,010 6 0.76 
812,605 8 0.71 
575 ,830 9 0.50 

15,082, 103 13.10 



(.0 
I\) 

Fisca l Total Current Tax 
Yea r  Tax Levy Col lections 

2007 883,130 728,365 
2008 895,837 858,63 1 
2009 789,830 763,896 
2010 792,984 7 2 1,512 
2011 795,833 746,929 
2012 807 ,753 732,284 
2013 813,377 728,785 
2014 841, 142 792, 7 12 
2015 845,078 826,840 
2016 838,882 774,804 

CITY O F  HARR ISONVI LLE, M ISSO U R I  
PROPERTY TAX LEVI ES AND COLLECTIONS 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

Percent Del i nquent 
Total Tax 

Col lections 
of Levy Tax Tota l Tax as Percent of 

Col lected Col lections Col lections Current Levy 

82 .48 154,765 883 , 130 100.00 
95.85 37,206 895,837 100.00 
96.72 25,934 789,830 100.00 
90.99 7 1,472 792 ,984 100.00 
93.85 47 ,436 794,365 99.82 
90.66 74,038 806,322 99.82 
89.60 83,468 812,253 99 .86 
94.24 46,785 839,497 99.80 
9 7.84 9 , 138 835,978 98.92 
92.36 774,804 92 .36 

O utstan d i ng 
Del inq uent 

Outstan d i ng Taxes as 
Del i nquent Percent of 

Taxes Current Levy 

1,468 0.18 
1,43 1 0 .18 
1, 124 0.14 
1,645 0.20 
9 , 100 1.08 

64,078 7 .64 

NOTES: Amounts relating to ra i l road and uti l ity property taxes a re not inc lu ded a bove. 

Taxes paid u nder protest a re held by the respective Cou nty Col lector u nti l the protest is resolved . This schedu le 
presents taxes paid under protest at J une 30 as de l i n quent, a n d  subsequent rem ittances to the City a re i ncluded 
as de l inquent tax col lections. 



Fisca l City 
Year  Rate 

2007 1.500 
2008 1.500 
2009 1.875 
2010 1.875 
2011 1.875 
2012 1.875 
2013 1.875 
2014 1.875 
2015 1.875 
2016 1.875 

CITY O F  HARR ISONVI LLE, M ISSOUR I  
D I R ECT AND OVERLAPPI NG 

SALES TAX RATES 
LAST TEN F ISCAL YEARS 

Cass 
Cou nty 

1.250 
1.250 
1.250 
1.250 
1.250 
1. 750 
1.750 
1.750 
1.750 
1.750 

Sou rce: M issou ri Department of Revenue 
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State Tota l 

4.225 6.975 
4.225 6.975 
4.225 7 .350 
4.225 7 .350 
4.225 7 .350 
4.225 7 .850 
4.225 7 .850 
4.225 7 .850 
4.225 7 .850 
4.225 7 .850 
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� 

2007 2008 

CITY OF HARR ISONVILLE, MISSOURI 
TAXABLE RETAI L SALES 

LAST TEN CALENDAR YEARS 
( in thousands of dol lars) 

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 

TOTAL RETAIL SALES 199,144 200,585 198,251 192,046 201,67 1 204,736 203,559 213,512 217,311 223,335 

Note: Th is report does not break out taxable sa les by reta i l  category as some deta i l  information is considered confidentia l by state law. 

Source: Missouri Department of Revenue 



CITY OF HARRISONVILLE, MISSOURI 

RATIOS OF OUTSTANDING DEBT BY TYPE 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

Governmental Business-Type 

Activities Activities 

Fiscal Year Certificates Capital Total Percentage 

Ended of Revenue Promissory Lease Revenue Promissory Primary of Personal Per 

December 31, Participation Bonds Notes Payable Bonds Note Government Income Capita 

2007 10,810,000 8,630,000 425,794 11,175,000 31,040,794 0.15 2,985 

2008 10,235,000 8,630,000 397,257 10,290,000 29,552,257 0.15 2,842 

2009 9,635,000 17,450,000 367,027 9,580,000 37,032,027 0.18 3,561 

2010 9,010,000 17,250,000 335,002 9,059,375 35,654,377 0. 18 3,428 

2011 8,530,000 17,030,000 171,931 301,076 11,718,541 380,000 38,131,548 0. 17 3,806 

2012 7,295,000 16,785,000 171,931 265,136 11,556,672 380,000 36,453,739 0. 16 3,634 

2013 6,665,000 16,520,000 162,916 227,063 10,711,700 278,869 34,565,548 0. 15 3,443 

<.O 2014 6,015,000 16,220,000 147,165 186,732 9,885,400 250,060 32,704,357 0. 14 3,257 
(Jl 2015 5,350,000 15,920,000 152,066 144,006 9,045,400 220,526 30,831,998 0.13 3,071 

2016 4,650,000 15,585,000 126,602 98,744 8,181,700 190,250 28,832,296 0.12 2,854 



Assessed va luation 

Constitutiona l  debt l i m it 

CITY OF HARR ISONVI LLE, M ISSO U R I  
COM PUTATION OF LEGAL DEBT MARG I N  

DECEM BER 31, 2016 

Genera l  
Obl igation Bonds 

Ord inary Add itiona l  
(1) (2)  

120,615 ,711 

12,061,571 12,061,571 

Less genera l  obl igation bonds payable - 0 - - 0 -

12,061,57 1  12,061,5 7 1  

Cash and secu rities ava i la ble for reti rement - 0 - - 0 -
12,061,57 1 12,061,57 1  

Tota l 

120,6 15,  7 11 

24, 123, 142 

- 0 -

24, 123, 142 

- 0 -
24, 123, 142 

(1) Artic le V I ,  Sections 26(b) a nd (c) of the State Constitution perm its the City, by vote of two­
th i rds of the voti ng electorate, to incur  an  i ndebted ness for City purposes not to exceed 10% 
of the taxa ble ta ngible property there i n  as shown by the last com pleted assessment. 

(2) Article VI, Sections 26(d) a n d  (e) of the State Constitution provides that the City may become 
i ndebted not exceed ing the aggregate and additiona l  10% for the pu rpose of acq u i ri ng 
rights-of-way, constructing, extend ing and improvi ng streets and  aven ues and/or sa n ita ry 
storm systems, a nd purchasing or constructing waterworks and  electric or  other  l ight pla nts, 
provided that the tota l genera l  obl igation i ndebtedness of the City does not exceed 20% of 
the assessed va l uation .  
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CITY O F  HARR ISONVI LLE, M ISSO U R I  
COM PUTATION OF D I R ECT AN D ESTI MATED OVER LAPPI NG DEBT 

DECE M B ER 3 1, 2016 

Approxi mate 
Gross Debt Percentage 

Less Appl ica ble to 
Taxing Ju risd iction S ink ing Fund (1) Harrisonvi l le  (1) 

School Districts, Cass R-IX 29, 777 ,862 65% 

D i rect debt obl igations of the City of 
Ha rrisonvi l l e  (genera l  obl igation bonds), 
net of debt service fu nds 0% 

Tota l d i rect and esti mated 
overla pping debt 29, 777 ,862 

(1) On the basis of assessed va luation .  

Approxi mate 
Amount 

App l i ca ble to 
Ha rrisonvi l le  (1) 

19,355,610 

19,355,610 

NOTE: Other govern ment entities whose bounda ries overlap the City have outsta n d i ng bonds 
paya ble from ad va lorem taxes. Th is sched ule of d i rect and esti mated overlapp ing ad 
va lorem debt was compi led from i nformation furn ished by the ju risd ictions responsib le 
for debt. Except for the amou nts re lati ng to the City, the City has not i ndependently 
verified the accuracy or com pleteness of such i nformation ,  and no representation 
regard i ng the rel ia bi l ity of such i nformation is made.  

Furthermore, certa i n  e ntities l isted in  the statement may have issued add it ional  bonds 
and  such entities may have programs requ i ri ng the issuance of su bsta ntia l  add itiona l  
bonds, the amou nts of which ca nnot be determi ned at th is ti me. 

Lease purchase agreements a re not i ncl uded in th is schedu le  but have been i nc luded 
in the past. Th is cha nge accounts for the sign ifica nt d ifference a mong th is year and  
previous yea rs' sched u les. 
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Fisca l (1)  

CITY OF HARR ISONVI LLE, M ISSOUR I  
DEMOG RAPH I C  STATISTICS 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

(2) 
Per Ca pita 

Persona l  Personal  
(3)  

School 
Yea r Population I n come I ncome Enro l l ment 

2007 10,400 205,920,000 
2008 10,400 201,040,000 
2009 10,400 201,040,000 
2010 10,400 201,040,000 
2011 10,019 2 18,915, 150 
2012 10,030 230,630,000 
2013 10,040 235,000,000 
2014 10,040 240,000,000 
2015 10,040 232 ,000,000 
2016 10, 104 232,000,000 

Data Sou rces: 

1 Burea u of Census and City estimates 
2 KCADC and City est imates 
3 School District 
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19,800 2 ,500 
19,331 2 ,504 
19,33 1 2 ,580 
19 ,33 1 2 ,580 
21 ,850 2 ,580 
23,063 2 ,585 
23,400 2 ,590 
23,750 2 ,500 
23, 103 2 ,459 
2 1,717  2 ,425 

(2 )  
Unemp loyme nt 

R ate 

4.30% 
6 . 10% 

10 .00% 
10.00% 

7 .90% 
6.40% 
6 .40% 
6.40% 
5 . 70% 
4. 70% 



Em ployer 

Wa l-Ma rt Distri bution Cente r  
Cass Med ica l Center 
Cass R-IX Schools 
Wal-M a rt 
Cass Cou nty Government 
Church & Dwight Co. ,  I nc. 
City of Harrisonvi l le  
Casco Area Workshop 
Crown Care Center  
Fam i ly Center 

Tota l Employment 

CITY OF HARR ISONVI LLE, M ISSO U R I  
PR INC IPAL EMPLOYERS 

T H IS F ISCAL YEAR AN D E IGHT YEARS AGO 

2016 

% of Tota l 

Employees Ran k  Employment 

630 1 22.52% 
394 2 14.09% 
382 3 13 .66% 
298 4 10.65% 
276 5 9.87% 
230 6 8.22% 
198 7 7 .08% 
194 8 6.94% 
105 9 3 .75% 

90 10 3.22% 

2 , 797 

2008 

Employees 

775 
330 
367 
390 
285 
208 
225 
220 
101 

98 

2 ,999 

Sou rce: Ha rrisonvi l le Area Cha m ber of Com merce and  Economic Development 
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CITY O F  HAR R ISONVI LLE, M ISSO U R I  
SCH EDU LE O F  PROPERTY VALUE,  CONSTRUCTION PERM ITS ISSUED, 

AN D TOTAL DOLLARS ON DEPOSIT AT YEAR-EN D 
WITH LOCAL BAN KS AN D SAVINGS AN D LOANS 

LAST TEN YEARS 

Construction Permits a nd Va lue  Tota l 
(1) an d  (2)  Year-End Deposits 

Residential Commerc ia l  at  Local Ba nks 
Yea r Number Va l ue N umber Va l ue (Thousa nds) 

December 2007 861 6 ,049,296 154 14,936,040 339,3 13 
December 2008 319 3 ,054,774 93 59,978,221 277 ,759 
December 2009 245 1,672,246 68 1,180,815 295,081 
December 2010 276 1,283,561 95 18,650,228 3 17 ,327 
December 2011 3 18 1,403,626 98 3,392, 188 329,770 
December 2012 240 2 , 103,410 76 3 ,685,500 341,344 
December 2013 176 1,33 1,781 73 5 ,293,503 379 ,785 
December 2014 176 1,973,875 66 2 ,416,903 326,9 18 
December 2015 180 2 ,202,655 59 8,042,346 348,202 
December 2016 241 6,672 ,912 83 10,622 ,390 340,592 

( 1) Perm it tota ls i ncl ude add itions to existing structu res. 

(2) I nformation obta ined from Codes Adm i n istration Department. 

(3) Assessed va l uation .  

Tota l 
Property 

Val ue 
(3) 

115 , 170,896 
115 ,086,917 
118,789,218 
119,263, 700 
117,97 1,118 
117 ,937,341 
117 ,235,056 
120,940,616 
12 1,506,475 
120,615 ,711 



CITY OF HARRISONVILLE, MISSOURI 
CAPITAL ASSET STATISTICS 

BY FUNCTION/PROGRAM 
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

Function/Program 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 

Police 
Patrol u n its 23 23 23 23 20 20 20 21 21 21 

Police stations 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 

Fire 
Fire stations 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 

Fire hydrants 660 670 678 678 678 678 678 678 678 678 

Streets 
Miles 69 69 69 69 69 69 69 - 59 69 69 

Streetlights 900 900 900 900 900 900 900 900 900 900 

Miles of storm sewers 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 

Parks 
Parks 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 

Acreage 250 250 250 250 250 250 250 250 250 250 

..... Golf courses 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 
0 

Swimmi ng pools 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 ..... 

Ten nis courts 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 

Community centers 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 

Sewer 
Sanitary sewer (miles) 54.0 54.0 54.0 54.0 54.0 54.0 54.0 54.0 54.0 54.0 

Plant capacity (mgl) 1.3 1.5 1.5 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 

Treatment plants 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 

Service connections 4,094 4,102 4,084 4,071 4,037 4,062 4,061 4,073 4,083 4,106 

Maximum dai ly  capacity 
of treatment plant in 
gallons 3,000,000 3,000,000 3,000,000 3,000,000 3,000,000 3,000,000 3,000,000 3,000,000 3,000,000 3,000,000 

Water 
Miles of water mai ns 56 56 56 56 56 56 56 56 56 56 

Service con nections 3,984 3,992 3,978 3,966 3,923 3,937 3,950 3,944 3,955 4,188 

Daily average consump-
tion in gallons 1,300,000 1,300,000 950,000 950,000 950,000 950,000 950,000 950,000 950,000 950,000 

Source: City Department Heads 



CITY OF HARR ISONVI LLE, M ISSO U R I  
FU LL-TI M E  EQU IVALENT CITY GOVERN M ENT EM PLOYEES 

BY FU NCTION/ PROGRAM 
LAST TEN F ISCAL YEARS 

Function/Progra m 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 

Genera l  Government 
Ma nagement 5 5 5 5 4 4 3 
Fi nance 7 8 7 6 7 6 7 
Codes 4 4 4 4 4 2 2 
Com m u n ity 

Development 2 1 2 2 2 3 3 

Pol ice 
Officers 20 20 21 23 25 23 23 
Civi l i ans 6 5 6 6 6 6 5 
An ima l  Contro l 2 1 2 2 2 1 2 
Cou rt 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 

F ire/EMS 
Fi refighters/Di rector* 5 5 1 1 1 1 
Di rector/Fi refighters/ 

EMTs* 2 3 19 17 15 19 2 1  
Clerk 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 

Publ ic  Works 
Engi n eeri ng 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 
Streets 8 8 8 7 7 8 8 
Electric 9 9 9 8 8 7 8 
Water 13 13 13 13 12 12 12 
Wastewater 5 5 4 4 4 4 4 
Ai rport 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 

Comm u n ity Center/ Pa rks 9 11 11 11 10 8 10 

Tota l 101 102 116 113 111 108 112 

2014 2015 

3 3 
6 6 

4 5 

24 23 
6 6 
2 2 
1 1 

1 

19 18 
1 1 

1 1 
8 8 

10 11 
12 12 

4 4 
1 1 

11 11 

113 114 

* For 2014, the Fi refighter category has been com bi ned with Pa ramedics, and  Codes category 
has been com bi ned with Com m u n ity Development. 
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2016 

3 
7 

5 

20 
8 
2 
2 

1 

17 
1 

8 
8 

12 
4 
1 

11 
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DANA F. COLE 
& COMPANYLLP 
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER 
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS 

BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN 
ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

To the Honorable Mayor and 
Members of the Board of Aldermen 

City of Harrisonville, Missouri 

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States 
of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Stand­

ards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the City of 
Harrisonville, Missouri, which comprise the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the 
aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund 
information as of and for the year ended December 31, 2016, and have issued our report thereon 
dated April 27, 2017. 

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the City of Harrisonville, Missouri's internal con­
trol over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate 
in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not 
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness _of the City's internal control. Accord­
ingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City's internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow man­
agement or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or 
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a com­
bination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material 
misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, 
on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal 
control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by 
those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of 
this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting 
that might be material weaknesses or significant deficienci.es. Given these limitations, during our au­
dit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. 
However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. We identified a certain defi­
ciency in internal control, described in the accompanying schedule of findings and responses, that we 
consider to be a significant deficiency as item 2016-001. 
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Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City of Harrisonville, Missouri's finan­
cial statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain 
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants, noncompliance with which could have a direct 
and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an 
opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we 
do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance 
that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards. 

City of Harrisonville, Missouri's Response to Findings 

The City of Harrisonville, Missouri's response to the findings identified in our audit is described in the 
accompanying schedule of findings and responses. We did not audit the City of Harrisonville, Missouri's 
response, and accordingly, we express no opinion on it. 

Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compli­
ance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's 
internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance 
with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity's internal control and compliance. Ac­
cordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 

Overland Park, Kansas 
April 27, 2017 
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CITY OF HARRISONVI LLE, M ISSO U R I  
SCH E D U LE OF F IN D I NGS AN D R ESPONSES 

YEAR EN DED D ECEMBER 31, 2016 

2016-001 RELIANCE U PON THE AU D ITOR 

Criteria 

As described i n  our engagement letter, ma nagement is responsi ble for estab l ish ing a nd 
ma inta i n i ng i nterna l  controls, i nc lud ing mon itoring, a nd for the fa i r  presentation of fi­
nancia l statements, i nc lud ing the notes to the fi nancia l statements, in conformity with 
accou nting pri nc ip les genera l ly accepted in the U n ited States of America . 

Cond ition 

Management should possess the ab i l ity to reconci le a l l  accounts a nd prepare financ ia l  
statements i n  accordance with accounting pri nc ip les genera l ly accepted i n  the U n ited 
States of America .  The prepa ration of fi nancia l statements u nder th is basis of accounti ng 
req u i res that management possess the abi l ity to properly record a nd c lassify tra nsactions 
in a genera l  ledger, reconci le a l l  accounts, measu re a nd record needed adjustments to 
the accou nts, and prepa re the financia l  statements a nd re lated d isclosu res without the 
assistance from the a ud itors. The a ud itors d rafted the fi na ncia l statements and re lated 
note d isclosu res from a tria l  ba lance and other documentation provided by C ity person nel .  

City person ne l  do not obta in  the expertise necessa ry to d raft the yea r-end financia l  state­
ments, su pplementary i nformation ,  a nd notes to the fi nanc ia l  statements.  

Potentia l  Effect 

The potentia l  exists that a materia l  m isstatement of the fi na ncia l statements cou ld  occur 
and  not be prevented or detected by the City's i nterna l control .  

Recommendation 

We recom mend that the City review a nd a pprove the proposed aud itor adjusti ng entries, 
the adequacy of fi nanc ial  statement d isclosu res prepa red by the a ud itors , and  a pply 
ana lytic proced ures to the draft fi nancia l  statements, a mong other proced ures as con­
sidered necessary by management. 

Views of Responsi ble Offic ia ls and Corrective Action Pla n 

The City re l ies on the aud itor to propose adjustments necessary to prepa re the financia l 
statements i nc lud i ng the re lated note d isclosures. The City reviews such financ ia l  state­
ments and a pproves a l l  adjustments. The City a lso uses ana lytic procedu res a mong other 
procedu res necessary to com plete the Ma nagement's D iscussion a nd Ana lysis. 
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2015-001 R ELIANCE U PON TH E AU DITOR 

Management should possess the ab i l ity to reconci le a l l  accounts a nd prepa re financ ia l  
statements in  accordance with accounti ng pr inc ip les genera l ly accepted i n  the U n ited 
States of America . The preparation of financia l  statements u nder  th is basis of accounting 
req u i res that management possess the ab i l ity to properly record and classify tra nsactions 
in  a genera l  ledger, reconci le a l l  accounts, measure and record needed adj u stments to 
the accou nts, a nd prepa re the financ ia l  statements and  re lated d isclosu res without the 
assistance from the aud itors . See cu rrent year fi nd ing 2016-001. 
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